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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting for May 3, 2011
is now in session. Chair would like to introduce the Members that are here this morning. We do
have Member Carroll. good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa, good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha, good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --good morning. Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good morning, aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, aloha, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. And our Chairman. Member Mateo.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Chair would like to introduce the people from the
Administration. We do have from Corporation Counsel, Adrianne Heely.
MS. HEELY: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. And our Budget Director, Mr. Sandy Baz. Good morning.
MR. BAZ: Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Staff supporting the Committee, we do have Scott Kaneshina,
Michelle Yoshimura, as well as Camille Sakamoto. Members, we do have several people signed
up for public testimony. But before we take in public testimony if every one of us can turn off or
put our cell phones to the silent mode. Okay, for those of you that providing public testimony
this morning, the Chair will allow you three minutes with one minute to conclude. When you
come up to the lectern, if you can speak directly into the mic, state your name. the organization
that you represent, go ahead with your...testimony, and once you're done if you could stay
awhile. Members may have questions for you. So first up for public testimony is... Jacob
Verkerke.

ITEM NO. 1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2012 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF
MAUI (C.C. No. 11-80, 11-100, and 11-101)
. ..BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

MR. VERKERKE: Good morning, Chair. Good morning, Members of the Committee. My name is
Jacob Verkerke. I'm the MIS Manager. You may remember me from an appearance a few
weeks ago. I'm here to testify about two reductions proposed by the Chair in the MIS budget for
this year. I'll start with the easy one and that's about the reduction of one vehicle. I have
provided Staff with 16 copies of a letter we received in February from the Highways Division
with Department of Public Works. For your information. the MIS Division has three vehicles to
its.. .for its use. One is about seven years old and the other two are 18 and 19 years old,
respectively. The letter from Public Works Highways Division addresses the two vehicles that
are 18 and 19 years old. And it pretty much says that it's no longer feasible to keep these
vehicles on the County inventory once the safety inspection expires. Because of their age and
the cost of maintaining it and safety concerns about exhaust fumes entering into the cabin
through holes in the floor and the roof. Also one of the vehicles is showing serious problems
with its transmission. These three vehicles are in use by seven members of my staff that go out
through the more than 40 locations where County offices are found to support computer and
network facilities in those places. If we have only one vehicle available for the use of seven
staff, I don't think it's hard to imagine what the impact will be on our ability to provide support
and the productivity of the users in those offices. The other item I would like to speak about is
the reduction of $85,000 in the requested amount for PC replacement. Previously we talked
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about the delay that we've been building up under the circumstances of the economic challenges
we've been faced with. We have changed the life cycle of the expected life cycle of equipment
from five years to about seven years with the aid of extended maintenance contracts from
manufacturers. We have somewhere between 900 and 1.000 computers in the, in the County that
we're responsible for maintaining. So if we talk about 900 of the computers conservatively over
a five-year life cycle, that's about 180 computers per year we need to replace. The average cost
of a computer is $1,500 and that includes all the software necessary for the users plus extended
maintenance. So to keep up with the five-year life cycle we need about 250 to $270.000 a year.
At the seven-year life cycle-MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MR. VERKERKE: --and pardon me for the math exercise but it's early so hopefully we can get through
this. At the seven-year life cycle we need to replace 130 a year which would cost about 195.000.
The $85.000 that the Chair proposes to make available will only serve to build up the deficit that
we've been building up already over the years. And I think the 170.000 we originally asked for
will give us a chance to at least not fall further behind. So I respectfully ask your consideration
to restore the money for the PC replacement in the budget and to consider the prospect for our
division if we reduce from three vehicles to one vehicle sometime during the upcoming year.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Verkerke, for being here. Question for
you on the van. You say you have seven employees that go out to different places. Do they get
mileage if they use their personal car?
MR. VERKERKE: Yes, . .

.(inaudible). . .

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And, and the cost between the mileage that they would use
versus having a van onsite, have you done an analysis on that?
MR. VERKERKE: I have not. One problem with using people's own vehicles is I don't really have
anybody that owns a cargo van or delivery van as their personal vehicle. Many of 'em have an
open bed pickup truck or regular sedans and neither of one of them are suitable for the kind of
work that they need to do. Delivering equipment and, and what have you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So it's a lot of equipment that you deliver with this van?
MR. VERKERKE: That's correct, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Cochran?

Thank you.

Members, any more questions for Mr. Verkerke?

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Mr. Verkerke.
MR. VERKERKE: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So is there no possible way to find something out of our overall
inventory to.. .to utilize? Is that not appropriate?
MR. VERKERKE: You talking about the vehicles?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Use of our other vehicles that we have in, in excess?
MR. VERKERKE: There are not many of these type of delivery cargo vans available. I heard the Chair
talk about specialized vehicles and in our opinion these delivery vans are almost a specialized
vehicle. It's, it's not a car that is in some perceived vehicle pool that we can borrow. The other
aspect is we need to leave a fair amount of equipment. ladders and what have you, for network
installation, pulling wires, tools and spare parts and stuff in the car so if it was part of a pool
where we have to rotate the use of the vehicle it would be a challenge.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, not so much rotate. As I understand, there's things just
sitting around.
MR. VERKERKE: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm looking at.. it's a Dodge van and a Ford Aerostar van. It's not
like highly specialized type, custom-made vehicles. I mean, but anyway, Mr. Verkerke-MR. VERKERKE: Those. those.. .we didn't buy those vehicles new according to specs. We.. .one of
'em is a hand-me-down, the other one we picked at a really good price from a Federal auction.
New ones that we purchased now the specs for 'em are much more specific than as suggested by
the models that we have now.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much. Chair. And thank you. Mr. Verkerke, for
coming this morning. It's good to hear the justification for what has been asked for. It appears
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that, you know, there's a real concern in regards to vehicles, in County vehicles. And we are
aware of the fact that there is a County employee that is working on a study and inventory. We
don't know when we're gonna see it, but it has been referred to many times. And.. .obviously
we don't have a whole lot of that kind of vehicle that you're talking about that you really. really
need. And because of the concern about money, I'm wondering has there been any thought
given to maybe something that's used instead of something brand new and with that, you know,
save a substantial amount of money and kind of be a compromise so that you can at least have a
vehicle that's functional?
MR. VERKERKE: It's something that, that we can consider. I'm not really sure if the Administration
has a policy on buying used vehicles. The Aerostar we bought used from a Federal auction.
That was during the Apana administration. Regardless, we would need some money to be able
to buy even used vehicles. And I'm not really sure. I haven't researched what the market is for
reliable used cargo vans. I think under the circumstances most companies run 'ern down to the
bitter end. I would think, before they put them in the market. I'm not sure about that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, I. I'd suggest that between now and the time we finalize this,
maybe make some phone calls.
MR. VERKERKE: I will do that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Because, you know, half a loaf is better than none.
MR. VERKERKE: I agree with you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? I. I have one. In regards to the
safety issue, who... or what department told you about the safety issues?
MR. VERKERKE: It's the supervisor at the Wailuku Garage in the Highways Division of the
Department of Public Works.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And, you know, when you follow up on Member Baisa's question, also
follow up on, you know, how much it would cost to... lease a vehicle rather than purchase. So if
you can get that information to us. Yeah, understand that the County has, you know, a ratio of
three to one vehicles to employees which is very high. And hopefully that study can be done,
you know, as soon as possible. I'm sure if they already started they probably have identified
some vehicles. And if that's your priority, if you could talk to the department or the people that
doing this audit to look at the vans that we have in this County if those... the number of
vans...we, we, we have suits the County's requirements. And if it's over-required, then the
possibility of utilizing one of those vans. But I don't know, you need to check with them.
MR. VERKERKE:

go check and get back to you--
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. VERKERKE: --before the end of the week.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Verkerke.
MR. VERKERKE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Jocelyn Bouchard. Jocelyn Bouchard.
MS BOUCHARD: Good morning-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MS. BOUCHARD: --Budget Chair Pontanilla, Committee Members. My name's Jocelyn Bouchard. I
am the CEO with the Maui Humane Society. And I, I wanna start off by thanking you for the,
the long hours and effort you put in because most of you know I sit here and have sat here for
many years. So I know how difficult this is. I also wanna thank you for all your support of the
Humane Society over the years and for the increase that you're considering for Molokai Humane
Society 'cause I know those folks can really use that, yeah. Unfortunately, I'm, I'm up here
'cause I wanna make sure that, that you understand the impact the budget is having on our
agency. And I. again. I know the difficult decisions so I'm really here more just to make sure
that you don't come to me at some point later and, and say that you, you didn't realize the impact
this was gonna have. And, and I wasn't sure if I made myself clear earlier. Before we started
getting cuts in Fiscal Year '08, the Maui Humane Society was receiving a little over 1.5 million
from the County to do the services that you contract with us to do. So we're a little bit different
than other nonprofits in that. In that we have a very specific contract of, of areas that we are to
fill out and, and that's what the, the money is for. is to cover the cost of that. For Fiscal Year 12,
we're looking at a little under 1.2 million to do those same services so that's a, you know, about
300,000 less and four years later. There's a lot of expenses that are out of our control, electric.
gas, propane, water. All of those things are having a huge impact on our organization. As a
nonprofit, we were already running lean in.. .before these cuts happened. That's, that's why you
contract with us because we do run lean and we can do things for cheaper than what the County
can do. We've done what we could after that. We have four frozen positions. Obviously, have
not given out raises. We don't do overtime anymore. We're prioritizing our calls. We sort of,
kind of. didn't go on call anymore with MPD but the truth is they have my phone number and I
was in Kihei at 3:30 yesterday morning picking up an injured feral cat. So we still really believe
in the services that we provide for the County and for these past four years our agency has been
bridging the gap in the funding that we receive from the, the County and the actual costs to do
the services. We just completed our third year...third year...third quarter report. So we have a
month after the quarter to send in that report. And I was kinda shocked to see that as of the end
of March, we had already expended all of the funds given to us from the County. And, and in
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fact put in a little bit of...over $5,600 of our own money as of the third quarter. So this fourth
quarter is all on us. And I'm concerned. I'm concerned-MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MS. BOUCHARD: --about what we're gonna look at doing next year because at this point we are going
to have to look at services and so I just wanna let you folks know we're gonna do everything we
can to limit the cuts that we have to look at but potentially we are gonna have to close one or two
days a week. That means people can't find their lost pets. That means we can't adopt animals
and that could have an impact on euthanasia rates. You know, maybe we'll, we'll have
something come through between now and then. But my main thing here—I'm very nervous this
morning saying this 'cause I know how hard your decisions are. It's just to make sure that you
understand we're trying to do everything we can to fulfill our contractual obligations. And I
want you to, to have all the information you need when you're making those decisions. So thank
you again for everything you do and anytime you folks wanna come by and see what we're
doing at the shelter, I welcome you all there individually or as a group and we'd love to show
you 'cause we're very proud of the work we do. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much.
MS. BOUCHARD: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Debbie Cabebe.
MS. CABEBE: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Committee Members. Fm Debbie Cabebe. I'm
the Chief Human.. .excuse me.. .Chief Programs Officer for Maui Economic Opportunity. I'm
actually here this morning to speak on behalf of CEO Lyn McNeff regarding the $500.000 grant
for.. .the ME0 Transportation Center. So on behalf of Maui Economic Opportunity, I'm asking
your support to reinstate the $500,000 grant appropriation for the proposed ME0 Transit Center
under the Department of Transportation. The grant appropriation was included in the
Administration's budget proposal. Since the site selection study in 2005, the MEO
Transportation Center project has been able to move forward with the support of State, County
and private funding. A State grant of 1.2 million and a County grant of 400,000 were used
towards the 6.7 million purchase of the 10-acre project site. In addition. a State grant of 420M00
and a County grant of 700,000 were applied to planning and design expenses that have totaled
over $1.5 million to date. The proposed ME0 Transportation Center Phase 1-A is currently
under building permit review. We hope to secure construction permits before the end of this
year and start site construction in early 2012. Our goal is to complete the project construction by
December 2013. The requested County grant of 500.000 will be supplemented by Federal and
State grants and private funding. Continued local support is needed to secure Federal and State
funding.
The
MEO. „Transportation
Center
Phase
1-A
construction
is
approximately...$11 million. Public and private funding support is key.. .is a key part of project
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funding. In closing, the continued support of the County for the MEO Transportation Center
project is respectfully requested. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, questions for the testifier? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, . Ms. Cabebe, and thank you for being here.
MS. CABEBE: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Question, very specific. The $500.000 that you are requesting, what
would it be used for specifically?
MS. CABEBE: Specifically we're looking at using that for the water meter and the water infrastructure.
And once we get that secured that would help us move the project forward.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. I think that's a very relevant question because, you know, many
ti mes we're asked to contribute towards CIPs. But it's kind of a, you know, into the black hole.
MS. CABEBE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: This is a very specific request for a very specific purpose.
MS. CABEBE: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Good morning, Ms. Cabebe.
MS. CABEBE: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I thought I heard that the land was donated?
MS. CABEBE: A portion of the land was donated.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: A portion.
MS. CABEBE: And we purchased the other portion of it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. And--
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MS. CABEBE: And we have used some of--I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, no.
MS. CABEBE: We have used some of our funding also to fund this project as well.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. And also did we see plans for this? Is there anything
drawn, the design phase?
MS. CABEBE: Yes, we do have plans.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you.
MS. CABEBE: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a fast question for you.
MS. CABEBE: Yes, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: In regards to Federal and State fund grants, have you received anything or
confirmation from the Federal side as well as the State side?
MS. CABEBE: We're still waiting to hear just like we are with the County, although we have been
actively engaging with conversation with our Legislators at the Federal and the State level.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then the request for...from the Federal and State level is how much?
MS. CABEBE: You know, I, I don't have that number in front of me but I can get that to you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And-MS. CABEBE: I know--I'm sorry--I know with the State there's a million dollars that we're looking for
this funding year but I'm not clear on the Federal level. And I will get you that information.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. From the State side, if you can, you know, verify the funding source
from the State, if you're gonna get it or not. And the other thing, the installation of the water
meter itself and the infrastructure to support that, what is the cost for that?
MS. CABEBE: It's about a million dollars.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just for the water meter?
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MS. CABEBE: For that...actually, for that part of the project I think it was...the Phase 1, the whole
project is about 11 million. And I think with the infrastructure. I think there's off-road work that
needs to be done and the water meter is about a million dollars.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. One final question. the State monies that you are asking for, is that to
support the utilities also as well as-MS. CABEBE: That's to support-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --as well as the landscaping, you know, the grading of the land?
MS. CABEBE: Yes, sir. There's quite an extensive list of things that will be done when we secure all
of that money in the Phase 1-A.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Members, any more questions? Thank you very much.
Debbie.
MS. CABEBE: Thank you very much for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, next... and the last testifier signed up for public testimony is
Tamara Paltin. Is there anyone out there that want provide testimony at this time, if you could
see the Secretary up in the front or in the...to my left, the doorway. Thank you. Tamara?
MS. PALTIN: Aloha, Chair Pontanilla and County Council. Thanks for having us here today. My
name is Tamara Paltin and I'm testifying on behalf of the Save Honolua coalition as the
president. I'm here today to strongly request and urge you to support our West Maui Council
Member Elle Cochran's request for $4 million from the Open Space Fund and also the Mayor's
addition to preserve the $1 million Open Space Fund that we had been previously awarded. I
just wanted to say, you know, in challenging times for our County and our community to be
successful is important not only to look at the stuff that is difficult right now like falling property
values and businesses shedding their workers. But you also need to look at the opportunity and
when the value of the property goes down there's no better time, in my opinion, to look at
acquiring open space. We came before you in 2007 and got a million dollars and now we're
asking for a little bit more because we really believe that things are moving in the direction of
acquiring 580 acres overlooking Honolua marine life conservation district. And the thing about
this property is that it's the most developable piece of land in this ahupuda watershed and by
saving it, we're really saving a much greater portion than, than 580 acres. Above it is the Puu
Kukui Watershed preserve and below it is the marine life conservation district and it's almost
like a tragedy to even think of allowing the middle portion to be developed. I don't know how
many of you had seen what occurred in about 2005 when the south cliff of the bay was
developed and just minor seasonal rains occurred. All the sediment and the color of the water in
the bay, the decline of coral reef and we just really, really don't want that to happen again on the
north side. West Maui contributes a lot to tourism and in my opinion having Honolua as open
space preserving the landscape gives back to tourism because so many people where I work
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come and they...it's just like a breath of fresh air, you know. You, you see how much
development occurred just in the last ten years on West Maui, when we finally make it out to
TIonolua. you get to see a little bit of what Maui originally was like without all the buildings and
things like that. It's great. great value for the tourism industry. It's great value for the local
people. It's great value for the culture. In my opinion. I'm a little biased but I don't see any
down side to committing this money for open space in Honolua. I know that-MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MS. PALTIN: --some of you may have concerns about management and I invite you to ask me
questions about that as we have also looked into it. That's, that's pretty much what I have to say.
Thank you for your time and allowing me to speak and hear my testimony.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier at this time?
Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Chair. And thanks, Tamara, for being here. Question
for you is, how much.. .have you gotten a.. .price for the whole piece of land there?
MS. PALTIN: We haven't gotten the price for the whole piece of land. We, we've been talking to
different members. Our Councilmember Elle Cochran has met with the Mayor and also
Ryan Churchill. We had been in negotiations under the former administration and we were very
close to closing a deal but there was a timeline, or a time limit and the Administration didn't act
within the time limit. So what we're kind of doing in our talks with all these different people in
power is a little bit resuming where we had left off under the previous Administration and hoping
to be able to negotiate a deal that includes a public/private trust with money value and certain
entitlements.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And one last question, are you open to having somebody like
Maui Coastal Land Trust be the management of that?
MS. PALTIN: Yeah, Hawaii Islands-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right, Hawaii Islands.
MS. PALTIN: Yeah, uh-huh. we're, we're totally open to it. I, I haven't been in touch personally with
Dale Bonar recently on the issue. We've also been in touch with Lea Hong of Trust for Public
Lands and that was a little bit into the management issue. But she is open to working also along
with Dale Bonar of Hawaii Islands Coastal Land Trust and we're, we're pretty much open to
whatever can preserve the land into open space.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good, thank you. Got a question for you. I, I remember way back when,
maybe four years ago, when we first set aside the $1 million for the purchase of Lipoa Point.
And at the time one of the agreements was that the organization that you represent was to raise
some funding for the purchase of the land. Have you guys ever done that?
MS. PALTIN: We have been raising funding. In fact, we have a benefit concert scheduled May 13 at
Lulu's Lahaina. Invite all of you guys to come down, 9:00 p.m. It, it's with Inner Vision. What
we've been doing with the money, though, I mean I don't know if you know our mission. It's to
maintain open space, public access, revitalize the ecosystem of Honolua ahupua'a through
community-based management, utilizing Hawaiian values and practices. Some of the concerns
that came up that weren't being addressed by any party, State. County. the landowner and things
like that was that upwards of 800 people a day were visiting the bay. Scientists noticed that there
were strong indicators of cholera in the bay and we hypothesized that could be from 800 people
with no place to use the bathroom. So we've been setting up things like bathrooms, etiquette
signs. We do have some funding and when the million dollars was set aside, it was very, very
early in our organization efforts and we hadn't asked for a million dollars exactly. We had asked
for in the budget hearings for more percentage of the property tax because it was one percent to
be set aside. So that a little bit caught us off guard. I mean we were really stoked about it but it
was the incentive to start campaigning to acquire funds to acquire the land. And so in the four
years we've just been working towards that goal and the monies that we've, we've accumulated
isn't in the millions range.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Oh. one thing good, if you could provide this Committee, you know,
what is the selling price by the landowner, you know, that this Council may consider. Not
knowing that, you know, it's kinda hard for us to really look at a number at this time. So if you
could provide that, that type of information, we all would appreciate that. Yes, we do have an
Open Space Fund. And yes, we're concerned in, in regards to insuring that if properties come
available that we have an...opportunity to go after it so that we can, you know, save it for future
generations like you say, okay. Members, any more questions for the testifier? Member White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I would support this wholeheartedly. My, my
question is, if you were close, did you have any.. .close to coming to an agreement, there must
have been some. some idea what the price target was. Did you have any, any numbers that you
can share with us?
MS. PALTIN: Yeah. At the time.. .what we were negotiating for was Lipoa Point only and not the
mauka portion which is... was the.. .negotiations were called a compromise for conservation and
as I've stated earlier, you know, to save this part and this part and not the middle is just a tragedy
because-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I, I know.
MS. PALTIN: So--
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm just looking for the.. .if you have a number for Lipoa Point, that at
least gives us a, a starting point to understand-MS. PALTIN: It was.. .and you understand that the financial landscape and Maui Land and Pine's
position at that time was much different than it was...what it is today. There was gonna be a
million dollars and then there were other entitlements that were worth a lot to them or it could
still be worth a lot but the million dollars was... they were gonna accept it and turn that million
dollars back into a endowment fund because the management of the land estimated by
Dale Bonar at the time was gonna be about 4 to $5 million to manage the land in perpetuity.
Some of the other entitlements were to designate Kapalua mauka as resort residential to allow
TVRs in that development. Also park credits. about 1,200 of them and other things of that
nature.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. I agree that that's... it's a part of the island that we should work
hard to preserve and I'd like the Chair's approach that he's taken yesterday where we're not
necessarily gonna put something in the, in the budget. We'll wait for a budget amendment from
the Administration. But I, I think you can count on a, on a lot of support from this group for both
Open Space Funds and I, and I would... feel comfortable accepting a budget amendment from the
Administration for using part of the, the significant amount of money that West Maui has in their
park assessments for the...for some of the construction work so-MS. PALTIN: Yeah, I've heard that-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --thank you very much.
MS. PALTIN: --some of our park space had been sacrificed to Kihei and things like that which is
wonderful because we're all one County but, you know, the value of that land in Honolua is, is
much more to the people than $5 million, you know. And, and to me that is a real deal if we are
able to close the, the... seal the deal this time. I mean I know it's not gonna happen like
tomorrow. But, you know-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, just, just so you understand the, the parks assessment that are in
the West Maui account cannot be spent in Kihei.
MS. PALTIN: Oh. okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So you don't need to worry about the.. .West Maui's money being spent
in Kihei or anywhere else. In fact, that's part of the problem. We wanna do some wonderful
things in Hookipa but there's $56,000 in the account for that district.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . ('Inaudible)...

-14-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
May 3,2011

MS. PALTIN: Yeah. I, J hope that there's a lot of support like you said. This would be a wonderful
legacy for this group of people to be able to tell everyone in their family that they supported and
got it done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any more questions? Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Tamara, good morning.
MS. PALTIN: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: In, in 2007 when the body supported the Save... Save Honolua
Coalition effort with the $1 million appropriation, we also heard a lot of testimony during that
period indicating the efforts to also go out and secure other funding through private donations,
contributions and the like. Has the coalition been successful in generating that kind of financial
support as well?
MS. PALTIN: To date, we've secured about 17.000...little over 17.000. That was in grant funding to
take care of the area. We have got donations. Also, I'm not, I'm not sure what our balance is
right at this time but. you know, our experience it's been hard to raise funds and donations
without the deal in place. We, we, we believe that if there is a set number and a end goal. like
this much money will save this forever, it will be easier even in these difficult financial times.
Like how Councilmember Pontanilla--oh, sorry--Chair Pontanilla was hesitant to even say a
number because we don't know the value, that's how the general public feels as well, you know.
What is the cost? What's the deal, we'll give you money kind of thing. Same how he feels is
how everybody feels.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Yeah, and one, one last question from, from me. In regards to
your conversation with the last Administration, have you had a conversation with this
Administration in regards to the things that was.. .that you guys had.. .you folks had.. .or the
organization had discussed with the previous Administration?
MS. PALTIN: Not personally through myself, through our West Maui Council Member has met with
this Administration, Mayor Arakawa, and what we've heard back from.. .him and her.. .you can
question her yourself... but what we've heard back was all positive. He's very supportive. I
think he even told her if there's somebody that is against this, let me come and talk to them.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The only thing that I'm.. really concerned about is entitlements.
What we need to give up as a County.
MS. PALTIN: Yeah, we're concerned about that as well but it's all in the negotiation process. I mean
you gotta start the discussion before you can say no.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again for being here.
MS. PALTIN: Thank you very much for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, Tamara was the last person to sign up for public
testimony. Is there anyone out in the audience that would like to.. .provide public testimony at
this time? Seeing none. Members, if there's no objections, Chair would like to close public
testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, we reviewed on the first pass, the Chair's recommendations
for the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget. There were a lot of questions in regards to revisits. So today,
this morning the Chair will start off with the revisits. And every one of you have new copies,
right?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: With initials on 'em so the ones with initials on 'ern is the ones that we're
gonna revisit this morning and have thorough discussion on. And_ Members_ if you need
department heads to be here, you know, they're supposed to be on call, right? And, and we'll
call 'em as you desire in regards to getting more information from them.
EXHIBIT "1"
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So looking at Page 3. I know there were a lot of discussion on Reduce
Premium Pay by Member White. And if Member White could provide us with some insights on
the first one on Page 3 of 44, 5-7, Reduce Premium Pay.
COUNCILMEMBER W1-1ITE: Thank you, Chair. The. the concern I have is that when I look at the
County budget over the last ten years, we've had a population growth of 29 percent.. .oh no, I'm
sorry, 21 percent. Our personal incomes have grown by about 38 percent but our County budget
has almost tripled during that time. So property taxes have almost tripled to support that. As we
go through this budget process, it's important for us to look very hard at what is going to help us
grow the economy back and therefore we need to put, you know, put more money into it. And at
the same time_ look at ways that we can control costs. And so when I went through my run at the
budget, I was looking at ways that we could reduce costs of equipment and_ and I totally support
what you've done with the vehicles, withholding approval on those. And I support your, your
move to cut back on Premium Pay. I had taken a little bit stronger number in cutting back the
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Premium Pay. I used a figure of about 30 percent as opposed to your 10. And the reason I did
that is that that takes back a portion of what the Administration had said that they were gonna
reduce overall employment by roughly seven percent through attrition. So the Premium Pay
simply allots some of that cash to be...or allows some of that cash to be taken out of the budget
rather than us going through and cutting positions and cutting the, the salary side. So rather than
trying to micromanage the, the salary side. I felt that was appropriate to reduce, in some cases,
the operating budget and in some cases the, the Premium Pay and in some cases the equipment
allotments. So that we are trying to... so we're doing our job to preserve the capital that we have
now. 'Cause as we see Federal funds dropping off, State funds dropping off, we seem to be in,
in pretty good financial shape. But at the same time our job is to preserve that level of capital
that we will need if we have more problems down the road. So the way I looked at the budget
was to preserve capital because we may need it in future years. And I, I appreciate the direction
that you have started us off in. I just feel that we need to look at the significant growth that the
County has had over the years and take a...maybe even a harder look at where we can, where we
can trim the edges without cutting, you know, cutting the.. .cutting into the muscle. So that was
my reason for wanting to increase the, the reduction of Premium Pay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So your, your recommendation—I, I know there's a bunch of 'em—was that
you were looking rather than a 10 percent, a 30 percent across the board?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Correct. My, my guideline was if it was an administrative office, then I
would cut it by 50 percent because my feeling there was that these are not necessarily the, the
frontline people. Their schedules are much more, much more manageable. They're not required
to be responding to things on a frequent basis. And maybe, maybe my 50 percent is too high.
And maybe my 30 percent is too high. But I felt that it.. .the total overtime for the County is
about $12 million. The, the cuts that I propose, I believe, are in the neighborhood of, in the
neighborhood of 4 million. So that makes up about a 4 million out of the 7 percent reduction that
the Mayor's targeting which amounts to about 9.8 million. So my, my effort was to simply say.
let's cut back on the Premium Pay because my, my concern is that if you, if you budget at the
level that we've budgeted, yes, we want the Police to be able to respond. We want the Fire folks
to be able to respond. And no one, no one is gonna be interested in cutting that, that level of, of,
of money. But at the same time, my sense is that through proper scheduling we can cut, we can
cut that without cutting out the services that we have to depend on. And I think it's our
responsibility to be looking at things like overtime and saying to ourselves, okay, if...are we
better off spending that...committing that money to that particular expense or are we better off
utilizing it to replenish some of the items we have cut over the last three years in environmental
protection, economic development and social services where we're getting.. .we get a lot of bang
for our buck. And when I look at...if we were to just take the budget back to the 2010 level,
well, none of my cuts even come close to that. And yet most businesses that are paying the taxes
to support the County aren't even back to 2010 levels. And so I think it's, it's important for us to
be as daring as we can be to hold back the County's continual increase in costs and do it in such
a way that we don't impact operations. But we simply realign our priorities. So thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I think you and I think about the same way. „(Chuckles).
Okay, so you're gonna propose a number for that, Reduce Premium Pay, on this line item or you
want Staff and myself to recalculate as far-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'd, I'd be happy to spend time with the Staff.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Rather than going through these„.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So we, we'll-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Each of these changes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --so we'll just get that information from you folks.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'd be happy to talk to the Staff and get their sense of what, what might
be a more palatable number.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, good, good. Members, any more questions in regards to this one
particular area? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair. And I totally understand where everyone is going in terms
of we need to get our costs under control. You mentioned earlier that if we wanted to talk to any
staff that you are willing to bring them in. I think it would be really helpful if we could have at
least a couple of department managers come and share with us their reactions to these cuts.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay, fine. This first area that we're discussing right now is
Environmental Management.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And maybe. Mr. Baz, if you can somehow get the Director over here from
Environmental Management because this is the first area that we're gonna be reviewing. And
maybe you can prep the rest of the Directors because we're gonna go department by department.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, thank you. And I, I know that the Director of Finance has already expressed
some concerns so he could describe in detail how this would affect his.. .one of his areas.
COLTNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair. I think it's really-CHAIR PONTANILLA: .(Inaudible)...
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Excuse me_ excuse me, Chair. I think it's important before we go
along this road that we kind of listen to some balance and then we can decide.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, again, you know, this is our budget and_ you know, more information
that we require. you know, we'll get the department heads over here. okay? Just a comment
from the Chairman. When I look at the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget of $524 million, we've had
budget amendments come through in regards to the 2011 Budget. But the budget amendment
doesn't, doesn't come up to nearly 5 percent. So I, I look at the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget as a
good number that, you know, to operate this County. But I know there's many needs that has
been requested especially on the Capital Improvement side that cause that increase from the
Chair's proposal. So I look at the 2011 Budget and I tell myself, how many
budget...amendments that we have had and I don't think we have had any more than 10 percent.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: May I make a comment?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MR. BAZ: Okay, when you look at the 2011 Budget as compared to the 2012 Budget, the major cost
factors that have increased it are the restoration of the furloughs-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Furlough days. Yeah, I, I, know that.
MR. BAZ: And also the increased costs for fringe benefits and, and other items-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: --in that area. The actual program operations within the departments have not increased
significantly and I think that was one of the, the factors that we reviewed in_ in proposing the
budget and making sure that we did not increase significantly the County operations because we
do understand.. we share that same concern as, as you and the Members do about the size of the
government and-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. BAZ: --and that's why we're trying to do things in a manner that we think would be effective and
efficient and appropriate to, to produce a '12 Budget.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah_ and the only reason I make that comment is that although we have had
complaints but the complaints wasn't as great as, as it is or expected in regards to the
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2011 Budget. So I thought I'd just, you know, provide the Members here. this Chair's comments
in regards to the 2011 Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. And you and I thought very much alike 'cause
I did it across the board. the 10 percent, because I have.. .1 realize that there's a lot of.. .and even
the Mayor himself. Remember when he addressed us, which is I put some fluff in there. Well,
we're taking the fluff out. We're cleaning it up. And we're gonna get it real so that the
Administration has to understand that part. The other part is...and then Mr. White and some of
the others wanna go further and I don't have a problem with that. You know. I can. I can support
cuts because that's what we promised during the campaign. It's to make government more
efficient and cut across. Most businesses have done that. Most businesses had to do it. Or else
they're not here anymore. Government has this thing called, the ability to collect money by just
raising taxes. And we've gotta stop that. We've gotta change that mindset. So I can support
what you're doing, Chair, and I think it's time that we really take a good look at all of this stuff.
But I agree with Ms. Balsa. Bring up the managers, let them explain and let them justify 'cause
there are some departments that even though they may have that title "Administrative" side, but
they get out there. They have to get out there for different circumstances, weekends and stuff
like that. So let's give the flexibility for those who can justify and if can. And lastly say, as
you said many times, this is a program budget. And program budget means you can take from B
and pay A if you need. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . (Inaudible).
MR. BAZ: I did have a conversation with the Mayor regarding the Premium Pay reductions as proposed
by you. And the Mayor understands your. your comments about the Attrition Policy and thus
reducing the, the salaries through attrition and feel that the, the level of, of the proposed
reduction in. in Premium Pay is something that we can manage because, Mr. Victorino, it is a
program budget and, and we do feel that, you know, we're gonna be squeezing and may have to
delay in certain costs and different things and different areas 'cause each program is, is different.
But that the... we feel that in general as a policy that it's something that we can live with.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Is the department head coming up?
MR. BAZ: He's been notified and is on his way.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, we'll take a short recess until he comes up.

-20-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
May 3,2011

MR. BAZ: Yeah, excuse me, they are in One Main Plaza so it takes them a few minutes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, maybe five minutes? Come back at 10:05. This meeting is in recess.
. . (gavel)...
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:59 a.m.
10:12 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
.(gavel). . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened.
Members, we do have the Director Kyle Ginoza from Department of
Environmental Management.
MR. GINOZA: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And I'll just start off. Mr. Mateo. if you have any questions for Mr. Ginoza
regarding the items that we have already discussed?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. actually. Mr. Chairman, I will yield to Mr. White who has, I
think, the more important question because it should be one that should be asked to all of the
departments just to see its impacts.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. In your earlier presentations to us, you
mentioned that of the overtime expense that...your Department incurs that 30 percent of the total
overtime was the, the structural cost of covering holidays and, and, and other things. In my, in
my proposal I've taken 50 percent of the Premium Pay out in, in offices where it's basically an
administrative position in offices not necessarily subject to the ongoing ebb and flow of
operational pressures. And I've taken 30 percent out of the, out of the frontline areas and my
assumption was that when you referred to the 30 percent structural cost, that that applied
to.. well, because of predominant amount of the overtime is in.. .or the Premium Pay is in the
frontline positions. Do you feel that you would be able to make up out of other parts of your
budget 30 percent reduction in Premium Pay as long as we're not cutting, cutting positions and
cutting, cutting back any salary pay or salary expense?
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. GINOZA: Well, the, the first.. .1, I don't recall saying 30 percent for the holiday but it's, it's a set
amount of about roughly 200,000 that we incur for opening the landfills and for refuse collection
on holiday.. .on the 13 holidays. And so that, that would be likely the first.. .the thing we'd stop
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if we, we got cut on the Premium Pay was basically not operating on holidays, either collecting
trash or opening the landfill. I mean I haven't spoken with the Mayor or the Budget Director
about it but that'd be the easiest. I guess, target for making a cut of service if we were to reduce
the overtime. In, in the administrative offices it's not only administrators that are in the
administrative program. For instance. in Solid Waste we have a Project Engineer as well as a
technician who handles the flare so this is a the Central Maui Landfill. So they incur some of
the.. .or most of the overtime because when the flare goes down. the EPA requires us to respond
to it and to basically fix it so that we're not emitting methane or, or other non-organic
compounds to the environment. So it's not necessarily just administrators that are in the admin
program, like in-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I, I understand that.
MR. GINOZA: --Solid Waste, there's that and in Wastewater there's the, the engineers that are the CIP
engineers for.. .there, there's some overtime as far as, you know, we do the projects at night or
when there are low flows which would require some overtime. So that would be the difficulty
with the admin program of 50 percent reduction is these, these disciplines which require
emergency response may get impacted. And like I said. on the, on the operations side in large
part it is the opening on holidays which is like a standard or a set amount that we'd have to incur
but it's also incurred by.. .when we got cut by certain positions at the landfills and at the Central
Maui Landfill it taxed the staff, the existing staff, even more where we incurred overtime. And
that's why we had requested a couple of the bodies back at the Central Maui Landfill to try to
reduce some of that burden on the existing staff.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Uh-huh. Well, one of the.. .one of my concerns overall is the, the
growth in the County budget over the years and one of the, one of the biggest cost items is that
over a 10-year period while the, the private sector added maybe 3 percent more positions. Maui
County has added 700 positions or about 36 percent. And that with, all of the, the fringe benefit
load with OPEB and the other expenses-MR. GINOZA: Sure.
COLTNCILMEMBER WHITE: --is driving our budget very, very quickly. And, you know, over a. over
a three-year period in 2010...or from 2007 to 2010 while all of our private sector businesses
have been hit very hard the, the revenues for Maui County have grown by 54.000...oh,
$54 million a year but their expenses have grown by 82 million per year. That concerns me. So
I' m, I'm looking for ways to arrest the.. .1 mean gentle ways to arrest the, the growth of expense.
And in Solid Waste from 2007 to 2010. there was an increase from 17.6 million to 25.1 million.
I' m sure there're reasons for that but the bottom line is that we need to, we need to do everything
we can to ask our employees to help us get, get through this without having to raise taxes
continually. And that's, you know, the difference between the private business and the
government is a private business has to earn the money and ask for the money and then adjust
when that money doesn't come in. We...you know, private business doesn't have the luxury of
saying, well, we can just figure out what we need to spend and then go get the money. So with
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Wastewater it's grown from.. .29.7 million to 34.3 and it's now at 38 for 2012 which is a
reduction from last year. But again it's still a huge amount of growth so...
MR. GINOZA: In large part that is driven by... like at... in Wastewater's case what we have as far as
planned CIP projects because we have a 20-year plan and, you know, it fluctuates based on-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, and, and part of it is driven by electricity, too.
MR. GINOZA: Yeah. yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Cost of electricity so I, I can understand that.
MR. GINOZA: And the direction that--and this was before I was here--but the direction that I.. .I've
gotten from the divisions was that over the last few years the divisions have tried to cut back and
not put in equipment requests. So like, for instance, in Solid Waste we're trying to get our
equipment back, like, for instance, the refuse collection vehicles so that we can maintain a
reliable service. So that's, that's part of the reason why there, there is that in, in this budget as
well.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Is it correct that you, in the districts where you have the, the automated
refuse collection trucks, that you have a back up in each of the districts? You have a backup
truck in each of the districts?
MR. GINOZA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
MR. GINOZA: But lot of times the backup is quite old.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: The backup is buss up too.
MR. GINOZA: I, I think that—what?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: The backup is buss up, too?
MR. GINOZA: Yeah, and so I think the, the normal replacement is something like five to seven years.
But I think in some cases it's, you know, closer to ten years or more and so while it is a backup
that is there, you know, we wanna make sure that our backup is reliable because when we need
the backup, we will need the backup.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah.
MR. GINOZA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
MR. GINOZA: But every district has a backup now as, as, you know, Lanai didn't. So we got that.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Ginoza, fast question. I don't know if I missed it but how
long does it take to replace one of those vehicles?
MR. GINOZA: What do you mean how long does it take?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah-MR. GINOZA: Like from when you order it to when you get it?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah,. .(Inaudible). .ordering by the time it gets here.
MR. GINOZA: I'm, I'm not sure offhand. I would say a year or two.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
MR. GINOZA: Because it's highly specialized equipment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. GINOZA: So I'm sure they only make it once we, we actually order it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Vietorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. And_ Mr. Ginoza, you're pretty familiar with
the private sector because, you know, one thing I did come in. I was like Mr. White, very
business minded, go, cut this, cut that. And I realize that government really serves an entire
different entity. Government is not here for a profit. Government is here to do services that
many times the private sector would do and cost us more, or won't do at all. And that's why we
partners with nonprofits because they do a lot that... nobody else wants to do or.. would charge
us a lot more, or would charge the public at large a lot more. So_ you know, sometimes this
comparison with business and government, you know, I, I get torn because until you really sit
here for a long time, you really don't understand. You come with this business perspective. and I
did. but it took me a couple years getting whacked on the side of the head and then I realized.
wait a minute. This doesn't work. And this is different. And I think you'll agree. Mr. Chair,
because you came from the private sector. You know, there is things we can. There's
efficiencies we can put in but there are necessary expenses that we just can't oversee. Now in
your case, you talk about holidays, trash...not only pickup but the trash.. .the landfill being
opened on weekends, holidays and paying all this premium. And we cut your positions so now
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overtime becomes an issue. We give you.. .positions and then people complain about the benefit
package that goes with the new positions. So in a sense here, darned if...damned if you do.
damned if you don't, right?
MR. GINOZA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So I, I feel for you. So I want the public to see this because there
is a real definitive difference and a line that is drawn throughout our County for what County
services offer versus the private sector. And the private sector also, generally, has more than one
that does the service, not all the time, but.. .many times. Mr. White's hotel has many other hotels
you can choose from. So he does a great job making his hotel a unique entity so people go to
that hotel. But in government we're the only one. We're it. So we gotta do it right. We gotta
do it the best way we can. Question for you, you mentioned about the trucks and I'm glad that
was brought up. One year to year and a half to get them. so 12 to 18 months to get 'em. In the
meantime. those 10-year-old trucks that are the backups now will be 11, 11-1/2 years old. And
parts become difficult. I understand that's one of the biggest issues when you get older vehicles'
parts. And the reason I saying that, I just wanna fix my 1999 Ford Taurus and finding parts are
getting to be difficult. So is that another factor that makes it hard to keep these vehicles longer
than its life expectancy?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. GINOZA: I, I'm not sure about how difficult it is to get parts-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. GINOZA: --on, on that. I mean basically we do what we can to just maintain those vehicles but,
you know, obviously it, it comes to a point when it costs more to maintain than to just try to get a
new one and have something reliable from the get go.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I think that's important. That's a good point. You know.
you have something that's reliable instead of something that you're putting rubber bands and
gum to kinda hold together so that it can move along. yeah? And lastly. I guess if you were to
cut back. I'm going remind people that a former Mayor decided to close the, the landfill which
we used to call the dump, on Sundays. And we all remember what happened. There was piles of
trash right in front of the gate 'cause people would come and just leave it. And... we realized
that people. especially Saturday, Sundays, that's their yard days. That's their, their rubbish day.
That's the day they clean the garages, whatever. So if we were to limit it, even holidays, this
would be a mess out there. Today we have a nice--and with the plastic ban--your landfill looks
really good. I drove by the other day.
MR. GINOZA: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Very good. Mr. Ginoza. My compliments to the Department. But
I really believe that some of these things, although may look good on paper and cutting it and
making it look good. going have a profound effect environmentally, inconvenience to our
constituents and really may cost us more at the end of this. this journey than it really is worth.
So. Mr. Ginoza, cut some but not as much and I think you guys have a program.. .one of
the areas that I'd be very careful how far we go with all of that. Thank you. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions for Kyle at this time? I'll just go right down.
Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. Mr. Director...thanks for coming. I think one of the
things that for, for people like me regarding the position requests and balance it off with the
Mayor's concept of attrition to reduce workforce requirements for the County. I'm hoping
that.. .the positions that the Solid Waste asked for that at this time the Committee is looking at
denying, have you, have you folks worked with Personnel Services and, you know. Finance with
the Payroll section, of finding out who, who is a close.. .employees close to potential retirement
so that maybe the easiest way instead of asking us for new EP counts, you would look at. upon
retirement and if that is not currently, I guess, needed. any time/motion study that I hope all the
departments are doing anyway to justify certain things to us.. .would come forward any
reclassification or job transfer request whereby we're not increasing EP count. Chair, we're just
doing either transfers or redescribing a position to fit the current need of the department instead
of adding new position counts like I said? So is that something that is going on to your
knowledge, Mr. Director, before you come and ask us for additional, new position counts?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead. Director.
MR. GINOZA: What, what we look at is.. .like for the, the expansion.. well, let me just address the
expansion first. The expansion is to try to get back to. like the two at Central Maui Landfill, to
try to get back to what it was before this past year. And so we didn't look it as expansion
positions of expansion from what was existing. It was existing a couple of years ago and the
Environmental.. Health Specialist was to. to oversee the compliance part to try to reduce
overtime from some of the other people in the administrative program. What we look at as far as
attrition for our current operational staff. what, what I found going from my, my career has been
more of a white collar kind of person and now I've dealt more with the frontline staff kind of
personnel, is that in white collar, you know, maybe there are days that somebody can take more
of the load here or there. But that if somebody is not in the office. it.. .the impact to the public
may not be felt for, you know, a short vacation of some of fellow staff and such. Whereas in,
like our landfills or in our treatment plants, what... I've come to realize is that, you know, when,
when we do have these sicknesses or vacations or lack of staff, it. it's not that everybody else can
necessarily pick up the load because there's so needed and because we just need the personnel.
And so we're not looking at...I mean we, we have looked at who's retired and the, the vacant
EPs and looking at if we could utilize those for these other positions that we're looking at. But
in that analysis. we've seen that our, our staff is already taxed as far as, you know, trying to
cover for each other and that's where a lot of overtime is incurred when somebody's sick or

- 26 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
May 3,2011

there's a vacation and such. And I kind of cringe at looking at with the additional amounts of
days off that our staff may have how we're gonna be able to accommodate that. But we did look
at the pending retirements and the. the open positions that we were recruiting for. But in large
part those are staff that, as you may know, like, you know, some of our, like, landfill has only
like two or three people and, you know, if we were not to fill one of those positions then it'd be
that many.. .that much less people out there to be able to, to handle the, the incoming public for
those facilities. So to make a long answer short, yes, we did look at that but because a lot of it is
frontline personnel, we, we felt that they weren't expendable to convert those to these positions
that we're also requesting.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I, I think, you know...and I. and I heard your response and I can appreciate
it, you know, in your role, Mr. Director. But for me, you know, I am hoping you're looking at
it's the relationship between sick leave to overtime to vacation as well as some kind of
assessment to time and motion because, you know. I think we've made some great strides from a
legislative branch to give new equipment, support new programs, buy new software, hardware
for our divisions, add a lot of resources that other counties. I would say, would be envious of.
But I think there's a time where I think at this point, I think we can expect greater efficiencies
out of our investment and I think that is something that I would ask...I would challenge the
departments to perform and show us.. .these greater efficiencies that we've invested in. And, and
we can make the appropriate adjustments when we need to in future requests. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Chair, are we just gonna go on the premium issue
right now or are we going to do anything with Environmental Management?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Right now-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: While we have 'em here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We, we brought up the premium issue. We brought out the vehicle issue. So
if you have any questions on both then go ahead and ask and then you know, come back
again and if you have another issue that you wanna bring up-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, it's, it's the other issues.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I have other questions.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Other issues, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo? Kyle. just a fast question. In regards to some of the things that
you spoken.. .spoken already, have you guys ever considered looking at your schedule and
somehow...rescheduling so that there's coverage seven days a week without the use of
overtime? Or with little overtime?
MR. GINOZA: Where, where are you talking about?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Your landfill.
MR. GINOZA: Well, part of working toward that is getting the, the two positions that we had asked for,
the, the Landfill Attendant and.. .1 forget the other one offhand...and the Laborer II. Because we
need to try to get back to being fully staffed for that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So you could with filling out those two positions to go seven, seven days a
week with little overtime to, to operate the landfill?
MR. GINOZA: I, I need to verify that but I. I can look into that and get back to you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The other thing in regards to Mr. Hokama's question about the
Attrition Program, you know, we'd like to give the Mayor that opportunity to utilize the Attrition
Program to maybe, you know, and somehow redirect some of those vacancies towards areas that
is being required by this.. .by his request for Fiscal Year 2012. And I know we had a lot of
discussion in regards to how do we fund it, then, you know, have the Administration...because
the money doesn't go away. Somehow figure out how we're gonna fund those positions so I. I
leave that with you. Any more questions in regards to the overtime and the specialized vehicle
that we're talking about? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman. regarding overtime, it's just so I, I can get it clear, you know,
since the Department is also asking for these positions, right, and, you know, to me there's a
relationship between overtime and these positions. I'm trying to understand, like, you know, the
Health Specialist V, Chairman, under Solid Waste Admin and yet they also have a First Assistant
to the Division Chief. So and. you know, I' m not clear because, you know, I, I' m not sure how
it's gonna.. .how the structure's supposed to work better or, or how this is gonna give us what
we...what. what I expect out of this program. Chair. You know, so again. I don't know if this
something that is already by our requirements in our set.. provisions of budget regarding the
ability to show us the adjustments in structure to an operation so that we can either make a...so
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we can make the better decision on this type of request. You know, I haven't seen that. And I
don't know if the union's being advised of potential changes in structure and organization within
the division so.. .you know, for me. Chairman. and I think after budget. we're gonna need to
have the departments by each standing committees' responsibility to really figure out exactly
what. what we trying to do for next budget so we can understand 'cause I, I fail to see some of
the connections in the request and what, what I expect out of the division as far as what we
putting forth in financial resources. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And Mr. I-Iokama, I appreciate that comment because I think, you
know, standing committees should be meeting with their, their areas that they are responsible for
and, you know, kinda discuss prior to the next budget in regards to, you know, organization,
funding requests and the like. You know, by the time we come to budget. you know, that's the
first time that we ever hear about anything. So, you know, the task would be upon Committee
Chairmans to just do that in the future. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Do you have any idea how many...what the
average number of sick days used by your employees might be?
MR. GINOZA: I'm, I'm not sure offhand.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
MR. GINOZA: You mean the average amongst our personnel?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
MR. GINOZA: I'm not sure.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: 'Cause I, I know that, that's part of what drives overtime usage. And I
requested and received a...the number for the Countywide and what was interesting to me is in
my business we allow ten days of sick leave and we have a utilization of five, so exactly half.
Countywide there's 21 days of sick leave and the utilization's 10-1/2, exactly half. So maybe,
Mr. Chair, if, if it's the sick leave--you know, we all, we all hear the stories. I'm not, I'm not,
not at all saying that your employees do this but we all remember the, the problem we had at
Halawa and some of the other correctional facilities on Oahu a number of years ago where one
person would call in sick and would.. .that would require another person that they worked with to
work overtime. And then they'd switch. The other one.. .the one that was working the overtime
would call in sick and the next guy would get overtime. So for me overtime is a management
responsibility and a management issue to control. And so, Chair. I...you know, when I look at
the amount of sick leave usage it concerns me that it's... if it...it doesn't seem like a coincidence
that both of us have usage of half that time. So it'd be interesting to me to ask the various
departments if they could share with us what the sick leave usage is on an average.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good. Good point. Okay, Members, Chair is gonna leave this area and--
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, wait. actually-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I did have a...just a follow-up-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --on that...the deletion of the Environmental Health Specialist. I
was told that that was like kind of the EPA sort of regulator person to...and so is that one of the
expansion's positions.. .you had several expansion positions in your Department? And this is
one we're looking to delete?
MR. GINOZA: Yes, that, that person is in the administrative program and that person would ensure
compliance at our landfills and, you know, with the gas-to-energy oversee the flare, that kind of
stuff, because right now we have couple of other people who have other duties just trying to
maintain that as well. And they're not necessarily regulatory compliance individuals so we're
looking at trying to focus on that so that we don't have EPA violations that we've had a couple
in the past.. .or more than a couple in the past that we wanna try to make sure to, to not have
again. And I mean that doesn't have to do with.. .1 mean that person is a compliance person
versus opening seven days a week. I mean the other thing about opening seven days a
week.. .just to finish your point is.. .right now we, we have our guys working on a 4/10 schedule
and if I recall.. .correctly from my discussion with the division, we'd have to go to.. .back to a
5/8 to open seven days a week. We need the couple people back and I don't recall what else
there was but I know that was one salient change was that we'd have to back to the normal work
week which would require negotiations with the union on that. But the Environmental Health
Specialist is for the regulatory side to make sure that we're up with the requirements of up
keeping a landfill and maintaining compliance.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Which I see the importance but I was trying to correlate opening
our landfills five days a week with this person and how this Health Specialist, you know,
coincided with opening so and...you touched upon that so thank you, Director.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I don't know if this is the place because we kinda mixed it up but
I have a general question about deleting the positions and the Attrition Policy.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Should I ask now?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, I'm trying to get my arms around this Attrition Policy and how
we're gonna use it by giving the Mayor the opportunity to use his policy to fill his needed
positions. And so for me it's really important to try to follow a position and see how that process
would work. And I think part of the discussion was yesterday and we haven't really gotten an
answer and if we have, I know Corp. Counsel sent us something but I haven't had a chance to
read it. In regards to the money following the transfer of the position_ do we have a clear answer
on that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: As far as Fm concerned, once a position is vacated through attrition,
retirement, the money still stays within the department. Then it would be the Administration's
responsibility to provide for a position that is somewhere else. And if Corp. Counsel can
comment on that, the Mayor has that ability. Or Administration has that ability.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: To move the money.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: To move the money.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'd like to hear what she has to say.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 'Cause that was the discussion that was really relevant yesterday.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MS. HEELY: Mr. Chair, good morning. And thank you, Councilmember Baisa. I did submit to you
two previous Corporation Counsel opinions basically discussing the issue of temporary
transferring of positions and sometimes the, the funds related to that. But in a nutshell the
Executive Branch_ or the Mayor_ has the authority to supervise, direct its employees and make
temporary transfers of those positions. But it's within your guys discretion.. .the Legislative
Branch has the authority to deal with the funding of those positions, either appropriate it or not.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So let, let's take a for instance. okay? Somebody resigns or retires in the
Finance Department and then the Environmental Management wants a position, how does that
happen?
MR. BAZ: Maybe, I, I can express some of that process and then Corp. Counsel can, can follow up and
correct me if I'm-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 'Cause if we're gonna use this rationale for saying, okay, well we can
delete this 'cause you can fill it through attrition, I'm trying to figure out the mechanics of how
that happens.
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MR. BAZ: Yeah, from what.. .has been expressed and what I, what I understand. the position. the
Mayor can do a temporary transfer of the position, the EP count from one program to another
whether it's inter-department or intra-department. So if for some reason, like, like you
mentioned. the Finance Department had somebody that retired, the position. you know,
was.. .remained vacant. Then the Mayor has the ability to take that vacant position, the EP count
and temporarily transfer it to Department of Environmental Management. However, the funding
for that position would have to come from within the Department of Environmental
Management, whatever program that that EP count was put into. And if there is no funding
available to fund that, that position then it's really kind of useless that we move that position
over because.. .unless we'd have to come back to the Council to either by ordinance or by
resolution put money into that program so that we could fund that position.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So what I'm hearing you say is the money wouldn't necessarily follow
the employee.
MR. BAZ: No. it would take Council action for that money to follow the employee.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Now that's very clear. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any more questions? Member White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: The. the.. .1 appreciate that discussion because I, I think for. for attrition
to work we need to be willing to move the money with, with the position. And. and I'm
comfortable with Mayor making that determination and coming back to us, I guess, that would
be a budget amendment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Budget amendment, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: But I'm. ..so I'm asking you. Chair, if you're comfortable with dealing
with budget amendments that come down requesting that kind of a move.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I am. If it does save a lot of money for the County-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I'm willing to move.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: When we went through our staff reductions, we did about probably
80 percent of it through attrition and combining jobs and things of that sort and it, it does work.
And the, the sense that I got, in fact. I had one of my managers come up to me and say, you
know, when, when you first told us that you're gonna freeze all hiring, he said, it scared me
because I didn't think we'd be able to do our job. But, and this is a person who has a
frontline...actually the frontline supervisor has about seven employees. And so cutting one
person cuts a lot of their manpower and affects their schedules 'cause their, their schedules cover
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seven days a week. And she came.. .when I, when I told her she had to freeze that one position,
she told me later.. .said. I just.. .1 thought you were absolutely crazy. But everybody in the
department stepped up to the plate, we made adjustments, everyone bought into it and we moved
on. And, you know, when we... when I look at these costs growing when, when my staff hasn't
seen an increase in four years, my union employees aren't back to where they should have been
by now because of deferrals of increases. it's real tough for me to sit here and, and say, oh yeah,
no problem. We'll take a million here, a million there, a million here, and a million there and
look at all the costs increasing by not thousands but by millions of dollars a year. It's very hard
for me to feel like we're doing our job. So I, you know, I appreciate everybody's putting up with
my, my points of view and taking up a little extra time but I think it's really important. This isn't
a...this is not a private business. But it should be expected to be run efficiently and effectively
and I think that a lot of people in the County's employment would step up to the plate and do
more with less. That's what every private business has had to do and, you know, J think we need
to look for creative ways where we can expect.. .we can ask the government to do the same
thing. I'm encouraged by the Mayor's leadership because I think this Attrition Program can
work and it's a much more gentle way of doing it than us sitting here cutting EP counts and
cutting dollars right off the bat. So I'm. I'm encouraged by the direction the Mayor's going in a
number of different areas. And I'm. and I'm happy to hear that you would support their sending
us budget amendments because I think that's the only way this is gonna work in a way that will
help us control cost so thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One, for me structurally from a Charter standpoint, I don't think we can do
that, okay. That is not what the Charter is and we've got it from the State Supreme Court ruling.
We have a Council-strong Charter. The strength of the Council is appropriations, control of
money. So why we giving our basic authority to the Mayor? I have yet to see Council ask to
expedite to make appropriate adjustments in the schedule or to schedule special meetings to
accomplish the goals of this County. So to make these things structurally for a budgetary
convenience, that's not good enough for me. That's not good enough to pass the litmus test and
changing the Charter. Okay, show me that our process doesn't work, you know. Again,
unfortunately, during crisis we, we tend to perform outstandingly. 9/11, within so many. ..what,
30. 45 days we got that hand or help program up, okay. What was so long about that? That was
expedited and we put hundreds of thousands of dollars into the community in a very short time.
So to me it's not the process, Chairman. The question has to be structurally what is the role of
Council then, the legislative branch of this County? I'm tired, we've been giving a lot to
department heads' authority for face to face . .(inaudible). . We've been giving a lot of
authority away, you know. Comes a point where do we really need us if we're gonna give
everything away? That's not what the people wanted in the creation of a Charter form local
governance. And that's why the ruling from the courts has been that the Council is and has
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shown to be making the appropriate decisions for this County. So, you know, I think if we get
back to the role and why this process is so critical. Chairman, is this is our basic hammer for
control and appropriations of the money that we do every year and the auditing we do on
compliance. This is the strength of the Council. And I for one do not feel we should be
decreasing our authority at any point in time. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions, Members? Okay, we'll move into another
area. Who.. .Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Since one of the things I was gonna talk about was the
Environmental Health Specialist, the other one I was gonna talk about was the, the deletion of
the curbside recycling in Maui Meadows. Why did you pick Maui Meadows, just out of
curiosity?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: I believe it was to get a good combination of having green waste and just participation
and expected participation and recyclables. just to have a good combination versus picking
somewhere where there wouldn't be any green waste and such.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay-MR. GINOZA: We're pretty flexible on that. We basically tried to pick an area and certain routes so
it's not only Maui Meadows but there, there are a. a few routes outside of Maui Meadows in the
Kihei area. But it's roughly half of the South Maui area that we would accommodate.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So if you...if...for...if we were able to get curbside recycling back in,
of these three expansion positions. Laborer I, Landfill Attendant, Refuse Collector, are any of
those involved in the curbside recycling program?
MR. GINOZA: No, they're not.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, so-MR. GINOZA: Oh. they-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: ...You would do it with existing staff?
MR. GINOZA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, and, and one last thing. I guess I will go back to the
Environmental Health Specialist.. .your Assistant Division Chief, isn't that a function that that
person might be able to do, since we're trying to tighten our belts and do additional functions?
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MR. GINOZA: I'm, I'm not sure if he would. Basically we look at it as a full-time job in...in and of
itself because look at the amount of regulatory compliances necessary just to keep the landfills
up to snuff as well as those other systems. So that was part of the challenge up to now is we
tried to distribute the workload to existing staff but looking at what their existing workloads
were. you know, it's kind of, kind of patchwork on. on trying to keep that side of it together.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Thank you. Director Ginoza. So, yeah, my
question is in regards to the curbside recycling program. I...there...I heard concerns in regards
to it not being quite really ready to go so to speak. Is that true? Are we, are we up and ready to
go if appropriations are made?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: We are, we are ready in a sense of...we can't really go forward on concrete measures
until we get funding. So, for instance, we just had preliminary discussions with.. .you know, just
more verbal discussions with„ like unions and such. And as well as we couldn't.. .we haven't
ordered carts, you know, for, for these residences. But we're looking at, should there be
appropriation for the pilot program, that we would begin more serious discussions with the union
as well as...it'll probably take on order of one to two months to, to get...probably a month...to
get the carts. So that's why I believe I had mentioned that it would be on the October timeframe
that we'd start the program just looking at ordering the carts, making sure that we're okay as far
as our workforce with the union. I mean I think I'd mentioned that the, the pickups would be
pretty much the same for staff. It's just a matter of what they're picking up. So, you know,
their, their scheduling would be pretty much exactly the same as it is now. But it's just that
instead of taking everything to the landfill, you know, on the recyclables days they, they take it
to the private MRF or on the green waste days they will take it to the green waste portion of the
landfill. So we don't anticipate very much heartache with, with our staffing as far as that. But
it's just the logistics of getting the carts and as well as issuing a contract for the materials
recovery facility. So outside of that, I would say that we're ready. I mean we're ready to the
point that we can be without actually having funding available.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. I understand you folks were gonna drop that word, using that
word, pilot, and just say program.
MR. GINOZA: Oh. okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, you know, I mean as I was told by Stacia from my Tour De
Trash. And also the, the MRF contract that's in negotiations. I guess, is there a.. .particular
company that you're looking to utilize at this point or is that up for the bidding process?
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MR. GINOZA: No, it would be a formal RFP process and I believe they're two providers currently on
island that have that capability but that's not to say that others would not be interested in
possibly starting something up. But that will go through a actual RFP process that we will have
to go through.
COLTNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And one follow up. And also, I think in the discussions of bringing
this out, talking about curbside, there already is an existing company that does the curbside in, in
particular Maui Meadows. And I think it was said that you folks aren't, you know, into putting
anybody out of business, per se, but don't you think this would impact their business that they're
already doing, this curbside recycling presently there?
MR. GINOZA: Possibly. The, the... I think it's--I forget already--Maui Disposal?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Maui Recycling Service.
MR. GINOZA: Yeah. They have curbside recycling to those who wanna pay for it and-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
MR. GINOZA: --it's a matter of.. .yeah, I'm not sure what, what the impact would be to them if the
County did do a program like that in that area. That's a good question.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Has, has your Department looked into maybe putting the
whole thing out as.. into an RFP 'cause I did.. .when I lived in Maui Meadows, I did use those
guys and they did a good job. Have you looked at putting that whole service out into an RFP as
opposed to incorporating it into our current structure?
MR. GINOZA: When you say the whole service, you mean instead of having a, a small portion to begin
with, just have it island wide or...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Or even a small portion. For instance. Maui Meadows, put out for an
RFP, what would it cost to do curbside recycling out there versus doing it in house?
MR. GINOZA: Oh. having...supplementing a private provide.. .I'm not, I'm not sure what, what the
division had done in terms of that. Yeah, it was more a matter of we had two.. .twice a week
trash pickup service and we thought we could incorporate it into our current system because we,
we felt that, you know, lot of people don't have.. .utilize that twice a week trash service to its
capacity. Yes. I'm not sure how much interaction with.. or how much investigation into
supplementing a private service there had been.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Maybe it's something that you need to follow up.
MR. GINOZA: Sure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: To see, you know, is it more efficient to have a private business do the
recycling than the County itself? So, you know. just do an analysis in regards to curbside
recycling. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. Mr. Chair. I don't know how much coverage the... current
recycling company has in Maui Meadows but it sounds to me like if we've got a private provider
that may be we, we don't want to invest the money in it ourselves. The other question that
comes to my mind is how many areas throughout Maui County do we have twice a week trash
pickup and how many areas have once a week?
MR. GINOZA: Almost everywhere on Maui there's twice a week with the automated. I know there's a
couple of areas that's one-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, so that's, that's the automated service, not the-MR. GINOZA: The manual.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Not the manual. And is manual once a week in every place that it's in,
in place?
MR. GINOZA: not sure if, if we look at the rates and fees, I mean on the...I, I just don't recall
offhand but we basically charge half like I think, I think to Lanai because on Lanai we only pick
up once a week. I don't, I don't know offhand if like Hana we only do once a week.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: What is the, what is the rate do you charge Maui Meadows, for
example?
MR. GINOZA: The same as everyone else. I think it's $18 a month for trash pickup.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And we're picking up twice a week because the containers won't handle
it?
MR. GINOZA: What do you mean?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Once a week, it would've.. .1 get trash pickup once a week. And I'm
fine with that. My question is, if, you know, if, if we're going from manual once a week.. .if
we've gone from manual once a week to automated twice a week and you shared with us I
believe a couple of...in your earlier presentation that it's actually costing us a lot of money to
move to automated and the automated was to help eliminate workers comp concerns and, and
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that type of thing. So I'm, I'm just...I just assumed since I had once a week service_ everybody
else had once a week service.
MR. GINOZA: Oh, no-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And I'm.. .1 can manage with once a week but...
MR. GINOZA: Oh, yeah_ we just have had.. .traditionally have had twice a week pick up service so-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: How rude! We paying the same taxes.
MR. GINOZA: . . .(Chuckles). . . Where do you live?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And the, and the same rate.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Olinda Road.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Olinda Road.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, maybe I can explain a little bit more. 'cause...from when I remember negotiations
and, and issues with the switching over from the manual trash pick up to the automated trash
pickup, one of the issues is that, as a manual pick up customer you are allowed to have six cans
or six bags, rieht, of trash. And the size of the automated carts is, is quite a bit less than that and
basically about three bags worth. And so to compensate for that reduction and ability to pick up
the_ the trash, the six bags to three bags and one can, they moved to twice a week pick up. And
that has issues with the capacity of the cart itself and then also the, the equipment and the
strength of the arm to pick up that much and the people rolling carts, a whole bunch of different
issues. That's why they moved to. to twice a week. I think that's.. .for the Mayor's, you know,
concern about this, you know, pick up...switching to, I guess not a pilot program but starting a
recycling.. .you know, curbside recycling program is that we're gonna be reducing the amount of
trash, you know, with, with I guess the real term of trash is, that's being picked up to what can fit
in once a week. And the other items that we'll be picking up_ the recycled items on one day
every other week and the green waste on the other day every other week really will, will benefit
the community in that there's gonna be less need for landfill space. Eventually one of the
projects that we're asking for here is more landfill space and so we wanna make sure that we're,
we're doing that to reduce, you know, demand reduction on the landfill basically.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
MR. BAZ: You know, you always hear demand reduction on electricity, this is demand reduction on
landfill. So those are kinda the concerns that we wanna make sure... we're trying to_ to start the
process to move forward and how we would address the type of trash that we're picking up and
the amount we pick up and, and the frequency.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you_ Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, any more questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Real quick. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa first followed by Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much. Chair. And I don't want to beat this to death.
It's not my style. But because this is the first program that we're digging into and I think all the
rest we're gonna ask the same questions so if we have answers now, it may save us a lot of time
as we move on. But I had thought I had it very straight when J asked the question about moving
the position and the money coming to that department as a result of a budget amendment. I was
okay. Then I remember Hokama's statement and it kinda left it dangling. So I wanna know, is
the budget amendment process allowable or not allowable?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel?
MS. HEELY: It is allowable.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And so there is no problem with the Charter?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel?
MS. HEELY: There is a Charter provision that discusses certain limitations upon written requests of the
Mayor of any unencumbered appropriation balance and the transferability of that. So that's in
Section 9-10 but the bottom line is in regards to the appropriations and allowing budget
amendments, having Council actions for those to be appropriated of the funds of the transfers
that's within the discretion of the Council. So budget amendments are allowable. But I do see a
small issue in regards to the Charter provision that we talked.. .that I just quoted and so I guess it
would be case by case analysis when it comes up and, and how the Administration requests the
budget amendment and if that's doable or not.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. BAZ: If I might...you know, I, I, I...I think understand Member Hokama's statement regarding the
Administration putting.. .1 don't know about undue.. .but extra work onto the Council when it
comes to doing budget amendments every time we would want to create or move a position
between departments and then have to go move the money and, and all that. It could create a
voluminous amount of work. And the other...I, I just feel compelled to express, you know, on
behalf of the Administration the concern of the Charter itself and what powers and duties are
assigned to the Council in, you know, Title 3, 6 and 8 and then also the powers and duties
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assigned to the Mayor in Section 7 and 5. And I guess the, the ability that the Mayor has to
i mplement the budget and manage the County and the restriction that something like this may
have on the management of the operations of the County and moving back and forth. I
understand the reason why you're, you're.. .you know, the Council has suggested this process
but I also just feel that like, like I said. I need to express to you the concern that the
Administration would have on being able to fill out its responsibilities in. in its
Chartered.. .powers, duties and functions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, it's still confusing but it's a little bit better. Thank you. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Mr. Director, my, my assumption or guess would be that for the most
part when there's a vacancy created that the...this generally just remain...you know, that single
budget is gonna remain intact. There's not gonna.. you're not gonna be coming to us with a
budget amendment because there's enough of a spread in most program budgets that you can
accommodate, that you can accommodate adjustments and schedules and so forth. Do you see
coming back to us with a lot of budget amendments or a couple?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, especially for the proposed expansion positions, if, you know, the support for the
additional Engineering Section construction team is there, you know, in theory. But you just
want us to find, you know. the EP counts from someplace else, we could, you know,
theoretically find five EP counts from other departments. But the Engineering Section itself
doesn't have the capacity to absorb five more salaries within its department.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right, I understand.
MR. BAZ: And so that would require a budget amendment. And the same thing for the Environmental
Management Administration program to add the funding for the Environmental Health
Specialist. If they're fully staffed now, nobody leaves, but they need this to fulfill their
requirements, then we would have to come to you for a budget amendment for that.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right. So we're not giving up fiscal control?
MR. BAZ: No, you're not giving up fiscal control. Like I mentioned it's. it's restricting our ability to
manage as we see fit. Or, or if you're gonna make the decision of whether or not you support
this position, make that clear that that position is supported through the funding efforts and give
us the opportunity to move EP counts. So, you know, if you do support this Environmental
Health Specialist but want us to find an EP count from a different program that we could
temporarily transfer, then appropriate the money for it and so that we can transfer the EP. It
would save a few steps and it, it would also allow us to be able to move forward without having
to come back for a budget amendment.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I still like the budget amendment. Tighter control. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman. I, I, find it.. .1 don't know why we.. you know, I find this to be a
very simple thing. And let me just give, give my, my quick historic perspective. The Charter is
clear and previous. . .(inaudible). . .have always done transfers. A lot of times it's temporary
transfers between departments, okay. But normally, it's, it's not a permanent position 'cause to
do this, you need the budget amendment. You gotta change EP count plus shift money if that is
what the departments want. But the Council does not, I would say, hinder the Administration's
ability to manage. If anything, we expect them to be managing better. So this issue about
amendments and what not to me.. .1 mean, come on, let's be real. Let's look historically what
has come before Council, almost nothing, okay. Because they wanna keep their flexibility,
Chair. If not, let's go back and manage the way we want with the, the specific details, okay.
And we can go that route, route. too. It's gonna take us a hell of a long time to deal with the
budget but, you know, we used to do it that way before, line items every single one page. You
know, that's fine with us, Chair. I think what, what, what we should just make clear, Chairman,
is the money is within purview of Council. Anytime you need to shift monies, it's gotta come
before Council.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But positions. the Administration has full control over shifting, making
temporary assignments, whatever the wanna do to, to manage. Plus, Chairman, lucky it takes us
two months to do one budget amendment. By the time Personnel is gonna put an issue out for a
job opening, do the recruitment and anything else, it's gonna take more than six months. So I
don't know what the problem is about length of time or anything else that Council is required to
do to make things happen administratively for a position transfer. The problem is always gonna
be with the Admin and the departments that make it happen, not the Council. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for that comment in regards to filling in a position
and, and yes, it normally takes about six months to fill in a position and we know that. Okay,
Members, any more questions for the Department? Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. but I wanted to get back to recycling.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. So this.. .curbside recycling, will you folks be taking glass
there? Is that part of it?
MR. GINOZA:
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No. We.. .1 was trying to look through these pages that we have
some kind of glass recovery program or in the.. .T forgot what section it was in. And if I...what
that is? I think there's monies appropriated somewhere in our budget for a glass recovery
program or...of some kind. Mr. Takamine, maybe you know? Am I correct?
MR. GINOZA: I have Tracy Takamine, Solid Waste Division Chief. here.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
MR. TAKAMINE: To answer the question, there, there's actually two programs. We get a grant from
the State for the non-H15 glass recovery. So in other words all the glass that's brought in to the
State is charged some kind of surcharge. You talking wine bottles, beer bottles and, and they get
reimbursed or.. .1 don't know the exact process but that's, that's a State program. And then we
have the HI5 program that they get the nickel back by taking it back to the HI5 sites. That's also
run by the State. In terms of the County, we have.. .if you go to a recycle centers we have glass
containers and those are most times non-H15 recycled glass. They throw glass, glass bottles in
there and residents are allowed to deposit it in these containers that are just recycled through our
program.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. So no glass with our curb...curbside recycle. Is that the-MR. TAKAMINE: Well, curbside.. .they. they do.. .they have different options. In the mainland they
have municipalities that take everything. In fact. I think Honolulu takes everything. They throw
glass in one container. Everything goes in one container but it contaminates the cardboard in
particular. So we have decided that we're not gonna have glass mixed in our recycled.. .the blue
containers that I showed you but we will be continuing to take glass at the recycle centers.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions-MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair? Oh„.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for the Department?
MR. GINOZA: Oh,
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: Can I...since, since I have Tracy here. I wanted to be able to address your question
about why we didn't go to a.. .and look at supplementing a private? He can address that. But
one thing I was thinking is we, we looked at it being two components. The collection of the
recyclables as well as the processing. So the reason I thought it would be cheaper by
doing.. .having the County do it is we're utilizing existing resources on the, on the collection side
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which would not cost the County any more. And on the, on the materials recovery side, we're
going for a competitive bid that a private entity would, would help to implement for us. And so
if you look at us trying to supplement somebody else, it'd be really to do the material recovery as
well as the collection. So I, I thought it'd just be more but Tracy can answer that rather than
have it hanging.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
MR. TAKAMINE: Well, first of all. the. the first.. .first phase that we're gonna do, we looked at doing
Maui Meadows in South Maui, a section of South Maui. The reason why we picked that is that's
one route. Okay, that's.. .one route, one driver, one truck. And, and it was easier to implement it
with one. one area with one truck and one driver. The question about whether it's cheaper to
have a private business do it, you know, we. we didn't do a study or really do an in-depth
analysis of that. But if we do it. the County does it, we're currently doing the program set where
we pick up twice a week. So that driver that's gonna do that route will be running down that
route anyway. If we go and say, for example. that we're gonna have a private business do the
recycling, that means he doesn't have that second pick up. Then, you know, what's he gonna do
for that second pick up? We still have, we still have him on our payroll, we still have the
vehicles so our cost of services still gonna be there. We might save some fuel if he doesn't go
out for the second route but what're we going to do with that individual? We might have to
reduce our staffing if we don't have enough work for the individual. And the volume that's
involved I don't believe the private business would be able to.. .handle it because the main
purpose of doing curbside recycling is to change people's mindset of how to dispose of trash.
We're gonna force them basically to recycle by giving them a one-time pick up for trash versus
the second pick up for recycling. So we need to still provide the same service because, you
know, it's the same amount of trash. It's just that they're gonna start training them and teaching
them to separate their trash but we'll, we'll still come by and pick up the trash twice a week.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And, and possibly it, you know, this is getting
really down into another committee's work but this is the life of that program so I'm wondering
if maybe we can... if we decide to take this out right now, immediately bring it up in
Ms. Cochran's committee. Otherwise we can go on all day on, on-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, no, yeah-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But I have equal questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We get till 12 o'clock.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter). .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 'Cause I do, I do have more questions if we can continue on with that.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, on the recycling,. if, if you're.. .1 know you wanna train people's
way of putting out the trash. The problem is now you've got glass where they.. .everybody
considers it recycling and they're gonna...it...I mean it's a whole new can of worms with glass
is gonna start going in the landfill and things is gonna get little crazy. So I think this. this is
somethini-.., that needs to really be discussed in, in the Infrastructure Management Committee.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. I agree. Thank you. Any more questions for the Department at this
ti me?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No questions for Solid Waste but I'd like to go into the other half of
Environmental Management.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Mr. Ginoza, you know, I'm really trying to work on
appropriating some monies in regards to our treatment facilities. And so I just need to ask you if
those monies are there, would... is your Department ready to move forward in the upgrade...you
know, upgrading of Kahului Treatment Facility at this point? Would you be able to move
forward on a project there?
MR. GINOZA: We'd be.. .we'd have to do the design first and then be going into construction. But, I
mean we've done the preliminary planning as we discussed in the Central Maui recycled water
verification study.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
MR. GINOZA: But pretty much we'd have to do the design of having the. the UV channels in and then
work from there. But as far as the plant upgrades, we can't just, you know, if you appropriated
the money this budget session , we wouldn't be able to start construction this year. I mean we'd
have to go through the design first. So, so.. .1 guess what are you asking? If we can construct it
right away or-COLTNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, if we could utilize the money within this budget and not
having any monies lapse and all that.
MR. GINOZA: We could.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. GINOZA: But it'd be for design rather than construction.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And what about for Lahaina? Would you be ready to sort of
go and... 'cause I know you're in the design planning stage right now.
MR. GINOZA: Yeah, so for Lahaina as I mentioned prior, we have a proposal and we're trying to get
into contract with a design consultant and we expect that to last a year. So, you know, unless we,
we don't get the money from the private entity, we're looking at being able to complete that with
non-County funding. So.. .and that would be for modification of the existing UV channels and
trying to add two more. So that would cover the expansion in Lahaina. It would just be if this
body would like to pursue additional expansion or development at Central...the Central Maui
plant. But Lahaina, we're on schedule as far as having, having a proposal and as I kinda
mentioned last time, we sent it to Intrawest for review just a couple of weeks ago.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. So it sounds like it is quite doable at this point.
MR. GINOZA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Move these projects forward.
MR. GINOZA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, great. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any more questions? Thank you, Kyle, for being here this morning.
MR. GINOZA: Oh. thank you. Good luck.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members. You've heard all of the--well, this morning you provided a
lot of questions to both Kyle as well as Mr. Takamine in regards to the Department of
Environmental Management area. Other than the overtime, anybody has more questions?
Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, maybe on overtime, if maybe we can make it more specific. I
think might be helpful for us to analyze if we can get the overtime by positions? Is it in the
Laborer III's component or is it in the clerical component? I mean, you know, maybe we might
be able to get a better understanding of how, how this overtime is being utilized by, by the
positions that it's coming from.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I, J don't know if it's gonna be time-consuming but we, we do have the
Department's overtime total with us that was given to us.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I mean, you know, we gotta calculate the payroll anyway, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What's that?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We gotta calculate payroll and we, we get the. . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
No, yeah, understand, understand.
But I don't know...the task.
Mr. Budget Director, can we get that information? . .(Luughs). . .
MR. BAZ: Excuse me. Mr. Chair. I was actually kind of just looking at the Finance Director to be able
to get that information by each individual employee and what the classification is of that
employee and how they-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We don't need the, the names. We're just saying, you know, if it's in
Admin, you know, if it's EM class, just say EM class. If it's.. .you know. in your blue.. .you
know, UPW unit, it's like, you know, unit whatever. If if it's HGEA, Unit 3, just put Unit 3, ten
employees, X amount of dollars.
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I don't need names.
MR. BAZ: Right. We could probably get aggregate numbers by unit. But then that wouldn't be by
department. Maybe Finance Director, if you don't mind. Mr. Chair, could-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. You know, we do have a handout. It, it doesn't go by... it goes by
program actually and not individual areas in that particular program. But we do have that
number with us.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's what I would want to do is if we could get a
department because Mr. White. I agree with him. You know, if you're talking Environmental
Management or Wastewater or Water Supply, those essential. Police, Fire„.I mean they have
different dynamics than maybe, excuse me. Finance or Budget. yeah. I mean throughout the year
Finance and Budget not going get call outs. And, you know, so when they putting in
overtime...so again, maybe if we could hear from one department or two departments that are
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mostly, I guess. admin and that way we get a better understanding, you know, of what these
departments need this overtime for. If they're. „if really a necessary...I think that's what I'd like
to see. I'm not sure what others wanna see but that, to me. is what I wanna see is a few
departments like Environmental Management and those departments that have all these different
dynamics consistently happening so their overtime probably accrues a lot quicker than maybe
Finance or somebody else. During budget session maybe Finance but other than that-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, we'll, we'll try to get that information-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --if it's possible. The other thing, other than the overtime in regards to the
Department of Environmental Management, anybody got concerns on the deletion of the
vehicles?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, Chair. I do.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, let... let's hear it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, well, okay. As you heard from Mr. Ginoza, I heard this
loud and clear, some of my vehicles are ten years old or so. It takes a year, year and a half to
come, a new one, if we ordered it today-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let me stop you right there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Specialized vehicles, we not.. .you know, it's not being considered for cut at
this time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Only the sedans, trucks, you know, smaller type utility vehicles.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Utility vehicles.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, what you see on Page No.-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's all the utility vehicles, nothing else?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 'Cause Mr. Ginoza had mentioned, and we talking about the
truck-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, the specialized stuff, no, not being touched.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, if that's the case, then I, I have no problem with that.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Okay, anybody else get problems with other than the overtime
on...Department of Environmental Management?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair, I would, I would like to think that we could revisit the, the
specialized vehicles if we need to at a later time. I agree with your cuts of all the, the smaller
vehicles. I think that's a responsible thing to do until we get a handle on the overall, the overall
inventory.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. As far as your concern is the specialized vehicles for Environmental
Management.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Specifically the, the, the flatbed truck if they're not going to be doing
any recycling. I'm, Pm not sure that they need that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: The big.. .the automated trucks, they're asking for three. They currently
have three backups, one for each division that is doing it so maybe, maybe they can do with one
or maybe they can do with two. I'm not sure that it's necessary to go for all three.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: This year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yep. Mr. Hokama?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I would just ask if maybe from you, I would consent to might be
Ms. Cochran's committee. but I think, you know, I, I know it's gonna take more time than we
have to finish this budget but I think it comes to this point now since we're on this specific
subject, universal trash pickup impact on real property taxation because if we wanna talk about
personnel counts and positions like we...discussing for this department. then maybe that's
something that the appropriate standing committee can prepare for next budget because
potentially one of the savings if we go universal is that we're gonna have to change the amount
of people we have in the collections component. And that might be potential future savings or
elimination of certain type of components that we currently use by doing it the same old, same
way. So maybe as a consideration of universal, there's also some additional advantages. And
they might be disadvantages. I think we need to be fair and look at both sides of the...ledger-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --at the appropriate time. But I think we need to discuss and-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --prepare for next budget session. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So we'll send something out in regards to that.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, in response to-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: --Mr. White's request about the vehicle, the truck, I think, was deleted in your proposed
budget. The flatbed truck.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The flatbed truck.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So it's gonna be only that trash pick-up truck, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, so other than that--oh, other than the overtime that we need to revisit,
everything is okay?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yep.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Yeah, before we take on the Finance Department, Chair is gonna call
for five-minute recess. To take care of our needs. This meeting is in recess. We'll reconvene at
11:35. . . (gavel). .
RECESS:

11:31 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11:38 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
.(gavel).
The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, we do have Mr. Agsalog here. the Director for Finance. Members, there
were some questions in regards to.. .most of the questions are in regards to.. premium, Premium
Pay. We can start off with Mr. Couch since you and Mr. White had issues on the Premium Pay.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You know, I, I've heard about the Environmental Management and the type of
information you guys requesting. I don't know if you guys going request the same kind of
information for Finance Department but, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I was looking at Financial Services Programs
and the Premium Pay there. What, what it consisted of and my bigger thing on that Financial
Service Program was adding, adding the two limited term appointment positions for the RPT
Division to go after people who are cheating on their taxes. That's kind of what...why I asked
for that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh. I see. So yours would be adding positions to the Finance Department to
go after those. These, these would be limited term.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, LTAs. Three-year LTA.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And if they, if they turned out that they can raise a couple million
dollars a year, then certainly make 'em full-time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And then you, you had questions on overtime? No?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No. that.. .my question was in the Financial Services Program part.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: All you had to, to bring up was reduced Premium Pay so that's why I
said.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I. I concur with Councilmember Couch's
interest in adding two positions to help go after the people that have basically been avoiding
paying the appropriate level of tax. Just the estimate on the number of homeowner exemptions
that may not be what...homeowner exemptions that aren't actually homeowners is somewhere in
the neighborhood of 2,800 individuals out of 26,000 homeowners. So that's, that's a significant
amount of money that we are allowing people to, to keep in their pockets when everybody else is
being expected to pay the appropriate amounts. That along with the number of
condominiums.., and this is, and this is not, not something new. These are things we have
known all along. And I know we have added positions in the past but I feel strongly that if. if we
can increase revenues without increasing taxes, then, then we should be willing to spend, you
know, step up to the plate and add positions where they're going to generate revenues as opposed
to using revenues.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions? Member Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Not really a question but oh, what will allow me to want to support this
is first of all the additional revenue. Secondly, the limitation on this being LTAs because I'm
very concerned about, you know, long-term commitments. We're finding out what they cost us.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: If I could—oh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'd just like to make a comment. In the last two budget cycles, we've added
six positions to this particular area. Real Property Tax area. And all six positions are full-time
positions. So we've added a lot in the Real Property Tax Division. But if you feel that we need
to add LTAs to capture approximately almost $3 million, then, you know, that's something that
we can.. .you know, we'll consider.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And, and again, I was a part of the, the, that Council
that those Council Members that added those six positions because the Department had come to
us and said. please add these positions and we can take care of collections, appeals, all these
different entities that had been lagging for a long time. And a lot of that as we have seen. and in
fact the tremendous drop in appeals. I would've believed now, Mr. Agsalog, you know, you
gotta talk to the Department, these people now may have less to do in those areas and maybe
now can focus on these other areas. Limited Term, I don't care what we add. We add positions.
Now if they can do the same job and we just said we should be doing more with less, well, this is
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the opportunity to prove government can do it. We gain six positions and if I believe correctly,
most of those six. if not all six, have been filled. So now I leave it up to.. .your Departments. the
Finance and, and the Department of Real Property, to take those...positions and use 'em maybe
in the area of justification, collections, whatever word you wanna use, so that we don't have to
spend a lot more money. And still collect those monies that are truly due to the people of Maui
County. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Maybe a questions for...question for Mr. Agsalog. In the last two
years we added six positions. All the positions filled?
MR. AGSALOG: Yes. Mr. Chair, except for the Clerk for the Board of Review. Let me just take this
opportunity, Mr. Chair, to really thank you for the support that you have given to the collection
of the real property tax. I can brag to you this morning that due to the effort that the division has
done and we have a scheduled tax sales that's coming up. May 24 th . We started with 31 that's
supposed to be for sale. We're now down to 11. So I think that's a very good accomplishment
by itself. Our division has been very assertive and aggressive in going to collect those
delinquencies. As Mr. Victorino mentioned that the appeals has gone down tremendously and
that's due to the, the training that our appraisers has gone through. And I will ask you again.
Mr. Chair, to keep us funded in training those people because that's very, very important. And
such as I'm here now, Mr. Chair, I know you guys been very good to our department, Finance,
but the proposed 12,000, if you guys can restore it because I could see already my first four
months in the Department, there's so much that we can do to improve the challenges that we
have especially in the service centers that we have right now. I have seen the, the turnovers of
of employees there and the training is necessary, Mr. Chair. Therefore, I'm, I'm, I'm asking you
if you can restore that part because I know you guys have been very, very prudent from last year
and in, in your funding for the department. They have done well but there's so much more that
we could do in efficiency as well as in servicing the community because as we...as I speak here
this.. .morning, Mr. Budget Director here just sent me one more complaint as far as
the...our...hours of operation on our satellite offices. And I have been working with our
divisions to enhance our services to the public because I, I believe that if we provide value to
them, the people don't mind paying. That's, that's my belief, Mr. Chair. And if we can satisfy
their needs, I think they are.. .willing to pay. That's my request, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I have a question for you. I know Real Property Tax
Administrator Scott Teruya's been dogging two, two bills that would support the County. And
the one that I was interested in in regards to the appeals process. Would you know the status of
if it did go through or not in regards to having the County take first crack on the appeals prior to
going to the, the appeals area in the State?
MS. NEELY: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
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MS. HEELY: If I may, I can doublecheck on that. I know our office did support that
proposed...legislation as well but Fil look it up really quick.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine, thank you. Okay, Members, Mr. White, questions for
Mr. Agsalog?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yes, one of the questions I had you were kind enough to provide me
with the information on the, the way you arrived at the estimated cost for workers comp for the
2012 Budget. And. and I'm interested in understanding better how, how we're doing with this
fiscal year on workers comp and whether you would support a reduction in the workers comp
line item. My concern is that the department managers never...I'm not sure that they ever see
this particular cost. I know they don't see it on their, their financial statements but the amount of
roughly $1.200 per employee seems quite, quite high. And I'm wondering since this does not
include the wage component, can you share with us what the, what the
wages...wage...component is of the workers comp? How much would we add to the
$3.2 million to accommodate for the wages that are paid directly? Its my understanding the, the
wage portion of workers comp is paid out of the departmental budgets.
MR. AGSALOG: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. AGSALOG: I, I do not have that breakdown at the moment. I can provide you that though. I'll, I
will get i from the.. .my specialist and provide you that breakdown of the information,
Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And...thank you. And. Chair, my, my interest in reducing workers
comp is that I feel we need to give department managers and the Administration a target to hit
because again this is one of those costs that can just continue to escalate. And workers comp is
set up that if, if you have employees that want to take advantage of this system, it's easy to do.
And so I'd, I'd like to make sure that we're implementing effective safety programs and
protecting our employees on the front end and then making sure we're bird dogging the, the
people that are out on workers comp and make sure that they're legitimately out. So that, that's
my reason for the...$1.2 million reduction.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. White. Just to let you know when I first got elected, that was
my number one priority, reducing.. .workers compensation issues. Any more questions,
Members, at this time? Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Agsalog. if you could find out from your department
head from Mr. Teruya, if the, the additional, I think, two people were.. .two or three people were
added to reduce the backlog of appeals. Now that the backlog of appeals is done, what are they
doing now? And can they be moved, those two or three people--I think it was three actually--to,
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to go after the other stuff or are they maintaining the, the backlog...I mean keeping the backlog
of appeals down full-time?
MR. AGSALOG: I can get you that information, Mr. Chair. I know that we still have some work with
the backlog. I know this year is a lot lower, the appeals. But we still be...doing a lot of those
review.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. Well, it went down from 2.600 to 700 so that's, that's a whole
lot less and so those folks if that's all that they did was to bring that down and they have nothing
left to do. those can handle that...the additional two that we're requesting.
MR. AGSALOG: I can-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: If you could-MR. AGSALOG: --discuss it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --double check with your staff, I would appreciate that.
MR. AGSALOG: Mr. Chair, I can discuss it with-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine, thank you.
MR. AGSALOG: -- Mr. Teruya.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. One more question before we take our lunch break. Any more
questions for Mr. Agsalog in regards to any issues in the Real Property Tax Division? If not,
we're gonna take our lunch recess early and then when we get back, we'll have Mr. Agsalog still
here, be here.
MS. HEELY: And Chair, just quickly.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. HEELY: I did research the Senate Bill 34 .-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay, thank you.
MS. HEELY: --related to tax appeals and that did pass on May 3 r1 , so just recently. So it passed final
readings.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you very much. I think it's gonna help the County, okay,
big time. Okay, the Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now in recess and we'll
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reconvene at 1:30 and we'll continue with Mr. Agsalog. Thank you, Danny. This meeting is in
recess... . (gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

11:53 a.m.
1:32 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now in session.
Members, we still have Mr. Agsalog over here. And I understand that he needs to leave at
2 o'clock. And we do have Mr. Scott Teruya that will be taking his place.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter). .
MR. AGSALOG: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. AGSALOG: I misspoke a while ago. I mentioned that we haven't hired the last person but
according to our RPT, we have hired last month.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh. okay, good.
MR. AGSALOG: So we, we don't have vacancies on those positions-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. AGSALOG: --that you have given us so I'm sorry I misspoke. I thought it's still in the process.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Maybe we can have Mr. Teruya come up over here because the subject
that we're talking about is LTAs, yeah. And I just wanna ask Mr. Teruya, you know, where
we're at as far as collections and the need for two LTAs. And I, I just wanna make sure that
when we move forward on any hiring that the existing manpower that he has.. .cause we, we
added six, you know...what is their workload? And if the workload is such that, you know. it's
reducing then, you know, we gotta weigh in as far as an...LTA positions or provide additional
overtime to the department. I don't know which is more cheap, less cost to the County. But,
Mr. Teruya?
MR. TERUYA: Thank you, Chair. Members. I just wanna go back and identify the positions that the
County did afford us in the last two fiscal years. In the...the current fiscal year, in FY '11, the
Council was so generous to provide us with a Delinquent Tax Collector to primarily work on the
tax sale and the reinstitution of the, the tax sales, annual tax sales. There're two Evaluation
Analysts positions that were added to primarily work on the appeals, the, the backlog. As I had
mentioned to you last, last fiscal year, we were somewhere in the neighborhood of around 5,600
appeals and I believe the funds on abeyance were somewhere in about $31 million. And the last
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position was an additional Commission Support Clerk as this body had identified the possible
creation of a second Board of Review. It also would have alleviated the current Commission
Support Clerk to have alternate schedules to have their own hearing every other week. In the
previous fiscal year. FY '10, the...this body...the previous body actually...provided us with two
Cashier positions and these positions were identified as necessary due to our existing Delinquent
Tax Collectors not being able to do their primary function of working on delinquent accounts.
So what, what this does... did was we had existing Delinquent Tax Collectors that never worked
on their work because of the.. .just the annual duties of collecting taxes. So in FY '10 the
addition of the Cashiers allowed the Delinquent Collectors to work on our tax sale program.
Okay, then on FY '11 we added a third Collector so now we have three Collectors that only work
on delinquent accounts. And this is a direct relationship of the reduction in, in the delinquent
accounts. Okay, the two Evaluation Analysts positions that came on, I think you all know that,
you know, we didn't have them for the entire 12 months. They are still going.. .undergoing
training. In fact. this week they are in training as well. But this did alleviate staff time from the
other technical officers to work with myself on the most.. .the largest appeals that we had on
record. So, for instance, this fiscal year we actually went to Tax Appeal Court in a hearing
which resolved about 1.000 cases with, with one of our properties. So these are the items that
allowed other people to do their primary job as, as it existed. I'm not saying that we were
understaffed but I'm just saying that it allowed people to get back to their current positions. In
the current fiscal year, I believe what you guys are talking about is whether or not we are
adequately staffed because the appeals have gone down. We currently.. our. our books show
1.850 appeals. That goes back from current and maybe two years. That delinquency or that
funds in abeyance after they pay is about $10 million. Will we get it.. .get through it this fiscal
year, that is our goal. We still do not have control over.. .an appellant choosing to go to the next
level which is the Tax Appeal Court level. So even though we hear them at the local level, they
still have that option to go to Tax Appeal Court. But as far as I'm concerned, I would assume
and it is our plan that the existing personnel can get our job...done, done as we are required by
the statute and complete the appeals on a timely basis. The other...the two areas that I believe
you guys are. are looking at is the Home Exemption Program and I'm not sure if you guys have
discussed the Agriculture Program. But those were the two areas that we did not have staff to go
outside of their normal duties to, to address these issues. So I'm. I'm not sure where, Chairman,
you, you want a recommendation or what, what is my gut feeling?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, some of the Members were contemplating on hiring LTA positions to
help out in the collection of real property tax. And, you know, conversation with staff in regards
to the existing positions and, you know, the work that they do and you just mentioned that we
have reduced our appeals by quite a number. And, you know, as the workload go down, you
know, how will these two limited term positions help the Department? One of the things that,
you know, the Chair had been considering is.. .when you look at limited term position, you also
include the fringe benefits. By working overtime, you know, you don't. So the cost difference,
you know-MR. TERUYA: Right.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --which is the better way to go?
MR. TERUYA: I, I would be happy to report that this fiscal year, we, we are not in the overtime
situation. You know, maybe five years ago we ran in the excess of over 100.000 in, in overtime.
And we've progressively decreased it. You know, we are...we do not estimate to use any
overtime in a fiscal year unless we are required by some statutory deadline, like certification.
That is the only time that we would, in case that we are not able to enter all the appeals into our
system. So staff-wise as far as that is concerned, on an annual basis we do not expect nor do we
plan on using any overtime. For the LTA positions, my, my only comment to that. it is very
difficult for us to hire an LTA because the position that.. .what it's required of doing is not an
entry position so you would have to know the existing laws, the, the system and what is the
requirements of an, of the. .enforcement of a program. So going out to hire somebody off the
street, you probably will not get somebody qualified to do the job as you would want them
coming and running. So you would force probably an existing staff member to fill that position
on the LTA which would leave the position that they are leaving vacant. So we're not gaining a
body, we're just moving a person to do the job. But that is for you to decide. As I mentioned,
our current staff level, we, we are able to do what we wanna do. And if, if it's the Home
Exemption Program, you know, adding bodies is one thing but I think also coupled with bodies
is we need to look at the ordinance. I mean if we're not gonna clean up the ordinance and make
it. .some of the things be required or, you know, have a stiffer or very clear ordinance, it's hard
to enforce anything. So if you give me five bodies to. to. to go after people in Home Exemption
Program, we're still not addressing the big issue which is the ordinance. So if we clean up the
ordinance. I probably would not need as much staff members but when you do home
enforcement, you still gotta require to do certified mail. mail outs, receipt. recordkeeping
because whenever you're, you're challenged and go to court you have to provide the documents
that support your decision. So it is a recordkeeping, pretty laborious. Even though you scan,
you.. .somebody still needs to be in charge of housing that data. So if we so choose to change
the ordinance, I wouldn't be so aggressive to tell you that I would maybe need another
Evaluation Analyst, maybe I might just need another Tax Clerk just to house and record keep all
of this data. So we could, you know, do two things is change the ordinance and not require so
much personnel.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. In regards to changing the ordinance, if you can provide some draft for
this body here, not. not, not at this time though. Once we are completed with the budget. then,
you know, we can move forward, you know, amending the ordinance to support you in regards
to real property tax. Okay, I'll go right down the line. Mr. Mateo?
COLTNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. And. Mr. Teruya, thank you very much. And perhaps a
continuation of, of Chair Pontanilla's comments to you. To clean up the ordinance, more
specifically you would be referencing what exactly?
MR. TERUYA: I think the problem that we're running into right now is we, we rely so much on intent,
intent to reside. And what I found is the City has a much more efficient program whereby you
residefirst, then you receive. In other words, if you require a return...a state resident return, you
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have fulfilled a year of requirement. So it's very clear. So all we would have to really ask for is
that document. But with the intent to reside you may file a part-time owner 'cause you may have
just moved here. But.. .then we still have to follow up on the following year.
COLTNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MR. TERUYA: 'Cause I...yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No, I think, I think this, you know, the, the body is quite inexperienced
in, in addressing intent. . .(chuckles). . . So, you know, other than intent, there's... is your, is
your preference also being able to give the Department more. more power, more direct guidance?
What exactly are we, are we looking at?
MR. TERUYA: I believe if we had just required them to provide us with a state resident return, I
believe we would not be in the problem of so much compliance today. It'd be very clear. It's
either you have a return or you don't.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MR. TERUYA: Yeah, and I think that simply by requiring that, we would be able to reduce the, the
amount of work that we're doing, investigation work and lot of correspondences back and forth
even at Tax Appeal Court level because document is very clear. By. you know, voter
registration, driver's license, utility bill. I mean. you know, that.. .those things come, come fairly
easy and I think just by filing a return just identifies whether or not you're a resident and we can
very clearly check within our sister counties whether or not they file in.. .their county or not and
I think that'll shore it all up.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. Thank you. Thank you. Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I certainly would agree with Mr. Mateo but I, I think
you'll find this body receptive of making that kind of a change. No, I think all of us want people
to pay their fair share of taxes and the homeowners...the example of homeowners, the condo
owners that are not paying them.. .their fair, their correct rate and the challenges that, that the law
creates for you in ag valuations. I think are, are making it very difficult for people to feel good
about paying their...their
.
share of the taxes when we're not going after others that are clearly
getting to ride on everybody else's coattails. And as I've said in this Chamber, I' m, I' m one of
those because I get the triple benefit of ag valuation, homeowners exemption and the
homeowners rate. And I think we need to, we need to change the way that's structured. And the
valuations just in a short part of my road, two-acre parcels, one is $365,000 an acre and one is
250 and I realize that you guys have to go parcel by parcel on your valuations. And that takes
ti me so I would.. .like you can do with these.. .the homeowners. I know you have some thoughts
and we don't need to get into them now but I would certainly appreciate your presenting us with
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a way that we can organize the homeowner valuations in such a way that it's, it's much
more... it's much easier for the Department to deal with. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh. thank, thank you. Chair, and thank you. Mr. Teruya. We've
already, and it's still in, in I think your committee. Mr. Chair, Ag, and so that hopefully will
come up when we get back out of session, yeah, 'cause we worked on it last year but we didn't
have enough time to actually bring it out to the committee, yeah. So that's still waiting to, to, to
be worked on. On the other side. Mr. Teruya. also we have talked about stiffer penalties because
sometimes our penalties don't really equal up. I mean we encourage, if we... lack of a better
term, people taking advantage of the situation. And then they get caught and they go, oh, oh,
okay, okay, I'm sorry, right? And that doesn't really cut it because I think if there's intent and
there's intent and that's it, you're caught and you pay. Right now how far do we go back,
Mr. Teruya, as far as back taxes?
MR. TERUYA: Currently. the Maui County Code allows the division to go back current plus four so a
total of five years of non-compliance, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, current plus four, Chair. Maybe that's another area we
need to look at. So anyhow, you know, Mr. Teruya, body is not gonna help you...or going help
you but unless we have something that's enforceable, something that's clear cut and penalties
that will make good sense, we're just chasing the ghost again and that's wasting our time. So
again as I said earlier, you know, if your staff could help and that's another good point. LTAs in
this kind of situation isn't what you want. You want somebody who comes dedicated to this job,
would be civil service and would have longevity because this person would have a consistency
and a historic.. .background in all of this area. Isn't that true. Mr. Teruya?
MR. TERUYA: Yeah, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, nothing motivates an employee but incentives, Chair. So I would
view it differently. I think we can make a LTA position desirable. I have no problem to
structure the position description in a manner that they get a percentage of what is reclaimed
back to the County. So their, their motivation to perform is there. There'll be a compensation if
they perform, will be there. And when the job is done, there'll be gone. So, you know, it
depends how you wanna structure things, Chair, but, you know, I can see the point. But, you
know, for me I think it's smart, potential.. employees who knows there's a chance of production
equals compensation is a way to also recruit. And I think there's enough people out there that
know if they can get a percentage of what they recoup for the County and if there's millions out
there and we negotiate a, a appropriate formula and percentage, that employee gets to make a lot
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of money too which I don't have a problem. Unless we chose not to follow the capitalistic way,
Chairman.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter)...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, you know, that's my take on it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Very creative.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter).
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, that is very creative. How do we sign up for that?
.(Laughs). . Geez, I, I kind of...I agree with Mr. Hokama in that if you can do an LTA and
my thought was an LTA for three years to see if that whole.. .if that even works. I'm assuming
it's gonna work because you have numbers just off the top of your head that you can even add
more to that. So our thought.. .my thought was, look_ go LTA for three years. If you can show
that you're making, you know, two or three times your salary and our costs, then we'll. after
three years, will make it civil service_ permanent. And that, that could be an incentive just there.
My concern about going right away to civil service is... is if it doesn't work we have hard time
getting rid of that position. And if you start doing things now, you, you don't know what's
gonna happen, you're going to miss legislature and the next few legislatures with the whole
benefits package. If we can wait and see what happens in three years with the benefits package
we might be saving the County and.. .a whole lot more money. So that_ that was the.. .the intent
of the LTA for three years. And the incentive to get a permanent position with the County, I
think is a pretty good incentive not quite as much as. as a percentage of the take but that, that's
still a pretty good incentive. So that, that's what I thought when... introducing that one in my
comments. The other question is. is it may be another year before you need that position. So
you have some people right now that you might be able to start training to do that and then you
can hire in this LTA as a clerk or something like that to see if, if the position moves along then
that, who knows, that clerk can be promoted into a_ a full-time position_ permanent. Something
along those lines and if it's only one person right now. that's fine. If you say you're, you're
starting to really get organized enough so that you can have some good solid people doing the
job without having to go overtime that, that's commendable on your part.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I was gonna say something but.. .Member Cochran?
COLTNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Go ahead, Chair, if you like?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah, go. A quick one, give us a quick one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. I can see a lot of people, civil service, civil servants as Mr. Teruya had
said, you need the experience to do this, jumping up for the incentive program.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . .(Laughs). . . Yeah, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. I...just to comment, Mr. Teruya, you know, addressing
the...sort of going to the root of the problem and why we're in the situation with these tax
appeals and what have you and looking at the ordinance. So I am looking forward into figuring
out how we can redraft, reword that in order to attack it from the root, yeah, of why we are in this
predicament. So thank you for throwing that out there. Looking forward to forward discussion.
Thank you. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. And this is why it's so important to talk to the
department people because they have a totally...different perspective than we do sitting here
with a pile of papers trying to figure out what it is that you people do. But thank you for your
honest assessment and I tend to totally agree with Member Hokama. The best motivation for
employees is a good cash incentive. Cash has been verified to be the best reward employees
want. And if we could make that work, you know, I've never seen it done in civil service. I've
done it with grant writers and it works beautifully. But it might be an interesting experience.
Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I understand that. Lot of negotiations to be done. Mr. Carroll? Okay, I'll
share a story from my other job before I came here. We did have an incentive program for all of
the employees and when we started the program it was only basically management. And then we
offered it to the rank and file. For some reason, the first year they didn't agree until they saw the
benefits of management getting two or three percent from their range in. in incentive. It does
work but I don't know about government, if it, you know, it's gonna work with government.
That's another animal that probably can be talked about at a different meeting.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just. just.. .quick, quick one. You know, our sister peer in the city of
Indianapolis challenged their employees and at that time, you know, there was... the issue was
privatization. Well, they motivated the employees so much, and they're also ASCME unions
like our collective bargaining agency for our County employees. They became so good at certain
things, they went out and started bidding on private sector contracts. That's how good
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government sector became. They went and became competitive in the private sector for certain
services. And so for me. Chair, if we can get our people to that kind of level of motivation and
productivity, then we have even more options on how we wanna address County revenues. If we
can be so successful to be able to compete for certain private sector contracts, it tells about
something and again it comes down to motivation and compensation. And why wouldn't people
want nice bonuses or something if they perform and hit the marks exceedingly well? I think
that's a fair collective bargaining incentive for, for productivity and I hope we look at more
opportunities, especially with the current contract discussions going on, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama. And again from my previous experience, we
became so good in repairing vehicles that we did just that. Okay, Members. other than what you
see on Page 5. is there any more questions for... oh, there's one, transfer to the Emergency Fund.
The Mayor's proposal was... $4 million. This Chair's proposal was $3 million, a decrease of
$1 million. And. Members. this is an area that we need to discuss thoroughly on how much
money we should be putting in into the Emergency Fund. So my proposal was 3 million. So if
you guys are comfortable with that or not comfortable that, we can talk about that number as we
move forward. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You said as we move forward, are you talking right now or later?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We can talk about right now if you wanna set the number. that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I, I just wanted to talk about that. We had a testifier in Haiku, I think,
that talked about things that are happening in the world today, either natural causes or other
causes that would stop oil from coming over here and that we kinda need an Emergency Fund.
And I think if we can afford to put more in or the, the what the Mayor proposed and keep
building that fund up a little bit, it's gonna be a question of when, not if. Either tsunami hits and
cuts us off or, god forbid. a hurricane cuts us off from the rest of the, the country or the world
and we gotta be on our own for awhile. So I, I, I would rather put in at least what the Mayor says
if not more just to save for that rainy day.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I think, you know, you wanna talk about it now? It's gonna be
helpful but I think, you know, I would hope the Committee stay open and, and decide on this
number toward the end of our budget deliberations. And I think it's important we keep in mind a
broad fiscal balance between cash flow, our borrowing, our debt service and also the need to
have some sort of savings for, for the particular dreaded day that we always hope would never
happen. This is a long way from where we came from 14 years ago when we didn't have certain
funds already established through...by...that's authorized by Charter and established by Code.
We have those things in place now. We have an Emergency Fund, We're thinking about a CIP
Fund to take care of those things that don't really make it the bonding requirements, and yet it's
so sizable that it would be hard to and difficult to just have it done in one budget year to, to fund
the whole requirements of financing. So I would say that your recommendation of 3 million
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cash at this point is reasonable if we look at everything in, in the whole budget from rates and
fees to property taxes to indebtedness, to the cash flow to debt ratios. I think that's all critical in
point as well as future obligations which has to be funded by cash. And we also know operations
has to be funded by cash. So we're already limited in what we can and cannot do, Chair. But I
would say we already have taken care of some structural requirements that anytime we go before
a bonding agency company we'll be able to show how Council has structured and put monies
forth to keep this County financially sound even though in trying times. It's no mistake where
we are today, Chairman. Every Council has struggled and has kept discipline in how we've
approached spending. Now is the time not to stray. Either, yes, we have a little bit more cash
but thank goodness for that compared to the CIP requests that we know we gotta look at cash as
a method of funding it. Chairman. So I would say at this point in time I think your request is
reasonable but I would hope we finally balance it out after we make those final decisions on
capital improvements as well as our obligations on the fringe benefits. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you,. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And I concur. I think we should wait till the end and
see what...where we at and I can live with 3. I can live with 4. I can live with anything so long
as we have something there. And we have other areas where we are, we are setting aside money
so I can agree with you at this point and see where we go from here. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions on this Emergency Fund? We'll
come back to this as we go towards to the end of the week during our deliberations. And the
idea that Mr. Hokama brings out in regards another funding area. the CIP. You know, the Police
Department came here with a request of $15 million that.. .caught everyone of us off-guard.
And, and, you know, when you look at the way we structure our bond and the bond request is
that we look at life and 15 years is not the life for a bond appropriation. So we need to set aside,
you know, funds as we move along so that the taxpayers of this County, you know, don't be
faced with a $15 million tag again in 15 years. So I would like to thank Mr. Hokama for
bringing that issue in regards to another funding area that we could possibly put in for a project
like the Police radio... safety and radio system. Any more questions. Members, on the
Emergency Fund? Any more questions in regards to the Finance Department at this time? If
not, I'm gonna take it as agreement on everything except reduced Premium Pay. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair. my understanding was that we were going to revisit issues like
OPEB and the fringe benefits here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh. yeah. yeah. because what if we do make changes, we still gotta-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, so I, I just want to clarify that. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay, Danny, thank you. And good luck.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter).
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, the next Department is Fire and Public Safety. We do have some
questions and the questions are basically Premium Pay as well as reduction of...for the deletion
of three expansion positions of, of the Fire Department. And. Members, let me clarify the
deletion. It's not the deletion of the position themselves. It's the deletion of utilizing General
Funds to fund a grant...a grant that we received from the Federal government to allow for the
hiring of six positions. So if we, if we look at the grant the grant says six positions for the Fire
Department. It didn't say six positions that we could utilize and upgrade some Fire Fighters to
Fire Fighters ITT. So I'm. I'm going along with the grant that we had agreed upon. the six
positions and the funding that came with that six positions. Questions? That's on Page 7.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I have a question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: So you are actually deleting the EP count as well as the salary?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We not...the, the, the...we have the grant that has six positions.
MR. BAZ: Correct. The EP count, excuse me, the EP count, let me clarify. In the-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, and then it becomes LTAs.
MR. BAZ: From my understanding. the conditions of the grant were that we.. .they would fund it for
two years and we had to fund it for an additional year. So, Mr. Chair, maybe if we could.. .1'!!
work with the Fire Department but if we could clarify that and may I suggest maybe that we
include those six positions in the EP count as LTA under the conditions of the grant?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Maybe you can have the Fire Department come over here to answer
some of the questions that we may have in regards to those six positions. And if it...if the grant
is only for two years, then that's fine. And if the grant specifies that the County need to carry on
that third year. then I'll like to know about it. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So actually what the... Federal government is doing is forcing us to expend
General Fund expenditure because the grant to promote six positions is now being asked to be
filled, the lower positions, where we asked to be filled by General Fund and in this proposal.
permanent. So by taking this Federal grant we are agreeing to grow the department, minimum
six, six additional positions that may not have been part of our expansion currently. I wasn't for
these Federal so-called dollars that making us grow our budget and grow our expenses.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: My understanding is a grant is for a specific time and for a specific amount
and that's all we are required to do. And what the Budget Director had noted that according to
the grant, they're gonna allow us...or provide us funding for two years and they, they asking the
County to fund the third year. So I haven't seen the grant.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But my understanding, Chair, and maybe. you know, the, the Fire
Department can bring clarification or through Mr. Baz but they're also asking us to promote
positions. Okay, so from Fire Fighter Ins or Captains, aren't, aren't we looking at Battalion
Chiefs or what not? 'Cause they're, they're asking us to increase our cost also by giving them
higher classifications.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, and that's the reason why I put a deletion of the numbers that you see.
The three positions. Fire Fighter III. the addition of that...the number 137.544, right, is from the
General Fund so that they could utilize the position that was granted, upgraded so that they
become.. .Fire Fighters.. .Fire Fighter III utilizing General Fund. But I'm saying is that the grant
that was given to us had a specific dollar amount for six positions. And. and I'm following the
grant on the six positions, not to cause a promotion of six Fire Fighters.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Chairman.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, their. their request included funding of General Fund amount was to. like
Mr. Hokama mentioned, upgrade the positions from.. .'cause the Federal government was only
gonna pay for a Fire Fighter I or an entry level Fire Fighter position and we would have to cover
the balance so that was their original request. We've contacted the Fire Department and they're
trying to get the Chief up here right now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. fine. I, I guess. Mr. Hokama. I hope you understand that where the
Chair is coming from.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, I, I-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --do. I do.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I just cannot see taking advantage of a grant for a short term promotion. I like
the promotion but the idea of the grant. Fire Fighter I and now utilizing General Funds so that we
could elevate those positions to Fire Fighter III. So...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman. I think it's just the point where, you know, for people like me,
I' m, I'm tired of grant money becoming long-term obligations of the County down the road after
the grant disappears. That's my problem.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I agree with you.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: . . (Inaudible). . the County so much because when grant funds dry up,
poor me, the County, oh, we gotta go now hanai all these kinda things that, you know, it's
getting tiresome, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And I totally agree. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So I, I just wanna get this clear. We are gonna hire three new...six
new positions? Okay, so part of the request was protective equipment and beds for those
positions. So there're gonna be three new bodies so we need to.. .so you still suggesting getting
rid of that. A. And B. does the grant provide for.. .1 mean if they want us to hire people. do they
also provide for-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, we'll ask the Department when they come here.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Members, any more questions in regards to the Fire area at this time?
Member White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. Chair. I, I have concerns about the expansion positions
from the standpoint similar to Mr. Hokama's concerns that, you know, the Federal government
gives us money for two years. We establish six more positions and then we have those positions
with us and we're responsible for...even though we're sitting here today saying they're gonna go
away at the end of the grant or a year after the end of the grant, it's unlikely they're gonna go
away. And so we will have them for 60 years until the, you know... .and I, I bring that up
because I think as we go through this process our focus needs to be preserving capital that we
have now for future wages, benefits and so forth. And the more we commit to things that may
not go away, the less we're gonna be able to provide the people that we already have on staff.
And I can't think that if we were to say to the Fire Department that, you know, if we bring these
guys on and we add to them our, our rolls, two years from now when the Federal funding runs
out we may not have the capacity to pay you as much as if we didn't have those guys. And I
think that's something that we need to put into the mix somehow. And I, and I look to your,
your ideas on that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. White. We all know that a fire station is being proposed for
Haiku. I don't know when that's gonna happen and if it does happen in the next two years. then
in regards to these six positions, the, the likelihood that, you know, they may become full-time
employees at this station in Haiku. So that's one of the things that I thought about in regards to
those six positions, after two.. .you know, what happens after two years? Hopefully, we can get
that fire station in Haiku up and going and running where we can utilize trained, already trained
employees to just fall in, in line into Haiku so...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. Chair. And along those same lines, we also
have attrition in the sense of retirees within the, the force itself. Both Police and Fire have done
this for many years and there's always been a need. We've never had enough. Mr. Chair, that we
have too many firemen or too many policemen. Okay, so this was a methodology that I like
because it got these guys trained, ready to hit the road, they're ready to go, they're prepared to
assist us. Not start as a rookie now and go training and then come out and then get your, your,
your six months of, of working with your partner or with the Police and then others...other
departments. The Fire Department working, you know, OJT, on the job training. yeah? So let
me say that these two departments, I will support any kind of funding that will bring in new
people because I know the needs gonna be down the road, new fire station is one, retirement and
all that. And I know right now there's a whole bunch of guys that wanting to see what this new
contract will look like. And if it is what they hear it is, many of them are saying. I've got my
years and I'm gone. So, so all these playing into, into, into these factors that hopefully will help
both us, the County of Maui by utilizing Federal funds to really develop some, some, some Fire
Fighters.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, thank you. Mr. Victorino, you're correct and from my recollection of initial
discussions with the Fire Department on whether or not we're, we're gonna propose to add these
positions in, they were basically saying, and maybe the Chief can explain when he gets here, that
they would need these drivers anyway. And so, you know, this is a way for us to get, you know,
people in and get drivers trained so that we could have them to be able to, to work within the Fire
Department without having to pay 100 percent of the cost.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, you know, Chair, I, I think.. .and when the Chief come we can
get more specific, but this has been a practice for many, many years. Other departments I have
challenges with because we hire 'em and then all of a sudden they eliminate, you know, and the,
and the Feds and the State have taken away the, the funding and then we become a unfunded
mandate. This is need. This is public safety. I. I can support this. Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. And again, you know, when the Fire Department comes-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --then we'll ask more questions in regards to, you know, the condition of the
grant.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. Does someone know the dates of the grant?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What's that again?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The dates of the grant.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz, would you know the dates of the grant?
MR. BAZ: No, I'm not. When... hopefully the Fire Chief has the information.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Is, is this a pending application or has it already been received?
MR. BAZ: From my understanding, it has been approved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So it's, it's been approved. Have we accepted it? 'Cause if we've
accepted it, we've already agreed to do that third year.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, and we'll discuss that with the Fire Department, why the agreement for
the third year through County funds.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: As you recall, when the Police Department was here, they had monies through
the cops' program, I guess-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --ARRA?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And they included in their request on a limited term for those positions so, you
know, why the difference?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It could be a moot discussion if they committed and took the money.
Now we're stuck. . /chuckles). .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I hope not.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter).
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Okay, Members, we'll wait for the Fire Department to come over.
Okay, I think we're gonna need Ms. Ridao over here. So if you can call Jo-Ann. yeah? We'll
take a five-minute recess? Or ten minutes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ten minutes, she gotta walk from the other side.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. ten-minute recess. So we'll reconvene at 2:25.. .oh, 2:30. Okay, we're
in recess until 2:30. . . . (gavel). .
RECESS:

2:17 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:35 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
.(gavel). . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, we do have Chief Murray over here and.. .good afternoon, Chief.
MR. MURRAY: Good afternoon.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: For the Chair of this Committee. I had a question in regards to the language in
the grants.. .in the grant that you guys received regarding the six positions.
MR. MURRAY: For clarification, we did not receive that yet. We did...we just have it in our proposal
as something that is coming up in the future. We didn't get approval yet.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Approval of the grant?
MR. MURRAY: No, yes, we did not have approval as of yet.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Mateo. questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. I'm gonna save that question on the contract for Ms. Baisa
'cause her question was, was really a important one. But, but Chief. during, during the
preliminary discussion when, when the Department was here. I had. I had concerns regarding
how it would work, the. the Fire Fighter Is being hired and then trained to progress up to Fire
Fighter Ins. Fire Fighter Ins are primarily drivers?
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MR. MURRAY: Yes, they are operators. Actually, we wouldn't hire Fire Fighter Is. What we'll
do...sorry...would be to promote Fire Fighter Is or transfer Fire Fighter Ills to those positions if
they choose to.
COLTNCILMEMBER MATEO: So the intent then is to take existing Fire Fighter I positions to go
through this period of training so they would end up being Ins?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, whoever is on the list would...if...for these positions would be promotions for
them. And the grant.. .can only be asked for the lowest paying position and that. that's
the...that's kinda the confusion to this grant.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So we're not hiring from outside per se. We're already picking up
from-MR. MURRAY: Right, within.
COLTNCILMEMBER MATEO: --those employed within the Department that-MR. MURRAY: That, that meet the minimum qualifications, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So this is not new positions. then. This...these...this is just
promotions within the Department?
MR. MURRAY: Right, but the grant only allows us to...the Feds would only pay for-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Two years.
MR. MURRAY: --for two years at the lowest, lowest rate. So your new hire or trainee or recruit, that's
the pay that they would give you for those two years.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So existing, existing Fire Fighter Is, that would be considered the
lowest, the lowest level?
MR. MURRAY: Not the existing, would be new hire. They would take the newest.. .the lowest pay
rate in our Department, their starting pay. at the lowest rate. That's the only funding that they
would fulfill.
COLTNCILMEMBER MATEO: And these Fire Fighter Is, they wouldn't...they would agree to taking a
lesser step so that they can be promoted up to Ills?
MR. MURRAY: No, that's not how it would work.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So how, how're you're gonna take from within your Department if Fire
Fighter Is are already being paid at a higher level than what the grant will require?
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MR. MURRAY: Yes, the Federal government's only gonna...cover the lowest rate within our
Department for those two years. So we asked previous Administration for an agreement to say
they would cover the difference between that rate and the Fire Fighter Ills' rate, what...whatever
rate that would end up at.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, excuse me. it's probably just me. I'm kinda like not-MR. MURRAY: No, no, it is-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --not connecting.
MR. MURRAY: --really, really hard to understand.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I'm not connecting. So let me start again. The whole purpose of the
grant is to take existing Fire Fighter Is and train them for, for the two and a half, three year
period so they can end up being Fire Fighter Ills.
MR. MURRAY: No. This is actually...the grant that we asked for is specific to those six positions, in
two stations, yeah. So the three watches are covered. The Federal government would only allow
us to take the lowest rate within our Department and.. .but our need is in that six positions.
It's.. .so we would take existing Fire Fighters off whatever list that they're on for promotional
and put 'em into these driver positions. But the Federal government would only pay us for Fire
Fighter trainees. They're not going even pay us for Fire Fighter I, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, who do you have in the Department now that would qualify for
these positions that'll be covered by the grant?
MR. MURRAY: The.. .well. there's a minimum qualification that you need, it's six years as a Fire
Fighter.. .from trainee to Fire Fighter I. So those people would take a test, get eligible and those
are the.. would be the people that would be eligible for those positions.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: But if they've got six years, they're no longer at the-MR. MURRAY: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --entry level.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, that, that's where the discrepancy is in the pay. So the Federal government can
only fund the lowest paying... or the starting position. But our need is specifically to this area
here, yeah. So there is an offset price, I believe, of $81,000 if they were to get hired for those
two years.
COLTNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Maybe I'll, 1-11--
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Confusing?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --HI pass because I'm lost-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --somewhere between, somewhere between a Fire Fighter I and a III.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
MR. MURRAY: Let me take 'em from the beginning maybe. Okay.
MR. BAZ: Let me. let me see, let me see if I understand it and then maybe that might. .(inaudible). . .
From my understanding is we wanna hire Fire Fighter Ills but the Federal government will only
pay us a set amount. They won't pay us the whole amount that we need. They'll only pay us the
entry level of, of a Fire Fighter which is the Fire Fighter trainee position.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: So, so say a Fire Fighter III gets paid $50.000 and a Fire Fighter.. .these aren't correct
but.. .the Fire Fighter trainee only gets paid $25.000. We would have to come up with that extra
$25,000 of County money to cover the, the difference. Is that a little clearer or...?
MR. MURRAY: Well, this specific grant only allows for new hires. And it's nationwide. For instance,
the Big Island Fire Department, they were awarded 20 positions but they don't have the funding
to.. .sustain those positions. So they had to give those things back. And it goes through a
priority list. Kauai. about three and a half years ago received 15 positions. But theirs were on
the old system. The old system was five years. The Federal government would pay five years of
pay but it was prorated throughout the five years. So, in fact, that one was even more confusing
than this one. So hopefully.. .1 mean it took us a little while too so...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Can I, can I take a whack at this?
MR. MURRAY: Sure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: If I'm understanding this, you, you are hiring six people in the Fire
Fighter I category because you've, you've got.. .you're gonna.. .you're increasing your EP count
by six, correct? So you're hiring.. basically you've the Federal government paying the new
hires but your need is the guys above that you're.. .so you're promoting six guys.
MR. MURRAY: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Is that right?
MR. MURRAY: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So you're gonna have.., or you gonna have six guys at the entry level as
well.
MR. MURRAY: Eventually.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, because-MR. MURRAY: It's based on, it's based on the timing.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --you're increasing your, you're increasing your EP count.
MR. MURRAY: Right. It's-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So essentially what you're doing is you're using the Federal money to,
to pay for the, the six incoming people essentially and, and the General Fund is paying the
difference that we're giving the.. .the guys that are already working in the Department-MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --that are gonna move up into a new position.
MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And that, that additional money is $81.000 over two years?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: That. that was...that's pretty good explanation but-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, I. I wasn't sure.. .whether I was in the right spot like Mr. Mateo.
MR. MURRAY: But, but when we applied for it, we had to apply for it exactly the way I explained it.
Yeah, yeah but-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: We got it.
MR. MURRAY: You got it.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: . .(Inauclible)„ .
MR. MURRAY: Exactly, yes.
COLTNCILMEMBER WRITE: 'Cause we work for the County, not the Feds.
MR. MURRAY: Right.
COLTNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Boy, after all that long explanation, so basically we, we get this
money which whatever the rate for a trainee is. right?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the difference, the County pays in General Funds.
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, got it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You see, that's not how my brain works, Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's why, that's why you guys are where you guys are. Sorry,
you guys. Excuse me. I'm sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Because to, to promote to Fire Fighter III, you normally would take from
Fire Fighter I, right?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: In a normal progression internally. So eventually we gotta fill six Fire
Fighter I positions which will only be filled after you get one new recruit class, right?
MR. MURRAY: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So why is there a need to pay a differential because the Feds going pay for
the trainee and that's what we're gonna hire. Six trainees to qualify to replace six Fire Fighter Is
who's being promoted to Fire Fighter Ills so they can drive one truck that more than likely they
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asking for us in this budget. So why is there a need for a differential from the General Fund?
We're not replacing Fire Fighter Ills. We're replacing the Fire Fighter I who got promoted-MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --to Fire Fighter III. So what is the reality, because if it's not. then I'm not
gonna support this grant because this is a strange way for do government growth in my
perspective, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Baz. fast question. This particular move from Fire Fighter Is
to Fire Fighter III internally, is that wage increases included in the budget proposal?
MR. BAZ: Yes and no. Yes.. .or I guess the answer is yes because... but not.. .it's not that six Fire
Fighter Is had wage increases to Fire Fighter Ills. It's that six Fire Fighter III positions were
created with funding to cover the difference. And so. yeah. you're correct and, and, and my
assumption is the same, or is that once we take people and fill these six Fire Fighter III positions,
there will be vacancies that are created that would be new hires. I mean...it sounds kind of like
what he's saying but according to the grant they have to be new hires, right, so we're trying to
create new hires but also promote from within for these six driver positions which are, you know,
are needed. So, yes. So, yes, the money is in there but not as just.. .there's no separate
money.. there's no separate place in here that's six Fire Fighter Is were increased to Fire Fighter

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, because I tend to agree with Mr. Hokama. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Who's on first?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What's on second?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . .(Chuckles). . . I don't know. So are these positions that, that the
Department says that they need. you need to create six Fire Firefighter III positions, is that
correct?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Above and beyond what you have now?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Not because people got promoted out-MR. MURRAY: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: -- and everything?
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MR. MURRAY: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And reason why we need these six positions... is?
MR. MURRAY: So that those individuals can drive the trucks that are currently there already 'cause
what we're doing now is taking individuals from other companies within that station and actually
driving. So now, for instance, if you got four men in Lahaina driving that, that show up that day
one individual will be tasked to drive that tanker. That leaves the engine now at three. And, you
know, as. as we grew with, with tankers within our Department, that's, that's how we did it. So
expansion positions for those tanker positions are... are there now but we're just doing it
temporarily. Because they're specialized equipment, we're asking that they be permanent
employees of that qualification. And. and the parameters of that grant only allow us to write it
that way. As confusing as it may be, that, that, that's what the parameters allow us to do.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The question I would have then, if we didn't have this grant capability
here, you would still be asking for three Fire Fighter III positions?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, hut at a much higher rate of pay.
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. That being taken care of, that, that thought. This grant only
provides for the positions, not for any equipment needed, you know, uniforms and, and
protective gear and all that, and including beds and protective equipment?
MR. MURRAY: No, the, the grant just covers the, the salary for the lowest position within our
Department. Everything else is something that the Department has to supply, or the employer.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, so in... essence, you're asking us for three.. .six new positions
that we just happen to be getting some extra cash for via a grant?
MR. MURRAY: We hope.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We hope. And so if we don't get the grant, we're still gonna go ask for
the positions?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?

- 76 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
May 3,2011

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well, really, who is on third? The third year, I believe, we need to
fund completely.
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right? According to this grant.
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So definitely need to know what's on third. But, yeah, it is a little
strange and confusing at this point. Three new.. .1 just don't.. .1 guess you, you said you're just
upgrading within. I mean this is covering new hires so technically we are getting six new hires,
though. The grant. . .(inaudible. . )-MR. MURRAY: Not necessarily on time with the grant because it's based on the availability. We have
openings now. We're looking at having a new recruit class but by the time the funding comes in,
those positions will be vacant for a period of time. I, I can't say how long.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And when is the ETA of this fund? Is there a possible round about
ti meline?
MR. MURRAY: I believe the latest time is either September or October that they would fund that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: There, there have been departments across the country getting bids.. .their, their
grants. proposed grants awarded to them already. And I don't know how long the lead time is,
yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think Member Cochran is a little close to the question I asked. But my
question was, what is the period of your grant that you applied for?
MR. MURRAY: For two years.
COLTNCILMEMBER BAISA: Dates?
MR. MURRAY: Pardon me?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The dates.
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MR. MURRAY: The dates is all based on when the award is made.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So if you were to receive that, like you said some people are already
getting it. It could start in 2011?
MR. MURRAY: It, it definitely could.. .it actually would start in 2011. I just can't tell you exactly.
specifically when.
COLTNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: They go through multiple rounds of.. .you know, for handing out the grant itself.
COUNCILMEMBER BA1SA: What's the source of funding?
MR. MURRAY: It is FEMA's SAFER Grant, from Homeland Security, Staff for Adequate Fire and
Emergency Response. That what that acronym stands for, SAFER.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And you've had this kind of money before?
MR. MURRAY: We have never received this funding before. Our Department has not. Other
departments within Hawaii have. But we always seek the possibility of getting this funding.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So at this point, you know, after you've put a grant in, there are many
conversations with the grantors and you kinda get the feeling like, this looks good or it doesn't
look good. 'Cause they keep asking you extra questions, more documentation, where are you at?
MR. MURRAY: We have fulfilled all the questioning after the fact of the submittal. And it does look
good. It does fit their priority list. It's just not the number one priority across the nation. I. I
can't really say how we will fall into that. But I.. .we've done our homework and, and, you
know, we're just hoping for the best.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I understand and I understand the effort. You know, I've did enough
grants to know how this works and all the effort that goes into it, and the anxiety in waiting for
that final e-mail or call that says you got it.
MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But, so at this point this is not a certain thing.
MR. MURRAY: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, thank you very much.
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MR. MURRAY: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I have seen grants like this administered.
. . . (Inaudible). . . been through the County to where we were given money for a period of time to
supplement salaries and tried to. . ( inaudible). . . and they worked fine, if you need the position.
As long as we need the position, it's a good deal. It saves our taxpayers. you know, some money
and gives us a little, little more leeway in our budget. And I have administered actually grants
similar to this in another organization. And there's really no downside to it if you need the
position. It, it just helps you for a couple of years to supplemental money to pay for it. So if we
ever we get to decision-making, my consensus for it would be yes. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Along with what Member Carroll said, it's my understanding that the
proposal before us actually deletes those three positions and the beds and the equipment. Okay,
so then it, then it may be that Mr. Carroll's vote would be no if we wanted to keep the positions.
So you're saying that in.. that's what your proposal is, is that we delete the positions or
you.. .have you tried to put the funding somewhere else?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, the deletion is the funding from the General Fund to supplement the
grant from...the grant of the lowest paid employee in the Fire Department which is the Fire
Fighter Ito promote six positions to Fire Fighter III.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I, I guess the question is in this whole thing, and I couldn't quite find it
anywhere else, is...if the budget gets passed as it is today, is Chief Murray gonna be able to do
those three...the six promotions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If it gets passed today?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, as is today.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: With funding from the General Fund?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: With any kind of fund. I mean I don't see where those-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, if he gets from General Fund, he can do that provided that they give us
the grant. If they don't give us the grant, then he don't have the six positions.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, we'll have to revisit.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, any more questions? Member Mateo, followed by Member White.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, you go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Mr. White and I just needed to know whether or not the
salaries for the six Fire Fighters, if the salary is inclusive of fringe?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, we can look at that but from my understanding. fringe.. .because of the way that
this money is combined, the grant money is with General Fund monies that the cost of the
position would be more than that grant funded anyway. So.. .and maybe the Fire Chief can. can
confirm this but the...I think the grant of $437.000 was for salaries only.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White?
COLTNCILMEMBER WHITE: It, it looks to me, unless I'm missing something, the grant amount is
437. The, the salary here is about 275.000 so it looks like the... it would cover fringe benefits up
to about 59 percent. So my question to the Budget Chair is. I'm assuming that in addition to the
81,000 in the salary, that we would be picking up.. .we would also have to pick up the difference
between the 59 percent fringe and whatever the 74 percent is normally?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. BAZ: The $437.000 reflected in there is for two years and it's not a single year.
COLTNCILMEMBER WHITE: Ah. okay. Okay, so we're bearing the cost of fringe.
MR. BAZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions, Members?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just, just one quick one so we can understand. In the Personnel
Department's response of vacancies under Fire, you know, they gave a list of mostly transfers,
Fire Fighter Is, Fire Fighter Ills. They have couple under what they call Limited Term transfer.
If the Chief could give us some comment of what does that mean, Limited Term transfer, that
would be appreciated.
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MR. MURRAY: I believe there's two positions that are limited term. Those are for my position and the
Deputy's position. So as people get promoted into our old positions and sequently...in that, that
sequence, every, every person that's the lowest on that rank is in limited term of that position.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So that, that's why a Fire Fighter I has the designation then, Chief-MR. MURRAY: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --as you, as you shared, it goes down to the lowest-MR. MURRAY: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --rank within that program area.
MR. MURRAY: Yes, in, in each.. .yeah.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, similar to return rights kind of situation.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, okay. Thank you for that explanation. Chief.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That makes sense. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any more questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? Sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Did.. .1 highlighted somebody wanted a.. .revisit on Fire Prevention
Program. Am I correct on that or no? Did you have a note about that? It wasn't me but I'm just
saying since Fire is here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, the overtime payment.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, the overtime.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, any...anything else for the Fire Department? Mr. White?
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I was...are we discussing Premium Pay now or later or...?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, you can go ahead ask...if everybody satisfied with the grant positions,
the six grant, so-called grant positions. Okay, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, thank you. Chair. Chief, one of...one of the things that I'm
concerned about is, is that the growth of the County budget has been significant. Over the last
ten years it's grown by $408 million, about $40 million a year on average. My concern is trying
to, trying to cut back on our expenses without cutting into the meat of your operations.
The...when I look at the, the budget from 2010 when your budget was approximately 27 million,
it's grown this year to 31,909. And I realize it's a reduction from last year's budget but the, but
the difference of $4.9 million from„ in, in two years tells me that maybe we can afford to cut
back on some of the, some of the, the expenses. And because you have a program budget,
the.. .we don't really wanna get into micromanaging. It, it seems that the Premium Pay is an area
that we, you know, we can reduce to some degree and when I look at the, the difference on the
Carryover/Savings is being projected for Fire. it looks like it's about $800.000. So would you
have a problem with a reduction of a certain amount of, of the Premium Pay? And. I, I had
recommended 30 percent and, and I'm sure that a lot of people aren't comfortable with that but if
you can share with us what your structural cost of overtime is, that because of holidays and other
things and, and share with us.. .your thoughts on that.
MR. MURRAY: All right. Thank you for your question.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: If not 30, what, what percentage would you be comfortable since
you've got a-MR. MURRAY: Actually, I wouldn't be comfortable with any, any-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I didn't expect you to be.
MR. MURRAY: --decrease. And the reason for this is in, in the past few years we have, we have done
the due diligence within our Department to cut back as much as possible. And. again. I don't
have a crystal ball to tell you how our fire season's gonna be or, or rescue in, in our community
is gonna be or anything like that. But the Premium Pay specifically takes care of that. And for
us to have that at, at our disposal when we need it is, is needed.. .1 mean for us to run the
Department. I cannot tell you how long the incident's gonna last or what have you. But I have
to be able to maintain a certain amount of people on duty as well as call back crews that come in
that assist. So we, we're not only dealing with that incident, we're dealing with other incidents
at the same time throughout the County. And we have to be able to respond to those. So in, in
the past few years we've, we've made the cuts and you talked about the meat, I, I think we're
getting really close to getting into that, that point where we're gonna have to lessen the services
if that's what, what is needed. But as far as Premium Pay, that's... that all comes out of
collective bargaining and how...the Fire Fighters have received raises over the past
three...actually at a four-year contract so they've received raises throughout that time. And
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we've absorbed those raises in the past, in the past two years especially. So we haven't taken
anything on there but what we do put in here is we try to factor in those raises in the Premium
Pay because if those individuals have to come back to work, we have to pay 'ern at that rate. I
have no control over what they get paid. But I do control. majority of the time, the time that they
can work. So if they're not needed at a scene, we, we just don't leave them there. We, we, we
rotate everybody out, number one for their safety because they need to get rest. So, you know,
there's, there's no overtime that goes on in our Department without an. an.. .supervisor taking a
look at how that impacts and what actually is gained from that overtime. For instance, if out of
our Admin./Maintenance, we take care of our Assistance Chiefs on downward. So if we're
bringing in mechanics to fix vehicles on the weekend or because of a fire or an accident or
whatever happened, I really have no control about that but I do have to replace those frontline
vehicles.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
MR. MURRAY: So, so I'm kinda stuck between a rock and a hard place if it goes any lower, if you
understand what I'm saying 'cause I really don't wanna come back for emergency funding or
anything like that.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. But, of course, you know the, the challenge we face.
MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Is trying to fund all kinds of other important needs as well.
MR. MURRAY: We, we understand.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And as you did this year when you, when you needed extra funding you
came back with an emergency appropriation and we took care of it. So I guess what I'm asking
you is whether you're comfortable with us taking the, taking the Premium Pay down a bit on
then.. .with the understanding if, if you have fires that require that you expend the money, you
come back to us with a, with an.. .a budget amendment request. And I think everybody here, like
we did this year, we would approve it. My concern is that when I see a budget going up by
$5 million in. in a two-year period. I wanna be able to make sure that we're taking care of all
other needs and not leaving money in one pot on, you know, on the idea that we might need it.
There's no question if we have, if we have a fire, we're gonna fund it. At least I don't think
there's anyone in this room who wouldn't. So that, that's where I'm coming from and I don't
expect you to necessarily agree but-MR. MURRAY: No, I, I truly appreciate that, that point. And, and we've been trying to be, you know,
as, as, as part of this team to solve these issues as much as anybody.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, and you guys, you guys do a great job. I'm not questioning that--
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MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --it's just that our job is to try to take care of Human Services, take care
of Environmental needs and a whole range of other things. And so when...when I see an
increase of $5 million. I have to. I have to at least ask the questions and see if there's some way
that we can shake loose a little bit of that money so it can go into some of the programs that
we've cut back significantly.
MR. MURRAY: Over, over, over the, the four years my, my guess is over $3 million were into
salaries.. .based on, on the collective bargaining agreement which I have zero control over. So
whatever is leftover that is, is how we've been trying to operate on. And, you know, as I
appreciate the amendment, the budget amendment that this board and this Council gave us, I
mean I really appreciate that but the time spent doing that and, and waiting and, you know, we
just got the funds transferred last week so this process started in November. And, and, you
know, we're already into May, or, or the last week of April is when we got the money. And, not
that we don't appreciate it but it gives us approximately three weeks to finish everything that we
need to do for, for the things that we held on to and not purchasing. And at times it becomes
hard because when you go out for bids as all of, all of the projects for us to go out because
they're over $1,000, it. it becomes sometimes we're at the whim of these companies. And, and
for me, I'd much rather be able to have the time to say. hey, I don't, I don't like those prices that
are coming in. You know, it's puts. puts the pressure on us to actually get it done and now we're
taking basically whatever we got. And I don't. I don't think that's the best thing for our
community. I, I understand that, that process is there. I. I don't believe that it's a.. .that much
funds 'cause if it's not used, we do return it. I mean it can be used for the Carryover. I, I mean
it's really up to this, this body to decide that.
COLTNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right.
MR. MURRAY: But comfortably, for me, it's not comfortable at all.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
COLTNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. White, for those questions. And. yeah. I agree
with you, $822,000, you know, there's a lot of money in Carryover/Savings. And this is through
overtime. And, you know, like you said we, we.. already approved another $1 million
appropriation to the Department. So I'm gonna be kinda interested in finding out if what was
appropriated and looking at the projected Carryover/Savings which we did in the overtime, we're
looking at $39.000. But. again. I agree with you that we should take a real good look as far as
trying to control our expenses and not just...because we got the money. we just spend it, you
know. The other thing, Members, if you have no more questions in regards to overtime, on
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Page 33, this is Grant Funds and coming back to those six positions, that was provided through
United States Department of Homeland Security Federal Emergency Management Agency, we
had included in there a proviso provided the disbursement of salaries and premium is limited to
six Limited Term Appointment equivalent personnel. So we had included a proviso in regards to
those six positions. just for your information.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, coming back to Page 7, the other area that we.. .the Chair had reduced
is in the, the reduction to helicopter services by $200.000. And. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Chief...I can wait if you...
MR. MURRAY: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Again we're back to our helicopter again. eh ?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, we went through this last year and almost every year.
You, this year. wanted...what...one point...I forgot exactly how much you wanted but...oh
shoot.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: 1.2.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Huh?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: 1.2.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 1.2, yeah, okay, thank you. 1.2 for your helicopter service, yeah?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, and again. just so that the public and some of the new
members understand this helicopter contract which I'm not exactly happy with but there is a
contract. How does it all work? We're paying for somebody...some helicopter to sit there 24
hours, right?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, and I like that idea. However, can you give me specific
ti mes when that helicopter flies at night because I have been told it doesn't fly at night. We've
had fires, it cannot fly. We've had other search and rescue, cannot fly. So when does it fly at
night? 'Cause you said 24 hours so when it gets dark, what does the.. .you know, I'm paying for
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maybe 7.. .no, maybe 10, 12 hours of non-use? I know I cannot use it. I'm just asking. That's
not one trick question„ .(inaudible)...-MR. MURRAY: No. I know. That is a very question. Thank you, Mr. Victorino. You know, there are
instances where the helicopter does fly at night.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: It has to be a percentage of moonlight, minimal clouds and it's dependent on the area
that they're going into. If they have line of sight references that they can fly off of, then they're
able to fly and it's always at the pilot's discretion. We have.. .1 personally have been up in there
at night many, many times. But if you, if you're gonna look at it 365 days at those 10 hours of
darkness, it doesn't look like that much hours.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And. and I just, you know, I just wanna...because that was
brought to my attention. People have asked me on the street. Well, it doesn't fly at night
because when we had the fires here and a couple other incidents, when I asked, can the
helicopter come in? No, cannot because, a, it's too dark, b, you got electrical lines and other
issues that, you know, could be dangerous which is.. .you know-MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I was like, okay, that makes great sense. I don't wanna endanger
anybody. The other thing is the moment the helicopter takes off, we start paying $400 an hour or
something?
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, an hourly rate.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Now. . (inaudible)...
MR. MURRAY: Which is, which is roughly about 50 percent of what you would normally pay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: About 50 percent of what you normally pay.
MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But in the meantime, they keep it ready. They keep that
helicopter for us and for us only. In other words, for you folks for rescue, for.. .not rescue.
Yeah, rescue and as well as fire fighting?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And if we bring in others, how much does that cost us?

- 86 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
May 3,2011

MR. MURRAY: If we take it from the same company, it's roughly about $850 an hour.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So take the second helicopter and-MR. MURRAY: To take a second, third, fourth, what have you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Whatever. okay. Again, you know, 1.2 million is a lot of money
and every year we, we go through this. Yet, when it's needed, you know, I'll be the first to
admit, what does a life cost? You know, what is a life worth? So, I, I, I just.. .this is getting high
'cause last year I think was 800 something thousand. Now it's 1.2 million. It continues to
escalate.
MR. MURRAY: Actually last year we asked for 1.5 but we were-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Was 1.5?
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, we were asked to come in for a million.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh. yeah.
MR. MURRAY: And then was-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I know was less than this.
MR. MURRAY: --cut to 734. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, okay, so I know we had to.. .you know, I know was less
than the 1.2. I just.. .1 don't... I'm sorry, I apologize I made that mistake.
MR. MURRAY: No, not a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So my...you know, again, Mr. Chair, again the question is,
every year we have this real dilemma and how much and so he wants to take 200.000 away from
you. I mean take 200.000 from the helicopter. We did more last year but can you. can you run
the helicopter service with $1 million? I guess it depends how many times you gotta go up, eh?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, and I, I would, I would confidently say that we, we would work with that million.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: You know. And also. if I may to reiterate, part of this contract is FAA driven. And
about 12 years ago the FAA made a mandate that you couldn't fly live people on a line without
having a contract in place by a provide for this type of service. And that's what caused this
whole situation for us to go into that contract. And that's the history behind that. It, it's not

- 87 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
May 3,2011

something because, yeah, we're happy, we wanna keep it there. That, that is basically a Federal
law that mandates us in order to do any live load. So, so if we wanna just retrieve things that are
not live-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No problem.
MR. MURRAY: --then we could call them. But if we're, we're putting our person on that line to save
somebody that would an illegal process and, and they would be fined, that helicopter company.
So the contract was part of that law change. And, and that's the history behind us having to have
that contract in place.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, Chief Murray, thank you. I, I think the public needs to
understand when we spend money what the parameters and what dictates this expenditure. And I
think this point being brought up, and you didn't bring this up last year so I'm.. glad you
brought it up this year. Maybe next year we'll get another point so by the time I'm retired, you
know, I got all the points together.
MR. MURRAY: . .(Laughs). .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But I think it's very important the public understands. We spend a
million, a million two on any kind of service, what they're getting? And so that they're not
saying, wow, look at all that money and nothing's happening. You know, this is being mandated
by the Feds, okay, that's another problem. And the Feds-MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --have done many of this before and will continue in the future,
yeah?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you for that clarification, Chief Murray. Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: You're very welcome, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the Chief? Member Hokama
followed by Member Couch.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just a follow up to Mr. Victorino. Chief. Chief, so let's say National Guard
is called to support County's efforts, let's say a major State forest fire.
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So the State...supporting your Department with National Guard choppers
and National Guard guardsmen to, to help battle the blaze. Even under those situations where
using another government aircraft like the National Guard, Hawaii National Guard-MR. MURRAY: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --your man could not be on a...a wire or attachment from that National
Guard chopper to, to do that live, live requirements?
MR. MURRAY: I'm not sure about that law. But this is what I'm gonna say. For a person that used to
hang from that helicopter, I would wanna know my pilot's capabilities as well as the, the, the
helicopter that we're using and have trained with them previously if that's the case. Also, when
they do come to assist us, we pay out of this fund to, to the National Guard 'cause they do send
us a bill.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: To respond to a-MR. MURRAY: Oh, yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --State fire on State property?
MR. MURRAY: Unless it is a State emergency where they come without a price tag. Every time
they've come to us-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
MR. MURRAY: --we've had to pay. Anywhere from 8.000 to 16.000 an hour.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Maybe we can wait till they call us then. Chief.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughteo. . .
MR. MURRAY: I'm glad you said that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's their property. they, they, they're responsible for their asset.
MR. MURRAY: But usually our fire end up going into their property so we're still.. have part
ownership, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand. I understand your, your need to respond, Chief. Thank you
very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
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MR. MURRAY: And we're thankful for their help though.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: At a tune of $16,000 an hour, we better be thankful for their help, gosh.
When you use the Air One at night, what, what type of.. .you said you did it many times, what
kind of operations do you do?
MR. MURRAY: We normally do a life...a rescue.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh.
MR. MURRAY: For a life. If, if that life is deemed.. .if its deceased, we wait till daylight so we can
operate in, in daylight hours. There's also been instances like the Maui Meadows fire. Because
it escalated from about.. .what was it.. .maybe 3:30 in the afternoon, and we flew all the way till
about 9:30 that evening because the fire also illuminated that area and the housing so they were
able to do gain their, their perspective because flying a helicopter you need visual sight
perspective. yeah. If not, they, they lose control.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, so we, we do do life-saving and property saving events at night
then, then that-MR. MURRAY: Yes, it's all dependent on how, how the call started-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure.
MR. MURRAY: --and what the weather conditions allow us to fly.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, that eliminates my second question so. thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Right, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So we're using Air One helicopter? Is that the one that's on.. .or
just... what is the helicopter that we're using that's waiting, $400 per hour, waiting 24/7 for us to
call?
MR. MURRAY: That is Air One.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It is Air One.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, and also within that contract, if I may add more to Mr. Victorino's question is,
this contract also allows us if, if at any point in time that Air One goes down and they know it's
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gonna last an hour or so, they have to provide us with an equal helicopter which they do have in
their... in, in their company. So they... fulfill it with a backup and then they can do their repairs
that is needed to Air One. That's also what the contract also allows for which many companies
can't do.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So Air One is utilized for Green Harvest?
MR. MURRAY: No. The company is utilized for Green Harvest. Air One is never used for Green
Harvest.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not that particular helicopter.
MR. MURRAY: Not at all, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So it's another helicopter they use.
MR. MURRAY: Yes, and, and if you notice that company has their...all their helicopters are yellow.
So everybody assumes that it's us doing Green Harvest, which is not. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . .(Laughs). . Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, I'm glad I could say that on air.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter).
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Got it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions? Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. What is the, what is the base cost of the contract?
MR. MURRAY: Well, it, it, it's like a four-year contract with the.. .and it's a year to year but it's a
four-year. When.. .so when the contractor puts a bid. they put it in for that four years. And just
for the helicopter services, it's roughly about 634,000 for that, that year, annually.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: That's, that's just for the standby.
MR. MURRAY: That's for the standby, maintenance-COUNCILMEMBER WRITE: Do you get a minimum number of hours for the base?
MR. MURRAY: No.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions regarding the helicopter? I, I think
that's all we have for the Chief.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Have a nice afternoon. everybody. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Chief.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, we have Ms. Ridao over here. Need a break? No need?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I going bathroom.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, we'll take a five.. we'll recess until 3:30. Meeting in recess
. . (gavel)...
RECESS:

3:22 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:35 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
.(gavel). . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, we're gonna up to 5 o'clock and then we're gonna break, take a recess to
have dinner. And then we'll reconvene-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 6:30.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 6:00? 6:30?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 6:30.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 6:30. And then we'll continue on. I understand that Ms. Ridao will be
leaving at 5:30. But she'll come back? No?
MS. RIDAO: If I have time to make arrangements, I can come back.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine, thank you.
MS. RIDAO: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, Mr. Baz, if you can have.. .if, if she's, she's away.. there's a lot of
questions for Department of Management so.. .oh, okay. Gonna recess rather than 5:00, 5:30.
MS. RIDAO: Okay.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. And then if.. .Ms. Ridao can come back, then we'll go with
Department of Management. Okay, Members, we just completed our questioning of the
Fire Chief. Other than Premium Pay, anybody got questions in regards to the reduction of
$200.000 for helicopter service? The Chief...had agreed to that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 200, eh?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 200 so now it's $1 million.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, 200 guaranteed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then the...we...the Premium Pay. again. Mr. White will provide us with
some numbers at, at a later time. As far as the expansion positions, the deletion of the General
Fund, is everybody in agreement? No?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: What was, what was the question, sir?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: As far as the three.. .six expansion positions, is everybody in agreement to
removing the General Fund side of the, the proposed number that the Administration had
provided us? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I understand all of the hoo-ha about this but if we eliminate these six
positions and Mr.... whatever gets the, gets the grant, then what?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We're not going eliminate the positions.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just the money.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just the money because on the back side. we get the grant now, okay, of six
positions. six LTA positions. for the grant funding. So it's on the back side on Page 33?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: 33.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, it doesn't matter. But I just wanna be sure that if he gets it, we
can cover it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Once, once the grant is received, then the six position is noted over here.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, thank you.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: Just to clarify. The... so you're... but you, you are deleting the EP counts in the Fire
Department General Fund?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The 100.. .whatever is being requested to cover the, the addition to make these
guys from.. .to make the Fire Fighter I funding that we're getting from the Federal government,
to add General Funds. The General Funds addition is being removed.
MR. BAZ: Okay. I understand the dollar amount, the 137.544 twice. right? The two stations but the
EP count is also noted as being reduced from 285 equivalent personnel to 279 equivalent
personnel. And I just wanted to clarify that that's something that you are suggesting as well
'cause then if that is the case, then we can't... even if they do find grant money or other
payments, we can't pay them.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So in other words, what you're saying, once we get the grant, we can't get
those positions?
MR. BAZ: We would have to come back for a budget amendment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: To do what the-CHAIR PONTANILLA: In most cases, whenever you receive a grant you come in for a budget
amendment signifying that we, we got the monies from whoevers.
MR. BAZ: Okay. Well, then if that was the case. then the grant revenue appropriation of $437.000 is
not necessarily needed because we'd have to come back for a budget amendment anyway.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair, so that means that the General Fund is picking up...but we're not
approving the, the increase or the promotions but we are approving the 74 percent fringe benefit
cost-CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time, yeah.

- 94 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
May 3,2011

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --that come from the General Fund?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Let's see.. .Department of Housing and Human Services [sic]. We'll
start off with Page Number 7-MR. KANESHINA: Excuse me. Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: Just for the record, did we get consensus on the last item you spoke about?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Which one is that?
MR. KANESHINA: The Fire Department expansion positions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members. do I have consensus in regards to the six expansion positions that is
grant funded?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Okay...Department of Housing and Human Concerns.
First area again is.. .on the first one. 8-9, grants and disbursements for affordable rental housing
program. The Chair's recommendation was to increase by $300,000 and Mr. White. question?
7 of 44. 8-9.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair, this is something I, I approve of. My only hesitation was that I
wanted to bring some of the other entities also back up to previous levels of funding so I'd just
like to have some discussion about that. And would appreciate Ms. Ridao's thoughts on
increasing some of the other organizations that have lost funding over the years.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay... in this one here, the $300.000, you have question to that as far as the
increase?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I'm just, I'm just not comfortable agreeing to that-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --until we see what the total might be.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I really don't have a problem with it other than just... I'm, I'm a little
concerned that we just. ..we keep adding to what we're spending and at some point we're gonna
get to a place where we have no choice but to increase taxes on everyone and I'm, I'm not quite
comfortable with that just yet.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Mr. Victorino, you have questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, Jo-Ann, I know, you know...you...your commitment
to human services and. Ms. Ridao. you, you understand what the Chair is trying to accomplish
here. And I have to agree that in these real difficult times. as you had said, people are in dire
need of rental assistance. And even this additional $300 seems really manini when you talking
the challenges out there. yeah. So, Chair, I can support that. I, I understand what Mr. White's
saying but also at the same time, you know, we've been cutting in many areas to make this come
to fruition. And to, to limit any increase in taxes and fees, I think we've been very prudent to
this point so I can support that. If we can find more money for some of the other ones like early
childhood and some of these other programs, I'd be more than happy to, to see if we can put
additional funding in there too. But, again, let's, let's take care of this. this kinds of programs for
which we take care of and many... many good organizations like ME0 have done a great job in
assisting people. And like that lady. you know, taking care of that family because the mother
didn't eat just because she wanted to make sure the son got taken care of, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So what.. .you want to come back to this?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I really don't care.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, Chair-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I, I guess the other question I have for you is, this could be, you
know, if it's just one member is.. and no offense to any member including myself...if we've got
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more people that really wanna see it move on and.. .maybe instead of consensus we get to a point
say, taking votes because I don't wanna be here to the end of the week still having one question-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I understand, yeah, understand.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I can do that if you guys want.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, I think I like that, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, everybody...I need a motion to accept the $300.000 as indicated by the
Chairman, we increase the funding to grants and disbursements for affordable.. .rental housing
programs so that the new total for that one particular program increase by $300.000 to...and the
new total be $725.000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved. Mr. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It'd been moved and second, moved by Member Victorino, second by
Member Baisa. Oh, Member Carroll, any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Just that this is very appropriate. All those funds that were
appropriated before were all used and I think this is going to be something that can really, really
help our family and thank you for putting it in there, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. All in favor of the motion, please say, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Opposed? Seeing none, motion is carried.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Balsa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE Chair's proposed increase to line item re: Grants and
disbursements for affordable rental housing programs.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. This is okay. Human Services [sic]. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. On the General line there on Page 7. I wanted to add a
proviso that $60.000 be.. .go to MEO for Enlace Hispano program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. It's been moved by Member-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, is it gonna be a motion now?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, we can do it that way, sure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, no. Yeah. because-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh,. /inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, you guys have any discussion on that?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second. second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair has a... because we have an Immigration Office for the County of
Maui, and maybe Ms. Ridao can provide us some comments in regards to the services that we, as
a County, provide to.. .immigration services and also, you know, programs like.. .to support all
of the different communities we have here in Maui County. Last year, I know we had a lot of
discussion in regards to what we can do. And we felt at that time that we could do the programs
for, for the Spanish-speaking people. Ms. Ridao?
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MS. RIDAO: Thank you, Chair. When I first met with you, I did consult with our...Immigration
Services staff, the Director who is Kevin Block. And Kevin explained to me that he very much
supports the Enlace Program because of the work that MEO has done with the Hispanic people
and, and getting them to know where they go. establishing trust with the organization and
I.. . when you.. .1 guess when you work with immigrant population, it's very important. So in
Kevin's view of this situation. he does support the program remaining with ME0 so I have no
problem with the provision that you wanna put on there. And. in fact, he said, if the monies were
put in his budget he would probably contract with ME0 to do it anyway.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let me ask you this question. In regards to this present budget, 2011, have we
supported any of the Spanish-speaking people here in Maui County?
MS. RIDAO:

.(Inaudible).

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Did we have a problem in supporting through the Immigration Program. the
Spanish-speaking people?
MS. RIDAO: My, my understanding is that there is a grant currently is to the...to ME0 to do the
Enlace program. If your question is are we capable of taking on the Enlace program, we, we
would have to hire additional help and that help would probably come from the Enlace staff.
We'd probably try to hire the Enlace staff.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So presently then, we still grant out to MEO?
MS. RIDAO: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The program.
MS. RIDAO: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, so this... can we still continue to do that rather than make another line
item?
MS. RIDAO: I.. .the Budget Director gotta answer that.
MR. BAZ: Sure. Mr. Chair, upon direction of previous Council, an appropriation of
Fiscal Year '11 Budget, there was a proviso in there specifically that that would be the last year
of the grant. When the Mayor...proposed the Mayor's budget for 2012 that item, as directed by
Council last year, was taken out. The funding for that is within Immigration Services Division
under their index code for a total of $60.000 under Contracted Services. So the money is still
there and.. .and just like the, the Department we would support the, you know, grant too,
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, so it's under Contract Services?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
MR. BAZ: As proposed by the.. .in, in the '12 Budget. But the '11 Budget, Ms. Ridao is correct that it,
it's a grant to MEO.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's fine. Mr. Victorino followed by Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The thing is we... if I remember Mr. Couch's motion was
to...for...for the program. right? We didn't mention that MEO would be the one to do it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, so I, I would like to see that as part of the proviso. If that's
what we're intending to do, then you need to put it in there.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I said it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I think he said it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You did?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I said MEO, yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I didn't hear it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I heard MEO. You said MEO, right?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I didn't hear it.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I didn't hear it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.. lot of guys didn't hear it so.. I'm sorry, okay, it wasn't, it
wasn't.. .1 did not hear it. So just to make sure that the, the, the motion is correct. then
that...make sure that is added, yeah?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, we don't have a motion yet, okay? Chair didn't recognize-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh. okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --the motion, okay? Mr. Hokama?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, for the Director, please. You know, understand some of the
historic backgrounds or reasons why the Enlace program is where it is today. But, you know, for
me and I'm just wondering because you shared some interesting information of the various
groups Immigration Services provides assistance to. especially I believe it was the European or
the German component was ten percent and, and those things. So here we...are as part of our
economic development strategy, we're hearing about the need for expansion and to put certain
types of marketing and. and County monies toward Korea and China and yet under this
immigration side where I. I assume we're gonna get some of those Korean. Chinese businesses
and other people wishing to.. .do their activities from Maui island. I mean are we gonna take
care of them in the same manner? Are we gonna create programs to address the Asian
component like how we do for the, the Hispanic component here?
MS. RIDAO: Council-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: As part of our overall, you know, approach or strategy of how we're gonna
give fairness to the different groups?
MS. RIDAO: Councilmember, I think you are correct. The. the Enlace program is, is a pretty unique
situation. As far as having to increase the services to other populations or other ethnicities'
i mmigrants that move into the state, that is going to have to be addressed as we see the need.
That is my, my take on this. Currently, the Immigration Services is able to handle a very broad
range of. of ethnicities and I think if they feel that there is.. .they're going to need more expertise
or more staff because the number is increasing.. .the number we do now is around 12,000
i mmigrants a year. And that is with.. .1 believe there's four or five staff in that division. So if we
see that there is, you know. more Koreans or more...other populations starting to utilize the
service, I'm sure Kevin will make that known to me. And we will have to come back to you at,
at our next budget session-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: .(Inaudible). . .
MS. RIDAO: --to explain why we need to increase.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I just shared that because for Lanai that is not the sector that I think we need
to provide more help to on Lanai. It's not the core group that I think we need.. .we should be
serving on Lanai. You know, maybe.. .and for Maui it makes.. .it may make perfect sense, have
more support, rationale why it makes sense here. And I'll let Mr. Mateo talk for Molokai. But I
tell you, it's not, not for Lanai, yeah. I would. I would rather have support in other areas from
Immigration Services.
MS. RIDAO: I. I do know, Council Member, that in this past year there was quite a increase of
Micronesians on Lanai and our immigrant services had to go over there and actually do training
with the Micronesians as well as with the community regarding. you know, the, the cultural
differences and the way Micronesians deal with certain aspects of...that is very different than we
deal. So I know that, this past year at least, Lanai did utilize.. Immigration Services. On, on
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Molokai, I believe it's a lot to do with the, the immigrant workers that have moved to Molokai.
Mrs... .what is her name? Mrs. Molina has been with them for a very long time and done an
excellent job for Molokai.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm done. Thank you. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, thank, thank you. Madam Director, thank you for the
information you, you shared with us. And my only concern actually hinges on comments made
by Member Hokama. I think in the past, you know, when we were providing...when you look at
your services being provided to the Hispanic community versus the services that the County of
Maui's Immigration Office provides to the other immigrants that we serve, it, it's hard to
compare, you know, what, what we're doing. And then if these monies get funneled from the
I mmigration section of the department funnel to ME0 to provide service, specialized services to
another ethnic group, you know, we've.. .I've heard the need right now for the Micronesian
group who also want to get services from the County the same way that the Hispanics are
receiving services. And, and it goes on and on to a point where if the funds are being channeled
or fund from your department via Immigration Office to another component, the question
becomes, we are then not providing a balanced service to the immigration.. to meet the
i mmigration needs. That is just concerns that I think, you know, may surface. And it's nothing
about the Hispanic community, what you're getting. It's what fairness in the Immigration Office
being able to provide mutual services and when we do this, there is no parity. And I start to
worry about other ethnic groups wanting specialized services. And, you know, they may need
this special services but who's gonna pay for these things? So for me, you look at leveling the
playing field and, you know, Mr. Block's comments about wanting to, to contract, I think if the
County has a department charged with that responsibility, then perhaps we need to look deeper at
the seriousness of us continuing to provide this service. period, for all ethnic organizations. So I,
I have my own concerns about parity of services and, and it's nothing to do with who's providing
it and what group. It's parity. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. RIDAO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COLTNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair. And thank you very much. Just a little bit of a historical
perspective. I remember last year when we were making this decision and there were a couple of
reasons. One was that we were looking for a substantial cut. I think everybody remembers last
year was a slash and burn cut the budget. And so ME0 looked at its programs and ME0 said,
well, maybe the least harmful thing would be to give up Enlace Hispano because it should be a
service that can be done by the Immigration Office. And so it was from MEO's side where they
offered Enlace Hispano as a cut assuming that the Immigration Office would be able to take up,
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take up the slack. Well, what we're hearing from the Immigration Office is that they're having a
really difficult time because they don't have enough staff to take care of everybody. And they
themselves are saying this is a job we'd like to give ME0 because it's just too much for us. The
other thing I heard during the earlier discussion when the Department was here was about the
cost. And, you know, I don't know how many staff ME0 has in Enlace Hispano anymore but
I' m sure it's very few because for $60.000, you can't have that many people. Now if we put this
back in the Immigration Services and ask them to take everybody, can they? Or will they need a
lot more money in order to do it? And that's the only concern I have. It's not that ME0 is
wedded to taking care of the Hispanics, it's something that grew at ME0 and that's the history of
it. That's why we are where we are.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do you need a motion or...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I, I. ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I just have a question. Ms. Ridao, thank you for being here. So this
60,000 being asked for Enlace Hispano and this additional service within our Immigration
Service, could this help provide that extra service within our own Immigration Services, this
60.000? Would it help?
MS. RIDAO: Councilmember, thank you for that question. If, if we have not done an, you know, an
analysis of what it would cost us to do...service the Spanish population in-house. I, I do believe
that ME0 does a little more than just, you know...we, we handle mostly everything that goes
through the INS, anything that...any paperwork that has to be done. However, I believe ME0
goes a.. .a little further in helping the individual immigrant with maybe job placement, helping
them locate housing, more of a case management. We do not do any case management at all.
It's strictly getting the proper paperwork done for your specific problem.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. But I was thinking and not just addressing the Hispanic
community but overall all the other, you know, ethnicities that we're talking about and... that are
growing within our County. So, I mean, I guess I'd like to make sure that our Immigration
Services is up to par and working at its full potential or possible to address everybody as I
believe some of my other Members.. .have concerns about, you know. And it's not about are
you Hispanic, are you Micronesian, it's just about everyone overall. And if our particular
County department just cannot address at all and here we wanna outsource to someone else, I
mean I'd like to look within our system. Sounds like we're inadequate, well then, let's make it
adequate.
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MS. RIDAO: And that is what the wishes of this body is, we would be very willing to look at that as a
department, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, any more discussion? Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, one real quick thing before I make a motion. You're looking for a
motion? Is that correct?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If you wanna add on what you wanted to do, I need a motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I wanted to say that, that this project.. .two things. If, if we
move it into Immigration Services, they said they can't do it and they're gonna either have to
hire new people which is more civil servants that we've been trying not to do. or farm it out
which we've been working on trying to do that in different instances as well. What's happening
now is MEO, the provider, is providing a better service than what we are providing now. So
we're getting not, not as.. .a much better service.. .not much better but a better service than what
our County can provide through the Immigration Department. So the question is do we improve
the Immigration Services Department to do the same kind of services, farm out for the other
ethnicities the same kind of services, or do we take a good program and bring it down to the level
that everybody else is getting. That's, you know, I'd rather move everybody else up. And if it
costs a little more money then let's do it that way as opposed to bringing, bringing one... system
down. That being said, I move that we put a proviso in for $60,000 to MEO for Enlace Hispano.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The motion is to provide $60.000 to Enlace program administered by
MEO, seconded by Member Baisa. Members, any more discussion? Chair is just gonna make a
comment. I feel the same as Member Mateo. I feel the same as Member Cochran. If we're
gonna do it as a County, then I would task the Department to be more effective in all
different... ethnic groups that come to this County. So for the Chair, Members, the Chair is
gonna vote no on the motion. Okay-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I totally agree with you. I do believe that it is time to take a look
at the functions of our Immigration Department and see who's getting served. who's not getting
served, where the greatest needs are because, you know, I'm sure that the population requests
that come into the office vary greatly. We may see a lot more of certain ethnicities than others
because. you know, we have large population movements from some countries and maybe just a
few from others that they can easily handle. If they have two or three people from China a
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month. that's easy. But if they have 50 or 100 people from some place coming in, that's another
area. So I do believe that something needs to be done about an assessment and if the Department
needs redoing, then it needs redoing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion? All in favor of the motion.
please say, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, roll call. Member Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the Chair votes no. Motion is carried with five ayes, four noes. We're
gonna add the proviso that $60,000 be allotted to MEO for the Enlace program. Motion is
carried.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Balsa, Carroll, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Cochran
and Mateo.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE proposed proviso re: $60,000 for Enlace Hispano in Human
Concerns Program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, next area. Grants to community partnership grants. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair. This is the one where I wanted to find out if...I
want to include $50.000 for Special Olympics at their request and prior.., in prior years that's
where the grant was but I was informed by Staff that that isn't a place to go for that right now.
And maybe if Staff can explain that. If... and if that isn't the place for it to go, I would like to
add a line item for that for just this one year until we could find a place.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaneshina?
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Just to clarify, this is in regard to Special Olympics.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Special Olympics, yes.
MR. KANESHINA: I, I probably defer to.. .because what we can see from looking at past budgets
was.. it was in the Community Partnership Grants and I'm not quite clear as what the
department's internal procedures are. So I, I defer to the department to-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. KANESHINA: --maybe advise the Committee on where the most appropriate place is to put this
grant.

- 106 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
May 3,2011

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Department?
MS. RIDAO: Thank you, Chair. Under, under this category...Community
.
Partnership Grants, this
funding goes through what is called the Grants Review Committee. So the Grants Review
Committee made the decision this year not to fund Special Olympics and they had some very,
very valid reasons why. So I think Staff is right. You cannot just take 50.000 from here or
proviso 50,000 from here because it's the Grants Review Committee decision. It's not the
Council's decision. So if you want to give 50,000 to Special Olympics, then it has to be a
separate line item. I guess.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, I. I guess that would be the request then. I don't know how we
would do that. Make it a special line or...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, if you wanna create a line item for Special Olympics then the Chair
would allow a motion to that. But let me caution you-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, you have to find a place to take it out.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We're adding money-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --I wanna find out where you gonna take out money.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do you want to find out where that is now or do we wanna get the list
and say, okay, where do we wanna take it from?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If, if we can do it right now, fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, I have.. .1 mean there's several places that I'm looking at doing it
and one of them is OPEB money.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, we're not gonna go to OPEB until-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. So that's like.., from within Housing and Human Concerns?
No, I don't have a place to take it from. But I do have a place in the General Fund that I would
like to consider.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And so any adds, okay, any adds other than proviso, proviso
everything remains status quo, just that $60.000 in the last one need to be.. well, they're going
have to find $60,000. So if you're gonna add anything, then I, I would consider where you're
gonna remove monies from.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, then I'll-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --would like to-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, we can come back to that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Come back to that, thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Special Olympics. But in regards to the Community Partnership Grants,
Members, any more questions to that?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo followed by Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And I want to follow up with the. the Director
regarding Special Olympics. If the GRC decided not to provide funding for Special Olympics,
did they.. .what was the justification for their denial?
MS. RIDAO: My understanding. and I. I don't have the exact details, however, my understanding was a
lack of accountability and reporting.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So all of the departments. . .(inaudible). . .organizations that
receives funding from the GRC, there is a process that they normally go through and part of the
process includes a follow up reporting requirement and Special Olympics at this point did not
comply with that particular requirement so the GRC decided not to fund?
MS. RIDAO: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And apparently then the Department does follow up with these
organizations and remind them that there is a requirement that they must comply with?
MS. RIDAO: Yes.
COLTNCILMEMBER MATEO: And Special Olympics just did not. And the only reason I ask.
Mr. Chair, is because it becomes problematic when the organization ends up here, you know,
telling us that they didn't get fundinu, telling us that they normally get these high ratings, telling
us that, you know, that they're supported. And, yeah. they should be. It's a, it's a worthy
organization. But equally important is.. .for us to understand there are.. .there's processes to
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follow. And I don't know what attempts the GRC group made to contact Special Olympics and
advise them of their.. .1 guess not complying with part of their requirements. But when we get to
this point it, it always becomes, you know, quite difficult for us because there's requirements and
what do we do? Do we just over step these requirements and then provide funding for
organizations that didn't comply? I don't know what the message is where we're, we're
providing to other organizations but it does provide worry for me because this is such a worthy
organization.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department, if you want to respond?
MS. RIDAO: I, I just wanted to let the Council know that.. I'm sorry, the Budget Committee know that
the Department requires a quarterly reporting. And, you know, we have challenges with many of
the nonprofits and I must say the Grants Management staff has bent over backwards and they,
they try to work with them, in fact, to help them be in compliance. And, you know, they'll call
them in to come in and.. or. or they'll go to their office and sit down with them and try to go
over what the problems may be with their compliance or with their reporting. So I don't think
it's a, it's a lack of the Department trying to help them be in compliance. Many times you run
into this problem with nonprofits. in a. in a. like a change in, in their administration, a change of
their executive director, a change of their accounting staff. And that's where our staff is really
valuable 'cause they can go in and help them. In this instance, I, I believe that they did try and
there are still some concerns.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: .. .(Inaudible). . .
MS. RIDAO: Only one?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Is it only one report missing or-MS. RIDAO: I think.. .1 don't think that they did their reporting at all for last year but I would have to
clarify that.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, Members, moving on. As far as the Community
Partnership Grants number. is that.. .on this one, I'll just gonna take a vote. All in favor of
approving the Community Partnership Grants, number of $1,110.845-MR. KANESHINA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
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MR. KANESHINA: Do we, do we have a motion on the floor?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, I'm gonna ask for one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's what he's asking.
MR. KANESHINA: Should you, would it be maybe more appropriate to take a consensus on this one?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Consensus. Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Just for clarification, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: My understanding is that the, the... the group we were just talking
about... . .(chuckles). . ....Special Olympics, is still able to come back and apply for these
grants?
MS. RIDAO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right? There's nothing stopping them from coming back next year.
MS. RIDAO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The next area is Grants and disbursements for culture and the arts.
$64,000.
MS. RIDAO: Where are we?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 7. number 3.
MR. KANESHINA: Excuse me. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: It appears that that one, we.. .had consensus on yesterday.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: We already had consensus. Okay, fine. Next one is Grants and disbursements
for early childhood. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Mr. Chair, if...as I've said. I've, I've gone through and identified
agencies that are getting less funding than they had a couple of years ago. If there is not enough
support for that concept, then, then I don't want to belabor it with, you know, going through each
one of these. But, you know, I open the floor if, if anyone else feels that we should be
reenergizing some of these funding levels. I would certainly support it. I've put down a number
but I'm okay just moving through it if we don't have support for that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, do we have consensus on the number, $76.500 for Grants and
disbursements for early childhood. E Malama I Na Keiki 0 Lanai Preschool?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, the question I would have for the Department, if I may?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What, what would.. .what did.. .are they expending? I mean I,
I...you know, you have a figure here. Do they need more? I mean did they ask.. .what did they
ask for? I'm sorry, that's what I should say. I apologize. .. .(chuckles). .
MS. RIDAO: That's a very good question. Councilmember Victorino. At the start of this grant...I
mean this budget process, we asked all of the nonprofits, all of our grants.. .grantees to consider a
flat budget as we were considering as a department. And if they could live within that flat
budget we felt that it was, it was fair to everyone. And most of them, all of them pretty much
said, you know, that, that they could live within their last year's budget.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Well, you know, Chair, I, too, and I just mentioned earlier,
would support increasing to, to a year ago or three years ago, whatever the funding was. You
know, obviously you gotta find the money. I think in our budgets we've saved enough that we
can find, you know, if you talking 3,000, 10,000. 5.000, not large sums of money, we can't. But
I' m curious, you know, they answered that way, Ms. Ridao, because you asked it that way.
MS. RIDAO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Now did anyone say, oh. I could really use a little bit more but
I' m okay. I'm gonna stick with this because I don't wanna, pardon the expression, create waves.
You know, sorry, you know. Ms. Ridao?
MS. RIDAO: You know, none of them came back with any strong feelings that they needed more
money at the time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. 'Cause some of them when they came to meet us,
expressed different concerns. But, you know, I, I, I s m gonna leave it and see what others have to
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say. But I'm willing to look at a little additionals in, in a lot of these if, if we can figure out
where the money coming from and I think we've cut enough that there is money available if we
just wanna look it. But anyhow, Chair, I.. .1 wanna hear what others have to say. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I. I just gonna make a comment. When we went to.. .Lanai. there was
no talk about increasing this one particular line„ .item except for the.. .Lanai Community Health
Center.
MS. RIDAO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Which they requested $39,000 which we included in this budget.
Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, my. my position would be that I. I think the... those programs
that are listed here have worked hard to deal with the parameters that the Department asked them
to work with. And they made some tough decisions. They made appropriate adjustments within
their program area and I would. I would prefer that we honor that work that they did and go with
the numbers that is being presented now. I mean, you know, for me, I mean I'm sure, you know,
every entity would like more money. But this is not about giving money just because you have
money, you know. If we, we gonna consider giving money for entities then what is gonna be
expected in addition to what they gonna.. let's say they gonna perform for the current proposal.
'Cause just to give money to give money is not in my wallet. And second. I think what needs to
be also shared. Chairman, as a reminder is even if you make the budget as a grantee
consideration, there is no guarantee the monies will be released. We cannot guarantee that the
Administration is going to release the...the money we appropriate. This is a decision that the
Mayor needs to make regarding the County's general welfare at a, at a point in time. So just
'cause you make the budget doesn't mean you automatically receive money, you know. You
may still get zero if that's the Administration's decision after reviewing the request to release.
So I think we need to keep that in also perspective that because Council grants doesn't mean you
will receive. There's still another process to be made. But for me, Chairman, I can live with it.
You know, I don't agree with some that you're recommending to fund 'cause, you know, I
consider some programs to be in a different economic component. And I don't have a problem
with helping those that need the hands up. But I think there's enough entities that already
standing up straight and tall already, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion? So, Members, do we have
consensus in regards to the number that has been presented?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Consensus, okay. The next one is Early Childhood Programs. Chair had
indicated that we'll be increasing this by $14,500. So the new number is $100,000. Mr. White,
you have...
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm okay with that, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Consensus, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maui Economic Opportunity for Infant/Toddler Care Program. Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair. I withdraw my request to revisit. I have checked with the
Director and I understand that they're okay with the amount in there. So thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Consensus? Oh, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm, I'm fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Nisei Veterans Memorial Center Preschool. dba Kansha Preschool.
Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I still don't agree with that funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So there's no consensus. The Chair, Chair-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Only on that, just on that one. Chairman. I, I supporting you on the previous
numbers. . (includible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do you want a motion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If, again, if we don't have consensus, then can we make a motion?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh yeah. That's what I'm . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So then I move that we include this...wait, wait, where are we?
$20,700 for Kansha Preschool.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, second by Member Couch. Any more
discussion. Members? All in favor of the motion, please say, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any noes?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, motion is carried. Eight ayes, one no, Mr. Hokama. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh. one excused. Mr. Carroll.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla and Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Mateo,
Victorino, and White.
NOES: Vice-Chair Hokama.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE line item re: Nisei Veterans Memorial Center Preschool, dba
Kansha Preschool.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Grants.. .Grants and disbursements for health, human services, and education,
American Red Cross, $9.000. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WRITE: Thank you. Mr. Chair. This. this is an organization we're, we're
looking at putting money into an emergency fund for ourselves. This is one of those agencies
that is standing by ready to help whenever we ask. And their funding has been cut from 20.000
to 9,000 and I'd like to think that we can do a little more for them. I, I would like to recommend
going back up to the 20,000 and if there's any support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I gotta come back to this one, okay?
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I wanna get as many consensuses as I can get because if I'm gonna take votes
on every single one of 'em. we're not going get done. So we'll revisit, Mr. White, if it's okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: That's fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Community Work Day. Mr. White? Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Victorino.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mike.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: That's a V there, not a W.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter).
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's okay, that's okay, you know. I wanna revisit this 'cause
I'd like to put a little bit more money in that too, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Okay, Easter Seals. Mr. Couch? Oh. before I take Easter Seals, I just
wanna make a comment.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yep.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If you notice in this budget proposals for nonprofits, I did not include any CIP
type budget requests, okay?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, got ya.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, I just asked to revisit it to see if we could find the appropriate
funding to put that back in.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, and as I note their first alternate project for CDBG program, okay?
Grants for Services to the Frail and Elderly. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, there again, if there's. ..1, I sense that there's not the commitment
to increase these so I, I'm fine with that number.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Consensus, Members?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hale Mahaolu Personal Care Program...oh no, not that one.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: We had consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That was okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Page 9. Maui Food Bank. Inc., the Maui Community Food Bank.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That, that was me, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Again, one of those that I really think we need to, if we can find it,
put more money there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There's a dying need out there. Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, I, I just need to have some clarification from the Department. In. in. in
the last request.. .hang on, yeah, let me confer with Staff.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that's fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff, what was the 20...2010. 2011 budget?
MR. KANESHINA: I, I believe, from what I recall. the line item grant for the Food Bank in
Fiscal Year '11 as proposed by the Mayor was 200,000 and then your Budget and Finance
Committee increased that appropriation to 300,000 and the Mayor for the Fiscal '12 has
proposed 300,000. So flat to what the Council approved last term.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh. and thankful for that. Don't get me wrong, Mr. Chair, but this
is one of the areas that I, I have known that there are a lot of people that are just really on the
borderline when it comes to food. And the need has gotten greater and greater and all the
fundraisers and all the drives out there has not been able to keep up. And, you know, they're
right below my other office and I go down there and it's, it's pretty bad right now. So, I,
I.. . we'll find some money but I would like to revisit that. please, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Clarification. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And is this your proviso. Chairman, or is this Mr. Victorino's proviso
proposal?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This was the Mayor's one.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The, the increase and the, the proviso?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I. I had increased it to.. .by $100,000 for the 2011 Budget. And the
Mayor...and the appropriation-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Mr.-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --in '11 was 300.000. So actually it's a flat budget.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh. okay, Mr. Chairman. I'm sorry, I thought we were on the Homeless
Program and the food, food one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We pau. We consensus already all that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, we're at University of-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just for clarification. then. On that proviso for the Homeless under the... for
the food. You know, that additional 59,000 where you rounded it off to 600,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That is for program such as Hale Kau Kau and not 60.000 for Hale Kau
Kau, right?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 60.000 for Hale Kau Kau-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Programs. So I'm assuming-CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's Hale Kau Kau.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --it's similar type of program and not necessarily Hale Kau Kau itself.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, no. Hale Kau Kau.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Hale Kau Kau, I. ..that was my proviso.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then there's other organizations in there that share the.. .$600,000.
COLTNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: Was it the intent of the Committee to give a grant to Hale Kau Kau for $60.000?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: For their food program.
MR. BAZ: Okay, might I suggest that that be the language then. a grant to-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We'll change that.
MR. BAZ: It'd make it clear.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so why don't we do it for the whole program then, Chairman, if we're
gonna distribute out the, the money anyway?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: For the.. .in this Homeless Program, I think there were, like, how many areas?
Five or six?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: A bunch.
MS. RIDAO: I'm sorry, Chair, but I didn't bring my list. There, there is quite a few agencies that are
funded under this Homeless Program provision. All, all of the homeless providers. Family Life
Center. MEO, Hale Kau Kau...I'm trying to think of who was on that list. But.. .yeah. Salvation
Army„.there's a whole list of about maybe eight or ten agencies.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But if„ .my reason for my rationale behind of this, if I'm correct,
this is the only one in South Maui. I don't know of any other programs around in South Maui
who feed the homeless and take.. .homebound people meals.
MS. RIDAO: Correct. In, in.. .as far as meals is concerned. However, the Salvation Army does service
South Kihei...I mean South Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: South Maui, yeah. But I mean as far as this program, this was the
only program.
MS. RIDAO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: In other areas you had a multitude of programs that share, share
amongst.. .1 mean-MS. RIDAO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you know, take care the areas, yeah?
MS. RIDAO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, that was my, my rationale for South Maui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I. I understand the proviso.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Next one is University of Hawaii Maui College Coop Educational
Program. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think Staff might've misheard somebody 'cause I don't have anything
on this. I didn't have any-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --thing in my budget either so...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Consensus, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That was Riki's.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I'm fine.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, was yours?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, the Chair will entertain a motion to move forward $50.000
for University of Hawaii Maui College Coop Educational Program.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved. Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Member Couch. Any more
discussion? All in favor of the motion, please say, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposing?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Roll call.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, I heard the two.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Three.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, roll call. Member Carroll? Page 9, University of Hawaii. Member Baisa,
we'll go to you first.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Chair votes aye. Six ayes, three noes. Motion is carried. Thank you.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla and Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
and Victorino.
NOES: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmembers Mateo and White.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE line item re: University of Hawaii — Maui College Cooperative
Education Program at 550,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Women Helping Women. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: There, again, Chair, I have„..1 have increase of 29,000 but Fm okay if
there's no support for that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Consensus, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
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MR. MURRAY: Yes, they are operators. Actually, we wouldn't hire Fire Fighter Is. What we'll
do...sorry...would be to promote Fire Fighter Is or transfer Fire Fighter Ills to those positions if
they choose to.
COLTNCILMEMBER MATEO: So the intent then is to take existing Fire Fighter I positions to go
through this period of training so they would end up being Ins?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, whoever is on the list would...if...for these positions would be promotions for
them. And the grant.. .can only be asked for the lowest paying position and that. that's
the...that's kinda the confusion to this grant.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So we're not hiring from outside per se. We're already picking up
from-MR. MURRAY: Right, within.
COLTNCILMEMBER MATEO: --those employed within the Department that-MR. MURRAY: That, that meet the minimum qualifications, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So this is not new positions. then. This...these...this is just
promotions within the Department?
MR. MURRAY: Right, but the grant only allows us to...the Feds would only pay for-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Two years.
MR. MURRAY: --for two years at the lowest, lowest rate. So your new hire or trainee or recruit, that's
the pay that they would give you for those two years.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So existing, existing Fire Fighter Is, that would be considered the
lowest, the lowest level?
MR. MURRAY: Not the existing, would be new hire. They would take the newest.. .the lowest pay
rate in our Department, their starting pay. at the lowest rate. That's the only funding that they
would fulfill.
COLTNCILMEMBER MATEO: And these Fire Fighter Is, they wouldn't...they would agree to taking a
lesser step so that they can be promoted up to Ills?
MR. MURRAY: No, that's not how it would work.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So how, how're you're gonna take from within your Department if Fire
Fighter Is are already being paid at a higher level than what the grant will require?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let's see. Substance Abuse Program. Provided $100,000 shall be for Maui
Economic Opportunity, Inc. BEST Program. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I would like-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Somebody wanted.. .we miss Ohana Makamae?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --oh, I'm sorry. You missed Ohana Makamae, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh. sorry.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's all right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ohana Makamae. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair,
interested in.. .(inaudible).

I'll go with the, go with the flow with the majority. I'm not

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Substance Abuse Program. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, I'd like to.. .1, I know you.. .1 noticed that you did put a 100.000 in
there. In my, my submitted budget, I asked, actually asked for an additional 60.000 and then the
proviso say that 120.000 be used for BEST. So that leaves more for the rest of the Substance
Abuse Programs but also puts BEST up to 120.000. If we can find that and if everybody agrees,
I would.. .that's what I would propose.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. So you wanna add more to the Substance Abuse Program?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I wanted to add 60.000 more and then change the proviso, say that
120,000 shall be for MEO BEST.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll come back to that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I wanna support that. T wanna...I just wanna disclose that, you know,
when I made some comments about this that The Muni News mentioned, they said that, you
know, I wanted more money for BEST. And I immediately got phone calls from the agencies,
not all of them but several of them, who receive money through this pot and they were very
concerned 'cause, you know, they're running their programs and they have their own activities.
And they were very concerned about us diminishing the pot and, and then they wouldn't have
money for their services. So this is why I, I know there's $60,000 in this line item so we wanted
to identify that 60,000 and if we can find 60,000 more, that'll give the BEST program $120.000
to do their work and it'll enable them to have enough case management staff and support to
really do a good program. So thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We'll come back.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Grants and disbursements for youth centers and programs. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Again, it might be that Mr. Hokama sounds like me. I don't have
anything on that one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: On, on my notes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Consensus, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I think that might have been me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh, Chair, you know, as you were taken by the, the rental assistance
testifier, during our public testimony I was. I was quite taken by the Best Buddies program
because when you hear that a kid says after they've graduated from college. I would've loved to
have just one friend during the time I was in high school and college and this is what Best
Buddies is doing for me. that tears at my heart strings. And so I think it's a great program and
this, this addition would just simply get it back to where it was two years ago and allow them to
expand the number of people they're taking care of.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: My request was for an added 21,9 to take it back up to about 80,000.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, I'll come back to that then. Okay, moving on. Hawaiian Kamalii.
Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I'm okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, consensus. Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh. I'm sorry. Okay, Keiki Kokua. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Here again, this is an example of a.. .an agency that's gone to the extent
of establishing a thrift shop to generate income. You look at the, the number of people they
seem to be taking care of and the small amount of money that they've, they've requested. I came
up with an increase of, of... increase back to $30.000 to help them expand their work.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This is the one that do the thrift shop. I, I think they gross like, or net like
$100,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If we remember, they came to us in 2009 if I remember correctly
asking for help and it was originally to buy backpacks, right? Was it backpacks that they
needed?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Suitcases, backpacks.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, was backpacks. okay. Anyhow, anyhow, and they do a
wonderful job and they do great things. But they can.. .they want.. .they told us at that time that
they were working hard to become self-sufficient. They got the thrift store, they got fundraisers,
they got all kinds of stuff. And I would hope and pray that others would start looking at that
because we are a very generous County and we try our best to take care of our needy. But there
comes a point when the needy gets...in your case right. Chair? You, you said it. We're getting
to the point now that we've gotta balance this. And there are the taxpayers out there that are
saying. whoa! You can't keep raising my taxes. Hotels, timeshare, residents. companies. So
again, I love this program and all the programs. And as I said earlier, some that I really wanna

- 125 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
May 3,2011

see more money put in because they're in.. .there's more need like the Food Bank. There's a
need that has grown. Not to say that this hasn't grown but they've also found other sources and
they, they gross some pretty good money up there at that store. So, and we gave them 25,000 in
2009. So my, my concern is, you know, is this for a lot or a few? And the other side is they
have revenue-generating systems that I wanna support what they have and maybe at this point
maybe not more at this time. Thank you. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I'd just like to make a comment that was made up in Pukalani that
this organization, I, I know they have this thrift shop and they generate a lot of revenue. And one
of the comments that she made was that hopefully one day that they come back to this County
and provide monies so that we could help other organizations. And that's the kind of
organizations that I wanna see in this County rather than always ask, ask, ask, like you,
Mr. Victorino. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I.. .you, you took the words right out of my mouth. She did say. and as
well as what Mr. Victorino was saying, that they are looking to get off the.. .County's dime. So
she didn't want more than the 17.6 and she's hoping that I think this was her last year. And I, I, I
appreciate Mr. White's intent but this is one that we wanna encourage more to do. They.. .have
become or very close to become self-sustaining so I would support the amount that's there now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you. Chair. I also will support the 17,600. I had a
really. „and I'm staying close to Keiki Kokua because I donate all of my clothing that I no longer
fit in or, you know, want new ones . .(chuckles)... and, and other stuff. And I take it over
there and they've done an incredible job with their thrift shop and they have great volunteers and
they've done great work. And Ms. St. James is really, really understanding of leveraging money.
And I do believe that they will be self-sufficient in short order. And however, if things were to
go bad and say next year their thrift shop doesn't do as well or something happens and they come
and say well, instead of 17 this year, we need maybe 10 because we fell short or whatever, I
would be more than willing to entertain that because they're making the effort. And it's just
really an amazing thing to watch. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I support the amount in the budget. I think it's appropriate. We'd
all like to give more to everybody but we need to look at the need and, and in deference to
Mr. White, I enjoy his heart. But he's proposing something that the need is not there. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. I have been very critical of Keiki Kokua all
these years and primarily because this is an organization that came to us and said help us this
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once. And we've seen them second time, third time and then now fourth time. And, you know,
I, I think the difference with this organization, because they've, they've, you know. the St. James
have kinda grown on me because
.(laughter).
we've seen.. .we've actually seen what
they've, they've done. They not only walk the walk, but they have talked it as well--or vice
versa, or whatever the hell that is. . .(Laughter). . . But the reality is they had a need, they went
and developed the thrift store concept and they've made it work for them. They've, they've,
they've gotten recognition not only in the Haiku community but throughout and, and the work
they do is, is, is really heart-wrenching because there is a definite need. I, I commend them for it
and I'm really grateful that they've had the opportunity now to expand and grow it out to the
point where they can survive with less monies from us. the County taxpayers. And I'm grateful
to them, kudos to the St. James because they, they've made this project work for them. And, you
know, to them thank you for allowing us the opportunity now to now look at helping other
nonprofits. So thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, I would imagine that nearly every group to whom we're giving
money now, came to us the first time and said we probably won't...we just need it this time. We
talked about incentives earlier and.. .yeah, I'm. „I'll go, I'll go along with the, the rest of the
group. But I just have to point out that here we have a group that's doing really good work with
foster kids and everybody knows that's a really challenging arena to, to work in. And. anyway,
I, I think it'd be.. .1 guess for me, it's. it's important to show our appreciation for those that are
taking the bull by the horns and doing things on their own. But I. I accept the fact that they're
only asking for 17,6 so I'll go along with the group. But again, maybe we should proviso in
some of these other grants that they start a thrift shop of their own.
MS. RIDAO: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's not a bad idea.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We get all the thrift shops around town.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, do I have consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And I saw in The Maui News Women Helping Women-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It just opened.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --they do have a boutique shop that they started also so we do have some
organizations that is trying to raise funding for themselves so I really appreciate that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair. just a personal note. Please, not too many thrift stores
'cause St. Anthony is having a difficult time. .. .(laughter)... Enough thrift stores in Wailuku.
That's just a personal comment. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I. I know they have lot of money in Philadelphia. . . .(Laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Be careful now or you wanna go with that one. . .(Laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Lahaina Touring Project. Like, Mr. White, I give up.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter).
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Consensus, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let's see. Maui Economic Opportunity for Youth Services.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, we got consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, Youth Centers.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry. Youth Centers, $1,667.000. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Again, that was not me. I think it was Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That was Mr. White again.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE:

go along with the crew.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Consensus, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Youth Programs. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Same.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Consensus, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next one is Arts in Education and Innovative Programs provided by the
Maui Arts and Cultural Center. Chair is adding $400,000 and Members, I need to say this.
There is a match of $1.2 million attached to this.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh. right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Where is the match coming from?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: From private donations. It's already there.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, the reason I asked about this is this... it kinda appeared out
of nowhere and I hadn't heard anybody come and testify or anything. But you mentioned that
there's a match of another 1.2.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm fine with that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Consensus, Members?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: The Department just would like a little direction as far as the required matching and how to
monitor that and, and things.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll get that to you.
MR. BAZ: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Page 11. Oh. that's it for Department of Housing and Human Services
[sic]. Oh. Jo-Ann, you got to go home early. Okay. Department of Liquor Control.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, mine was Premium Pay of 13,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What was that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Premium Pay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Premium Pay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You had.. lie had a concern about the Premium Pay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh. okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This was only for Premium Pay?
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, only for Premium Pay but that.. .you know, in defense of
this one so that we can, you know, hopefully finish this one off, you know, I checked with the
Department and their Premium Pay, again, there are many times their work sometimes is call
outs, special challenges, investigative, you know, when there's something occurs like a car
accident and a bar might be involved and they're, they're called in also. And so sometimes the
hours they have to put in are beyond the normal hours, you know. And so I, I want Mr. White to
know that this Department. again, is self-sufficient, never asked us for money and actually has a
surplus for which I wish they could just give to us. But they can't, and I asked that question.
But a lot of the. the Premium Pay is these special call outs which they have really little control on
due to different incidents that occur. And, you know, that, that's the reason for the, the Premium
Pay. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well. Mr. Chair. I.. .you know, my interest in, in cutting the Premium
Pay is just simply to be consistent across the board. This Department does a great job. They
have, they have long, you know, late hours and things of that sort. But, you know, if the.. if
there's no support, I can live without it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Do we have consensus on this number?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We go to Department of Management. We'll take-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Is someone going to come to represent this or is Mr. Baz gonna handle?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You're gonna handle this?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair. I have notified the Managing Director. I, I haven't gotten a response yet. But
hopefully he'll. ..in the next couple minutes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Why don't we take a short break... short recess.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I want to thank Ms. Ridao for being here. She's already gone. but I
just...we didn't acknowledge her time and she sat with us. Bye, thank you, Ms. Ridao, wherever
you are.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I said thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, you did?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You going home early.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. Sorry, I didn't hear you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, we'll recess up to 5:00. We'll reconvene at 5:00. . (gavel). .
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RECESS:

4:51 p.m.

RECONVENE:

5:07 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now reconvened.
Mr. Sandy Baz tried to get a hold of the Managing Director. Presently he's off campus. And I
understand that the Mayor's treat is here. So if there's no objections, the Chair will go into
recess, have our dinner and then we'll reconvene at 7:00.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This meeting is recessed and we'll reconvene at 7:00. .. (gavel). . .
RECESS:

5:07 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:04 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
.(gavel). . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, the next area is the Department of Management. There are a lot of
revisits. Mr. Couch, we'll take 10-3 first. Reduction by the Chairman of $10.000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, 10-3?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, I, I had the question on 10-4, actually. But they put my name,
my number on.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Do I have consensus on the 10-3 then?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Member Balsa, state your case.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I was hoping that we would have the opportunity to talk to the
Managing Director but apparently he isn't here. And that's my issue. I wanna know what the
i mpact of this has on the people that they've already hired and apparently have set the salaries
for.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And I.. .the reason why I had.. .reduced by $10,000 and my rationale is
that based on.. .1, I know the Department had reduced the lower end of the salary scale. That I
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understand. But on the higher end, most of these appointees are coming in at the level of the
high end of the last Administration. They started on the low end so there was a process of
progression to get to the level that is now being paid to some of the people that were appointed to
different positions. Not only the Department of Management but also in the Mayor's
Department so that's my rationale. I. I don't know if you guys think differently or not. then, you
know, we can discuss this.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, my concern is, you know. the people are already on board and they
were hired I imagine at a certain salary. Mr. Baz, is that true?
MR. BAZ: Yes, that's correct. Department of Management has three appointed positions. One is the
Managing Director whose salary is set by the Salary Commission. The other is the First
Assistant to the Managing Director and the third is the Private Secretary. And all of them were
hired at the level that's shown in, in the Fiscal Year 2012 Proposed Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So in order to implement this $10.000 cut, that would mean that come
July l st , they will have reductions in salary?
MR. BAZ: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well. that's a pretty bitter pill but, you know, I, I do understand where
Mr. Pontanilla is coming from but I also understand the practical issue.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion? Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Chair, of course, the Managing Director is a salaried
commission position and the other two, I'm assuming it's the--well, you did say what the other
two were. There at the exact same as last year... last fiscal year so that's basically what they did.
You know, they took the furloughs back, looks like, except for the appointed.. .positions. didn't
look like they had furloughs. So I. I guess if the Council passed it last year what makes it
different from this year?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: All I'm saying is that.. you've been in business.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Everyone of us had been in business. When you start off in, in
business.. .well. the company I worked for.. .we have a progression process. In other words, they
don't hire you at top pay unless you are proficient enough to do that. And, and if you're not,
then, you know, you have these step levels that you go through. So now, let's say, okay, I'm
paying you $100,000 this year. How much do I pay you the next, the next fiscal year? The
third, third fiscal year? Fourth fiscal year? Do I give you increases or you remain at $100,000?
The last Administration had that. In other words, as you perform you are rewarded. Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, I understand that completely. I do remember having been there
for four years. We never got a raise. What was... we did the job for.. .because we were asked
and we knew that if we didn't do the job. we were gone. And that's was told to us when we
came on board. So I, I. I haven't seen history.. .at least I wasn't involved in the history.. .where
they, they actually got raises. the appointed staff. Now, of course, the civil service staff did but
the appointed didn't. So...
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Followed by Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: All right. You know, I'm looking at the detail page on 10-3, yeah.
And not only did they start out at the same position. They also added two more Executive
Assistants in that department, okay. And had gone from 633,000 to 797. okay. You can say
what you wanna say. You can do what you wanna do, okay. I will tell you. Chair. right now I'm
not happy what I see and I told you when I'm not happy. I'll tell you guys. And if the Mayor's
watching, I'll tell him right. I'm not happy because this is excessive. But, like I've done in the
past. Chair, no offense to you. I'm going support it. I'm support it with a lot of reluctance
because these are high paid positions. Way more than we making here, all the hours we put in.
But then we choose to get elected, right? You know, not sometimes, we choose, okay.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter).
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So I'm not happy what I see but, you know, and I told you,
Mr. Baz, when I won, when I'm not happy about something, tell you. So I'm telling you. So
we can, you can do what you can say and whatever. but I agree with Mr. Pontanilla in one sense.
You don't have the other years but, you know, just because the guy was making that much last
year. you bring this new person, make the same thing. I question that because, you know,
Charmaine did bring a progressive.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm not going to recognize you until I have the Members' discussion.
Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. So Chair, are, are you kinda stating that the
people aren't qualified to get that type of salary?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, I'm not saying that. They are qualified people but what I'm saying is that
when I. .1, I look at this position. or any position for that matter, that you have a progression.
I' m gonna give you a good example. Budget Director in 2007, $85,363.. .that was 2007. 2008 it
was bumped up to $88.500. 2009. $92.000, 2010. $95,000, 2011, $95.800 and 2012 it's still
$95,800. So some of these positions as you can see, had, had gone from a base level and, you
know, through the years it, it progressed. The other example is that First Assistant to the
Managing Director. 2007. $86,822, 2008, got reduced to 85,000, 2009, 85.000, 2010, went up to
$90,100 and it continued on. $90,000. So, you know what, what I'm getting at? You know, you
start off at, at a level where.. .entry level for that matter. And then you have that steps that you
take as you improve in County government or the work that you do, then you are rewarded with
an increase, you know. And the increase is such that there's this progression. So if I come in
and tell you, okay, $90,000 is a top pay from the last Administration, I'm gonna hire you at
90.000. Next year, you may get a raise or not. So in between time, you're at that $90,000 salary
range which was a top level for that particular position. And in four years time you may have
increases that bring up that particular position to another level. So what I'm saying is that, you
know, we should have a step system. That's the way I feel. But if you feel differently, fine.
Member Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you. Chair. The budget that you presented before us, I have
no problems with all these other cuts on top. I have no problems with just about everything that
you've laid out. I've always had a problem with salaries, though. Yet we depend on the
Administration to administer the programs that we approve. We depend on the Administration
to monitor. oversee and make sure that everything that is supposed to happen happens. The cuts,
the other cuts that we have in here, Professional Services, Facilities, et cetera, and more down PC
replacement. I have no problem. I think that I'm sure that you researched it and everything else.
But the salaries I have a really hard time with because I expect so much from them. And I
understand your arguments but I have a hard time with that because of that and I would have a
hard time if it was Council Services' salaries. I would have a hard time if it was any other
departments' salaries because we're paying people to provide this service. Like I say, everything
else I don't have a problem with, but salaries, it's very difficult for me to make a cut in the
salaries because of what I expect them to do for their money. If next year, once we've had a
chance to monitor and they come back, because it is a program budget and we are not satisfied, I
don't know if I'd cut salaries. I'd cut positions. But salaries I have a...it's really difficult for
me. I would hope that we could.. .there's one other place where I see a salary cut. Other than
that, I'd vote to approve the budget. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Carroll. You know, some of us that came from private
business, we have goals and objectives. And if we don't meet those goals. then, you know,
something is wrong. If you feel comfortable that this Administration, the past Administration
have met their goal, fine. If you feel that they have met their goal. this Chair is...will differ in
regards to meeting their objectives and goals. So.. .any questions? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman. I would say that, you know, the same to my colleagues'
comments. I, I would say if, you know, eventually we come to a point where we feel issues of

- 135 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
May 3,2011

salary and ability to perform comes into question, then I would say maybe we need to consider
what our sister counties do. And maybe this is a good time to tell the Charter Commission that
allow Council then for various appointed positions to be able to have confirmation powers. We
should be able to confirm the Managing Director. We should be able to confirm the Finance
Director because after all by Charter, they are Number 2 and 3 in. in line of succession to
become the Mayor should something, you know, dreadfully happen. I think there's other
departments where we have grown and matured over the decades may warrant also consideration
for Council confirmation of other positions. And if we feel a department is so critical to the
delivery of safe and mandated services by Charter, then I would say maybe we should also
consider confirming the Deputy. That is one of the checks and balances that we could consider
to settle this type of concerns or issues we may have as a. as a Council, our legislative branch.
And maybe that's something we should initiate and recommend to this commission that if you
feel certain things, then allow the Council to confirm appointments of key positions. And I think
this is something that's fair, it goes through a open process, a public process. It works for the
State, it works for the City and County of Honolulu very well. I think they almost confirm every
single City appointment of a department head. So it's something, you know, we may wanna
consider. Chairman, as another way to ensure integrity in the...who provides the direction and
who provides the leadership to make things achieved by the people's requirements. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for that comment. And we'll surely note that we consult with the
Charter Commission in regards to your comments just made. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair. Just a couple of remarks. You
mentioned about earning your steps and, you know, moving people up from entry levels into
higher. higher levels of salary but this is simply a theory but it is not in law. Is that correct?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, the area that I came from we had that process.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, it was a process where I came from too. However, it did give us
the leeway where we felt that somebody was exceptionally qualified that we could pay them
more than an entry level. But that, that just one thing. The other thing is, you know, judging this
new crew that's been in effect now for four months on achieving goals and objectives. I think
that we need some time because, you know, they're just brand new. And I think next year when
we sit here and we see what kind of a job they've done in accomplishing the goals. then I think I
would feel very comfortable in saying, they did a bang-up job and so they deserve raises or if
they deserve their salaries or they didn't do it and so, you know, cut the rascals. I don't have any
problem with some of the other things that you wanna do but I do.. .1 am concerned about much
huhu over a $10.000 item. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I, I too agree with your other cuts. My only
challenge with the salary cuts is that to me they've, they've been hired. They were hired at a
particular rate. And while I don't disagree with your, your rationale, I'm concerned about doing
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it after the fact. And I don't know that there's any way for us to review but J would certainly
hope the Mayor would do his own review of the.. .these individuals at the end of the, end of the
year. I think like some of my colleagues, I'm, you know. I'm not used to return rights. You
know, when you...in the private sector you go and do another job but if that job goes away, you
go away, unless you're lucky. So I was a little bit stunned by the, the increase in salary because
of return rights. And, you know, I'm okay with that but I, I chose to deal with it by cutting some
of the same things you cut, leaving the salaries alone but taking some of the operating costs out
to, to make me feel a little bit better, I guess.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter).
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: But, anyway I, I, I support you in a lot of things but this is one I just,
you know, when you hire somebody...when, when somebody is hired, they need to have the
assurance that, that's what they're gonna get paid. They make the decision to take the job on
that. So I. I think it's fair for us to back the Administration and, and complain like hell if they
don't perform. But from what I've been seeing. I think they will. So-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for your comments. I, I just like to give you an example in one of
the departments that provides service to this County and their salary is based on experience and
qualifications. This person got hired, didn't...didn't assume the salary of the previous analyst,
started at a lower scale and after many years, several years, he got a step improvement based on
his performance. So, and this is a live example. There are some departments that take a look at
positions and, and when they hire, you know, they hire based on experience and qualifications.
And, and if they exceed the.. .expectation of the.. .whoever the boss is, you know, in this case the
boss provided that person after two years a salary increase. So if the Members feel differently.
you know, I, I can understand, yeah. But I hope you understand where I'm coming from.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We do.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I, I totally understand where you're coming from.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: One, one last thing. I do understand where you're coming from and if
it helps make you feel a little better, the 2007 position is the same guy who's in there now so he
did get his raise. Took him four years but he got his raise. . . .(chuckles). .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: See what I mean? He got his raise. . .(chuckles).. . But, you're right,
Mr. White. If you hire the person at that level then, you know, we should honor that level.
But...knowing that, you know, I still have a problem when the new Administration comes in
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and, you know, looking at the personnel that they hire, you know, I'm sure everyone is qualified.
I. I should hope so. And if that person is qualified to get that salary, fine. But, again, you know,
that's the call of the. the Mayor to make that decision. But if you guys don't feel that the
reduction in $10,000 is not warranted, then fine. You know, I can live with that. But that's only
my opinion . .(chuckles). . I know. Okay...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Did you want a motion of some sort?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, yeah. I. I gonna receive a motion on this so that we can clear this thing.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair. I move to restore the $10.000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. moved by Member Baisa. second by Member Couch. Any more
discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair? You know, you know-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I wanna say thank you very much for at least bringing that
perspective to the table. And, you know, and again, you know, you're absolutely correct when
you say in business you don't always start at the top dollar. Those of us who have been in
business will know that, okay. However, being what it is, and you can count votes like I can
count votes, we know where this is going. That's fine. Like I said. I have always given to the
Administration what they ask for but we're gonna look for results. Like Mr. Hokama said. come
next year we're gonna start looking for results. This year, we're trying to help 'em as much as
we can. And they are times when there, there, they've been excess and you and I and all.. .the
number of us have seen that. So...and the Mayor himself, "we've got some fluff in this budget".
That's his quote. So we will work from here and I'm sorry that you didn't, you know, one of
few times we didn't agree with you but sorry about that. Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
.(Chuckles). . . No, you know, it's your opinion. Again, you know. this
Chairman is gonna vote no in regards to the proposal. So is there any more discussion?
Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, I'd just like to say that, you know, I'm, I guess, wanting to
work with Administration and giving them the opportunity to, I guess. prove themselves out on
this. And I mean I can look at myself. I know this is an elected position, not appointed. But I
came in brand new not having any past experience or track record in doing the same job you're
doing and my other fellow senior members, but yet I get the same pay as you do. So perhaps,
you know, am I qualified to be doing this? I mean I'm hoping to prove myself out, too, at this
point but I, I feel the need to keep this here. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You're qualified. You were elected by the people.
. .(Laughter)„ . So they have the trust in you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: .. .(Inaudible).
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, yes, Chair, thank you very much. And thank you very much for
listening to, you know, the discussion here and I certainly respect your recommendation. I know
that you have a very strong private sector background but I just would like to give this, this
group of people that have taken over the leadership of the County the opportunity to show their
mettle. And I guarantee you that unless Alzheimer's sets in, they.. .I'm gonna be a lot tougher
on them next year when we look at how well they have accomplished what they said they would.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.. .(inaudible). . Any more discussion? Member Mateo followed
by Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, thank you. Mr. Chairman. And I think because of the program
budget status, I think that they still will be able to move monies around so even, even with a
recommendation such as this and even if it does pass, the potential of the ability to, to move is
something that makes the Chair's recommendation a moot point because one way or another
they're gonna look for the funds to do it. So it. it's.. .1 don't know if it's water under the bridge
or. or what. But at this point, you know, your points are well-taken, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, you know, the comments that Mr. Hokama made earlier,
you know, this Chairman is gonna follow up and provide some follow up in regards to the
appointments of department heads because actually we do appoint the Prosecuting Attorney. We
do appoint Corporation Counsel. We do appoint the Water Director but any other
i mportant.. .department head positions we don't. So it need to be done and hopefully, you know,
come next year or, or if we have a new Administration, they really take a look at the salary that
they provide their new employees. You know, although it says. you know, a certain level that,
you know, that particular person that's gonna be Mayor, you know, after this Administration is
done then hopefully he thinks like that. But as far as the department heads, yeah, we'll submit
something to the Charter Commission in regards to the process. Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Chair. And. and I do appreciate your comments and
for the most part agree with you. The one I... agree with you on this one is that we will be
looking closely to see what they do.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That, that I can guarantee that we are all gonna do.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And I think the Budget Director had indicated they started to do a
different process in the goal and objectives and measurements. So we, we're gonna take that to
heart in regards to the...measurements that they set for the direction of the Administration. So
any more discussion? All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. let the record show seven ayes, two oppose, Member Hokama and
Member Pontanilla. Motion is carried.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Balsa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and
White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla and Vice-Chair Hokama.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE removal of Chair's proposed line item to reduce salaries of
appointed positions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, the next one is--Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, it was the Professional Services. This...it was my understanding
that they would really do some security work in the... in, I believe parking lots, camera and what
not. That„ I know this is Security Project but I think they were gonna use...almost all of that
130 for that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair, that's correct. From my understanding, the County Facilities Security
Project, you know, while they create, you'd create a line item for that, we're happy with that.
The $30,000 decrease in this request would affect our ability to implement the planned projects
of putting cameras in parking lots as well as on County facilities throughout the community. I
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don't know the details of the planned project but from my understanding, they're gonna be
significantly enhancing the, the ability for us to monitor and also protect our assets.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I know we did some changes in regards to the $130,000. We
moved it to—Staff?
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you. Mr. Chair. I'm referencing the Budget Details, 10-4, right about the
middle of the page. This is sub index code 6138 under RM Service Contracts. What this is
showing is.. .what, what the Chair's proposal's showing is to reduce that amount
or. . .(inaudible). .. zero that out. And then move the appropriation of $100.000 down onto
Page 10-5 under the County Facilities Security PRI to supplement the 35,000 that's already in
there, effectively keeping it flat.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: Just to note, year-to-date expenditures for the Managing Director's Office, Professional
Services which are pretty much that contract, is $92,265. So by moving that from one index
code to another, you're, you're basically keeping it. it flat. That's correct. And we would not be
able to do the camera project.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, we'll take a vote on this one. too. So. Members, the Chair's proposal is
to...reduce the Professional Services by $130.000 and create a line item in regards to County
Facilities Security and adding in there $100.000. As was explained, it's $30.000 less. I need a
motion to accept that move.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Member Hokama. Discussion?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I, I would.. .you know, in general I, I know what you wanna do. Chairman,
and I support you since, unfortunately, these are the types of programs that I expect departments
to go for grant money for. This is the type of projects we expect, you know. But, no, they come
and ask for General Fund instead. So I don't have a problem switching, flattening it out and
doing it this way. But this is not.. you know, they go for other type of grants for, for things that
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I' m gonna.. it's almost everyday things. Things like this, that makes sense to me to go for
grants, they don't go. So I'm just stating my preference on which financial approach I prefer.
And I can support your recommendation this evening. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And there...you know. this Chairman had been looking at is the
Homeland Security. They would have qualified-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Exactly, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for this, you know. And this would've been perfect. You know, having
Homeland Security grant support this item. So, anyway, any more discussion. Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Budget Director, you said that by doing this move, you will not be
able to do the camera job?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: From my understanding, they...the annual contracts for security system for this building,
you know, these, these cards, access system as well as some of the other functions, is. is about
$100.000 anyway. And so new initiatives may not be able to be taken care of if this happens. I,
I' m not sure if some of it can be done within the existing County Facilities Security Project.
There is, you know, a small amount of money in that already and. Mr. Chair, if...whatever you
guys vote on, we'll do what we can do with whatever money we have available.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Again, this is a program budget, you know. You can come in for
a budget amendment so, you know, Chair's proposal is just this. Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Real quick question for Mr. Baz. Mr. Hokama had a...an excellent
idea about going for grants on this. This one looks like something you carried over from the
previous Administration. Have you guys had a chance to take a look? I would assume that four
months is a little early to go for a grant. And besides when we got this it was.. .you've only been
in there a month or two.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, I'm not sure if we had an opportunity to look for grants in this area. I know that
Department of Water Supply has been looking for grants specifically 'cause there is Homeland
Security money for securing water sources. Those are a major issue as well as.. .and I think
Wastewater plants, treatment plants as well, are considered, you know, very...I guess, things that
you'd wanna protect.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: And so, yeah, I'm not quite sure if we have looked at that anymore but we will.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, I was just gonna say I would suggest that, you know, if we, if we
vote in the affirmative for the Chair's recommendation then, I would suggest heavily looking at
a grant that 'cause you can always come back, like you said, program budget. And it would be
much more palatable if it was a grant from somewhere.
MR. BAZ: Yes. Mr. Chair, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more discussion? Chair is gonna call for the vote. All in
favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion is carried. Eight ayes, one no, Member Cochran. Motion is carried.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Balsa,
Carroll, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Councilmember Cochran.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE Chair's proposal re: Reduce professional services (904011)
and Increase County Facilities Security PRJ, create line item.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Deletion of the vehicle. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, mine was... 10-4. sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. So consensus of that, yeah?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Let's see, the.. .reduction of Premium Pay. Mr. Couch? What, again,
wrong initial?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, not.. yeah. really. I only had a couple, about three of these things,
four. But I„ think you asked at one time.. for this one, you asked for the whole thing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So they put my initials on every one of 'em.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thanks, guys.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: We do have the Management Information Services Manager here to answer any questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MR. BAZ: In fact, he's been patiently waiting in the audience.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Verkerke.
MR. VERKERKE: Good evening, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hi, good evening. By the way, you had Carryover/Savings in your
department?
MR. VERKERKE: I'm sorry, I didn't hear the question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Did you have any Carryover/Savings in your department?
MR. VERKERKE: No, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Zero?
MR. VERKERKE: Negligible.
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gonna last an hour or so, they have to provide us with an equal helicopter which they do have in
their... in, in their company. So they... fulfill it with a backup and then they can do their repairs
that is needed to Air One. That's also what the contract also allows for which many companies
can't do.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So Air One is utilized for Green Harvest?
MR. MURRAY: No. The company is utilized for Green Harvest. Air One is never used for Green
Harvest.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not that particular helicopter.
MR. MURRAY: Not at all, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So it's another helicopter they use.
MR. MURRAY: Yes, and, and if you notice that company has their...all their helicopters are yellow.
So everybody assumes that it's us doing Green Harvest, which is not. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . .(Laughs). . Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, I'm glad I could say that on air.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter).
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Got it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions? Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. What is the, what is the base cost of the contract?
MR. MURRAY: Well, it, it, it's like a four-year contract with the.. .and it's a year to year but it's a
four-year. When.. .so when the contractor puts a bid. they put it in for that four years. And just
for the helicopter services, it's roughly about 634,000 for that, that year, annually.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: That's, that's just for the standby.
MR. MURRAY: That's for the standby, maintenance-COUNCILMEMBER WRITE: Do you get a minimum number of hours for the base?
MR. MURRAY: No.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
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MR. VERKERKE: No. I could get that for you but I don't have those numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So that you know. I. I agree with your concerns that we don't want...the
programming and the available software changes dramatically and I know that certain older PCs
can't handle it. And so I. I understand that but at the same time I understand the Chair's interest
in, in modifying our expenses. But if you could provide that to us, that would be helpful to me.
MR. VERKERKE: I will do that.
COLTNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yes, thank you. Thank you. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Verkerke, just one fast question. In regards to your
maintenance cost of those so-called old PCs, had it increased from '10, .11? '10 versus '11? Or,
or '09 versus '10? Because we have reduced the number of PCs for the department to, to
purchase?
MR. VERKERKE: Could you repeat the question, please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What was your maintenance cost in regards to servicing the PCs, the older
PCs, throughout the.. .maybe the next two, three years, per year, average?
MR. VERKERKE: It's, it's hard to put a number on that for PCs per se because we have very little
expenses related directly to PCs for their maintenance replacement. What we do is we purchase
PCs with the longest possible maintenance program. So that's, as I remarked this morning, that's
rolled into the purchase price. After we reach the point that it's no longer eligible for
maintenance by the manufacturer, what we do is we take...we kind of cannibalize machines and
take working parts to keep a number of the older generation going while with whatever available
funds we have, we start replacing the ones that are beyond repair. Our overall maintenance
budget increases every year because that's made up of not only the cost of maintenance of PCs
and, and printers and such. but it also includes maintenance contracts for hardware and software
like the servers, our network environments, the application software that runs on that equipment.
And that's an annual obligation that we can't really avoid because it, it ensures that critical
applications are viable and, and available to the organization. The industry has a practice of
increasing those annually by about 10 percent so there is a built-in cost growth that I can't avoid
because the only option would be to cancel contracts and that would really put our operational
readiness at risk. Besides that we have new applications that come on every line„.every year,
come on line every year so we have additional applications that we need to pick up the
maintenance contract. So there is a growth there even to just maintain the systems that the
organization relies on.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Right now you have a current encumbrance of $324,000. You
have a big number for that balance available and, you know, by taking out your salaries for the
next three months, you would have left to spend in 2011 almost $500,000. So your
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Carryover/Savings can amount to that or can amount to your $7.000. So I just wanted to point
out that to you.
MR. VERKERKE: Something perhaps to keep in mind is that these are annual maintenance contracts in
the, in the 6138. So the bill comes in in spurts and not spread out over the year so encumbrances
in the first three quarters are not necessarily an indication of how much is to be spent still. In my
projection I went over the numbers about three weeks ago with salary and, and commitments for
maintenance contracts and some purchases that were in the pipeline is that we'll probably for this
spend it down to about, within $30M00 of the budgeted amount. And that's barring any
unforeseen equipment breakage or needs of departments that we need to help 'em with. So the
500.000 I think is, is not a good indication of how much is actually going to be spent.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any more questions? Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. This one I know a little bit about, have to do it all the time
in my other life. One of the things...you said...the average age...how many of 'em are. are six
years or older?
MR. VERKERKE: Twill get that answer still. I don't have that-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: One thing I want Members to, and Mr. Verkerke, correct me if I'm
wrong. to understand is that a six-year-old computer these days is like.., well, old. I was gonna
make a joke, but, no.
MR. VERKERKE: I think I get your point.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. . .(chuckles).... It's... those six-year-old machines are running
on Windows XP which is an old operating system as well. There's been two operating systems
since then and there are rooms full, buildings full of people in other countries trying to break into
big computer systems like this. With the older operating systems, they have an easier chance.
For everybody out there who always keeps getting a virus, it's not your fault these days. It really
isn't. And that's one of things that the newer machines with the newer operating systems are
little bit better on. So I wholeheartedly support his full request for the new computers 'cause to
fall behind on those is just to have this County be open for all kinds of possibilities. So that's,
that's just one small aspect in addition to what Mr. Verkerke s s been saying. So I would like to
move to remove that $85,000 out of the 10-13.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second. Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I didn't call for a motion yet.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, you never call for a motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, sorry.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: He had go ahead of the gun, eh?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman. I think in the past to, to help us make some decisions regarding
matters such as these, didn't we request assessments to be done, internal penetration assessment.
external condition of the current system, and what makes the system regarding threats and
disgruntled employees' ability to tamper with equipment and what not. So, you know, for me,
you know, I hear the, the maintenance song and dance from every department, you know. But to
me is, justify it. Show me an assessment that says we need to replace. These are the concerns
that impact the County of Maui 'cause other than that you and I know we can walk by computers
everyday and it's unattended and the most simple thing to lock up your system that requires a
pass key to reactivate, we don't even do those kind of simple things. So big deal, we're going
get one new computer if we won't do the practical safeguards that we should be doing ourselves.
What good is a new computer? You know, so I think we should get one better sense of how are
we be performing not only with equipment but as employees that have been trusted to have
secured equipment. Either that or we gotta get somebody else to do the job. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Verkerke, how safe is our system?
MR. VERKERKE: We did an assessment as, as suggested by Member Hokama about four or five years
ago and we've been working on implementing the recommendations. We did an internal
assessment and we did an external penetration test, as it's called. The biggest vulnerability in
any organization is how well the policies are being followed by the staff. We advise the staff. I,
I personally participate in the new employee orientation and, and really emphasize strongly the
need for secure practices. Have we gone out all out with.. .education and training program? No,
we have not. Have we had the resources to do that? No, we have not. We do, however, from
within MIS pay a lot of attention to the security of the perimeter of our systems. And we are in
the process of replacing and upgrading our firewall which will allow us to raise the barrier, if you
will, for people from the outside to access our systems. Much more of security nowadays is
being implemented through networks through the.. .at the access points at the many places where
our environment connects with the rest of the world. So we do believe and we have under
program budgeting directed the necessarily funds, I believe, to make sure that we've done
everything within our ability or still doing everything within our ability to make that
environment as secure as possible. It's a task that perhaps needs to be undertaken by more than
just the MIS Division, perhaps through employee training with the necessary resources to make
sure that we have done everything feasible, conceivable and reasonable to impress on the
employees that they are part of that security solution. But we haven't gotten to that point at this
ti me yet.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Members, any more discussion? If not, Chair.. .Chair's
proposal is to reduce the PC replacement by $85,000. to leave it as is. If there's money available
in 2011 that some of your purchases through savings can be purchased in the '11. I don't know
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how much that is but if you're saying that you may have $30,000 Carryover/Savings then, you
know, go ahead and purchase those computers. So I will entertain a motion to accept the
Chairman's reduction of $85,000 in PC replacement.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, second by Member Hokama. Any more
discussion? Seeing none. all in favor say, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, roll call. Member Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White?
COLTNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Aye.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, motion is carried. Seven ayes, two noes, Member Couch as well as
Member White.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Mateo, and Victorino.
NOES: Councilmembers Couch and White.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE Chair's proposal re: Reduce PC Replacement In
Management Information Systems Program.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Then again, if you do have Carryover/Savings in 2011 that you start
purchasing those equipment utilizing 2011 monies. Okay, next item is Delete laptop computer
for expansion position in the Civil Defense. We eliminated all the positions so-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch, but if.. .Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, no, I say, I say, consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh. consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Same thing with the next one down, 10-13.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Nope.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Delete desktop computer for expansion position in Civil Defense, $1.700.
Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Fm sorry, consensus, yes.
COUNCILMEMBERS COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Delete computer for expansion positions in Public Works Engineering
Program. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And. Chair. the only reason I say that. if I may.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I only reason I say that is we haven't decided to delete the Public
Works Engineering Program yet, so I think we should revisit that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I think we'll come back to this.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: .. Yeah, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Delete Annual AutoCAD Subscription for expansion positions in Public
Works Engineering Program, $18.000. I can come back to that if you guys want?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then also for the next one which is the Public Works position. Okay, any
problems with the deletion of the vehicle replacement? Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS COUCH: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, go ahead. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, that, that vehicle, I mean the letter from our own... garage
and the fact that's it's 19 years old. I think we should commend them for being able to make it
last that long. And there's an 18-year-old one right behind it as well. So I think they've made
good use of County funds and I think instead of what appears to be a punishment we should say,

- 151 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
May 3,2011

hey, good job and now it's time for you to„..I. I understand Mayor Apana is the one that bought
that, that van.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. The Chair had eliminated all vehicles except for
specialized vehicles and that's the reason why it's here. But if you feel differently. fine. I know
the inventory list is not completed. I, I was hoping that, you know, Mr. Verkerke would've
checked with, I guess. the Audit Committee that's doing this_ to see if there are any vans that
would become available for these particular area.
MR. VERKERKE: Mr. Chair, I had a conversation today with the person working on that vehicle
inventory project. It is not expected that there will be reliable information on whether or not the
type of vehicle I'm looking for will be available as underutilized in other departments until about
the end of this calendar year. As you may note in the letter from the garage_ they suggested that
the expiration of the safety inspection, the vehicle should be removed from inventory and those
safety inspections are on both vehicles will have expired in the next three or four months. So
we're gonna be faced with a gap if we're waiting to find out if there would be a van available
that is underutilized elsewhere within the County.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah_ thank you. And_ again, this is one of those that I'm torn
because I know Mr. Verkerke and the need for another vehicle and you had suggested
secondhand. Have you looked around to see if you can get any idea on a secondhand van?
MR. VERKERKE: I had a conversation with the purchasing agent about that. There's two aspects to
buying.. .or several aspects to buying a used vehicle. From the purchasing perspective it's
something that they discourage because it makes it very difficult to apply objective purchasing
practices to a used vehicles because you can't really send out a request for quotes, if you will, or
a bid on used vehicles. And, and it leaves the door open to some less than upstanding
negotiations in the process. The other aspect. of course. is that you are in fact buying somebody
else's problems. The other aspect, as I mentioned this morning, the kind of vehicle that we're
looking to use and I don't know if you're familiar with it, is the, the newer Ford Transit Connect.
It's a small urban delivery vehicle which would be perfect for our purposes. It's...I believe it's a
four-cylinder engine. It's, it's economical, it's cheap to operate. The vehicles we see, and I
checked around a little bit today, in the used market are typical.. .typically larger. the Econoline
350s and what have you. V-8s, very expensive to operate and. and that's the reason if they are
available the companies have gotten rid of 'ern 'cause they're just... at gas prices today it's just
too expensive to operate. So we're probably in a situation where we may initially get in a
vehicle cheaper but ultimately over the expected life of it end up paying just as much as we have

- 152-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
May 3,2011

in, in repair and maintenance and operating costs as we have bought a modern, efficient
appropriate vehicle.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Last question, leasing. Have you looked into the leasing aspect?
MR. VERKERKE: I haven't. I had a casual conversation with, with some people. The question has
been brought up and, and the consensus seems to be that typically the County expects to own a
vehicle for, on average, ten years. And so a leasing arrangement for ten years is a sucker bet. I
think.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. not doable. Okay, I mean if you've checked, you know,
Mr. Chair. you know, listening to Mr. Verkerke and the importance of what they do, I, I could
support letting him have this vehicle. I mean this may not fall under the.. .under the guise of
specialty but.. .the van he's describing, I've seen them around. They are, you know, really
compact but you're able to get into and put the stuff that he's talking about and it's not very, very
expensive, only 24.000. I mean compared to some of the other vehicles we've seen. 60 and plus,
you know. It's one of those that I think. Chair, makes good sense so I could support that. Thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, I. I'm happy Mr. Verkerke talk of purchasing because I think
it's, it's good to know the different perspectives and options for, for the County. But we do
know, Chairman, that the Department of Water Supply has been successful more than once when
the Federal government goes on their auction of equipment and vehicles. And we as a County
have bought Federal government vehicles because normally after three years, the Feds start
auctioning off their vehicles. Three years. So we've been able to buy very good vehicles at a
very good price from the Federal government by participating in those Federal auctions. And I
still think it is something we should keep looking at to see if it makes sense for us to purchase
some of those Federal government.. .I hope they don't call it excess...equipment but it's done
regularly, Chairman. And I. and I still think it's a good option for us to consider. Another way
of securing equipment at, at a very affordable within a reasonable life expectancy of that monies,
you know. I mean the Water Director himself drove and he purchased auction car. You know,
the Chief Engineer drove one of those auction vehicles that the County bought, you know. So I
still think it's a, it's a good option for us to review, Chairman, and not just automatically assume
buy brand new.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I just was told by Staff that we bought one vehicle for the Water Department
19 years ago and that's the.. .that's the vehicle that you talked about for way less than what you
see today. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That, that's my question to Mr. Verkerke. I think he mentioned in
either his testimony or his, his talk when he came up before, isn't one of your three vans a
Federal...bought at a Federal auction?
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MR. VERKERKE: That's correct, the Ford Aerostar that's referenced on, on the letter from the garage.

.(Inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So one of the 18- or 19-year-old is, is a...
MR. VERKERKE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is there...did...when you talked to Purchasing, did they have a
problem with you doing that again?
MR. VERKERKE: I didn't ask that specific question. I asked them more a generic question, what do
you think of buying a used one versus a new one? And so I. I know it's done and it's an option
we can look at. Again, the fuel-efficient, nimble little urban delivery vehicle that would very
well suit our needs is not showing up in these auctions so we end up with the six to eight cylinder
vans that are...the operating costs is going to be something to be consider. It will offset a good
portion of the savings and the purchase of the vehicle.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Good point.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, I'd like to thank Mr. Verkerke 'cause I was the one.. .to suggest
that he look for a secondhand vehicle. But I do wanna respond to some of those statements that
were made. First of all. I have a concern with Purchasing telling us that it's difficult for them to
do specs or whatever in order to buy a used vehicle 'cause I'm sure that they can be creative and
figure it out 'cause it's been done before. And as far as buying someone else's troubles, it
depends what you're buying. I had an experience myself this year. I have always believed in
buying new 'cause I didn't want to buy somebody else's problems. But with automobile prices
at what they are, for the first time this year I purchased a two-year-old Honda CRV. I saved
$10,000 on it. It was a leased car that was turned in and it was in mint condition, very low
mileage and it was guaranteed from, from tip to toe. And I have had absolutely no problems
with it so, again, it's what are you buying.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I, I'd like to commend Mr. Verkerke for keeping
the.. .keeping the van going for 19 years. You know, I. I think that's to be commended. I agree
with, with the concept of buying a used vehicle if we don't have...I mean I have a hard time
believing that we don't have one in our fleet that, that we could turn over to Mr. Verkerke. One
of the things that came to my mind as we were discussing this, is we've got two vans sitting out
here in the parking lot that are under the control of. I guess.. .one, I should say... that's with
Council Services. We could certainly let Mr... .it bothers me that the garage has said take this,
the safety certificate off the vehicle. We can't expect our employees be driving around in
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something that_ you know, that unsafe. I'd like to loan him . . .(laughter). Joan him the, the van
until he can find something to replace it with, I, I'm just-MR. VERKERKE: It's much appreciated.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I think, you know, I have a.. I've got a little bit of a problem saying no
to replacing a 19-year vehicle.. .19-year-old vehicle without giving him some options, you know.
I think just a straight no is a tough one for me, So I'd like to give him some options if we can_
Chair,
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Maybe we file for an option.. . .(Laughter). . We just replaced a
clerk's van. We're trying to find out where the clerk's van went,
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Find out what?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The clerk's van.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Where the old clerk van went.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, we, we just replaced that. Pretty, pretty good condition too. So where
it is, is the question. So, Mr. Verkerke, I think we heard your needs and, and, you know, as
much as possible we're going try help you get one vehicle to replace-MR. VERKERKE: Appreciate it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --that 19-year-old, old government purchased vehicle. But I, I think we need
some conversation with Purchasing in regards to purchasing.. .old government vehicles. Like
Member Hokama had said, you know, some of those vehicles are just three years old and the van
that was purchased was purchased by our ex-Budget Director, sitting at the corner.
Member Baisa?
COLTNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, just one more quick comment. I wanna make sure Mr. Verkerke
understands that I don't want you driving a 19-year-old van either. It's unsafe and it's. ..it really
is bad. When we read that letter from the garage_ you need a new vehicle. My question is, you
know, what do we have to spend to get a new vehicle? You know, when I look at the prices of
the vehicles that are in these budgets, it makes me ill. I can't imagine spending this kind of
money on vehicles. So anyway, if we can save money on something that is serviceable and will
do the job, why not?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: May, may I ask Mr. Baz a question, please?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz. I think you.. .mentioned at an earlier budget meeting regarding this
Fiscal Year '12 consideration that you folks were looking at different ways of how to provide
vehicles for the County's fleet requirements. And I think one of the discussion we thought
of.. .was maybe putting out proposals or RFP of manufacturers that fit within this certain range
of County's needs parameters. And, and, you know, 'cause I.. in the 60s. if I recall right, maybe
early 70s, late 60s...I don't know if Mr. Carvalho was Mayor yet.. .1 mean the County took heat
because they converted the fleet to American Motor vehicles. And I mean everybody thought
the County was funny 'cause they were using the cars called Ramblers and other things like that.
That, of course, before was always Chevys and always Fords and, you know, what not. But I
believe the County funding was through its financial benefit to give American Motors a chance
to provide the vehicles for the County's requirements. And they do serve the County well for,
for that period of time until, you know...And, again, we bring it up. Chairman. because I think
they're looking at maintenance cost, amount of different parts and equipment we need to
inventory for the base yard to be able to perform maintenance as well as to train mechanics of
maybe 10,20 more different models of vehicles that...we need to if we decided to focus and go
specifically with a manufacturer that provides that requirements of the County. You have any
update you can share. Mr. Baz?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, you know, Mr. Chair and Mr. Hokama, we. we do agree completely with you and
those statements are very correct. And, you know, similar to what Mr. Verkerke does in MIS
with the purchase of computer systems and making sure that they're standardized and that we
have the warranties, that we, you know, have everything in place so that we can be as efficient as
possible. We would love to make sure that our fleet is that same way. You know, rental car
companies do that a lot, you know, where they have a consistent manufacturer that they handle.
I don't think the County's volume of purchasing would be something that would be.. .you know.
unless we decide to spend, you know, $100 million one year and replace all the vehicles. The,
the, that was facetious, sorry, but-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But, but I mean we already know Fire, I mean not Fire, Police, right.
MR. BAZ: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: For the cruisers, we put out one spec and the manufacturer came through
whereby, of course. now we got only Fords-MR. BAZ: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --a pile of Ford vehicles for, for the fleet. I know we've been to sister
counties in Oregon, Washington. You know, they decided to go with the Chrysler and those big
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Ram, heavy cruiser Rams for their police department requirements 'cause I guess they got a great
price to go that route on. on that model and that manufacturer. But my, but my point is, you
know, we should be at least investigating and seeing if it makes sense for us to even do certain
components. I mean, you know, you look at Public Works. They got Toyotas, they got Fords,
they got.. .you know, I mean you.. .it's like one used car lot with 20 different.. .type of vehicles
there. so ...
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, we do, we do understand that and from my understanding, actually
purchasing, once the budget the is done, they will actually look through the budget and find out
which vehicles are gonna be replaced and look for ones that are similar that they can put out
similar, you know, specs to purchase, you know, five sedans at what time or three trucks or
whatever so we don't have to do exactly what you're saying is have a multitude of different ones.
If we do start purchasing used vehicles, we are gonna have that problem even more. You know,
just...I was in the parking lot of DMV one evening recently and I noticed that we have, you
know, we have all these little Ford cars and then there's one Volkswagen. And I'm thinking. you
know, that's because, you know, we got.. .that was the bid that won that bid and specs and stuff
like that. And, you know, I don't know Procurement law well enough to be able to say, yes, this
is something that we can do. I, I do know that this something we'll look into. You know, and as
the, the Budget Director and my responsibility of making sure that we're expending, you know,
the, the money wisely, that's something that, you know, I'm gonna be looking at specifically.
Not just the procurement of them but also the financing of them. In our discussions of, of lease
versus purchase truly to me is, is a financing issue. It's, it's a way that we're gonna look at how
you want to cover the cost of that, whether we do an upfront cost with a longer-term return on
our investment or do we do, you know, a smaller upfront cost but, you know, have to continue
paying throughout. Those are, those are all critical things that we'd wanna look at when we're
making a decision of what to do with this, especially vehicles that are. „you know, this is.. .you
know, they say a home is your largest asset and your vehicles your second largest assets so this is
something we wanna make sure. . .anaudible). . ., Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, and, and I appreciate that very much. But also, you know, I
appreciate you being able to look at the leasing component to see if it makes sense. It might not
be the vehicles that make sense. It might be all landscape equipment that makes sense for the
leasing program because of the golf course or the County parks. the football field, the baseball
fields, might make sense for that component type of County equipment. But I appreciate you at
least investigating to see if it makes sense for the County.
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Real quickly, I will, again, I wanna support Mr. Verkerke in this
one and I may be the only one. However, I'm looking at a vehicle_ fuel efficiency, and other
aspects and be able to.. .do his job with a van that specializes for that_ okay. We talk about fuel
efficiency and remember we had this argument... was it last budget. the budget before that about
vehicles and we buy these vehicles and they're not very fuel efficient. We got donations.
Remember what that was another big issue when we had that donation for the Meals on Wheels.
Kaunoa Senior Center. Oh_ this car's an old car_ it doesn't.. .you know, so it's funny how we
forget what we discussed. But some people weren't here to discuss it. You know, we wanted to
move towards having fuel-efficient vehicles which is another thing I hope we start looking at.
Not only similar models but fuel efficiency and dependability because. again_ if you think gas is
ended here. six dollars? Hana s s there, we'll be right behind it very soon. And I don't think
prices will come down this time like they have in the past. So_ Mr. Chair_ we pay Peter today
and we pay.. .Peter, or Paul tomorrow, it's either or. And I'm one of those that would like to see
if we're gonna get vehicles let's get fuel-efficient, compact vehicles_ especially the
non-specialized. right? There may be other times when flatbeds are needed for carts and all of
that, that's different again. But I'm just saying that in this case. Mr. Verkerke and his
department has squeezed out of those two cars 19 and 18 years of use. And I thought my, my
wife's Ford Aerostar when we had it for 17 years_ I thought we squeezed out everything. And I
do agree_ get plenny [sic] holes, eh? I mean_ you know, natural air conditioning we call that
'cause you never had to have air conditioning, everything came up from the bottom, yeah? So,
Mr., Mr. Chair, I agree with you most of the time but in this case, I would like to see
Mr. Verkerke get this van so that he can get his job done. And I hope once Mr. Baz and the. and
the Administration gets together with all of these vehicles that we have, and there's a lot out
there, that we can utilize and eliminate some. Maybe some need to be eliminated. Maybe we
don't need to buy new vehicles for the next few years. Maybe the Managing Director can get an
SUV from Water or someplace that don't need it, yeah? So let's see what happens there. Thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, I think we killed this enough. . .(laughter)... What the Chair is
gonna do, we're gonna revisit this and at the same time and the reason why I say revisit is that
we gonna find out where that Clerk's van went. . .(laughter)... No, no_ and the reason the
Clerk's van is that_ it's a... it's pretty good-looking van. It's pretty new.. well, not, not-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's not new.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --new but maybe seven years old. So-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Get 12 more years.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So we'll take a look at that and then, you know, I feel for the Department in
regards to that 18_ 19 year old vehicles. So I'll just revisit. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And Chairman_ can_ can maybe Staff...or work with maybe Mr. Baz, you
know, sometimes getting.. .being old doesn't work for me. But
I believe there was a

- 158 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
May 3,2011

policy, Chairman, for...on vehicles if it was less than 24 or $25,000, it is not required to go
through a bid process. So, again, not saying anything about Mr. Verkerke but it's interesting that
this vehicle is $24,000 and can bypass the bid process unless we've changed our procurement
practices. And that's something that I, I think we should know because if we're still doing it the
old way, this does not go through a bid. It's going straight for.. .purchase.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That reminds me of the baseball stadium. Okay, come back to that.
MR. VERKERKE: May I make one comment, Mr. Chair, on that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. VERKERKE: We came up with the $24,000, because we checked prices and that's what these
things are listed for.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh. okay.
MR. VERKERKE: I think Mr. Hokama gives me more credit than I deserve on planning financial
strategies.
ALL: . .(Laughter)..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Take it when you get it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to this. Moving on, Members. That's all for
Mr. Verkerke.
MR. VERKERKE: Thank you, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You're welcome, sir. GIS Program.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Nothing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Nope. Office of the Mayor. Chair had indicated that reduction of $50.000
and after hearing, you know, your, your comments in regards to the Managing Director's Office
and, you know, I'm gonna respect your comments in regards to, you know, positions that
are...already offered with the salary based on those positions. But I get hard time swallow that.
.(laughter). . . Gladys Baisa, you, you have.. .(inaudible).. .?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. Chair. And I appreciate the, the statement. And
I know it's hard. But I'm okay if you're okay. And let's just move ahead. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Couch.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And, yeah. thank you for that thought but if you...and if you look at
the_ the details, you'll see that the.. .that office cut 200,000 from the previous year's. So they
actually are starting a little bit lower. Looks like pretty much almost everybody there except for
about three got started at a lower rate so I commend them for at least cutting 200,000 from the
previous year's budget.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more discussion_ Members?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Nope.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Tell Mr. Mayor. thank you for the dinner.
ALL: . .(Laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And maybe on Friday night that would be nice too. Okay, the next one up is-MR. KANESHINA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: Sorry to interrupt. So just to clarify, the consensus was to reinstate the $50.000?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yep.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'd like to say no but...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter).
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maui Aloha Aina. Don Couch and Elle Cochran_ regarding the $10,000
allotment.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Ladies first.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. as I recall when OED was here with Ms. Rasmussen and the
budget was broken down for Maui Aloha Aina and I guess Mr. Mina's travel expenses were
kinda eyebrow-raising. And I think that the cut went from 20.. is it 20. 22 down to 10. And I
think his expenses were only at 65.. .so anyways, it was just several thousands not quite, you
know, over half of the budget. So I was just trying to reinstate, I think it was, 6,500 to that. It
just seemed like was the biggest concern but yet it seemed like she took a bigger chunk than was
needed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I, I. too, heard.. .1 mean I got a lot of e-mails and a lot of good
testimony and I actually put in mine too to go back to the 12. add the extra 12 so it'd make it 22.
But I would put a proviso in there that some sort of grants/annual report a little bit more than
what we saw. We just saw the receipts last time, I believe. A bit more of a solid annual report
with a board and, and what not, if we could do that in the proviso. But I would like to see them
go back to their 22.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I not, I not going take action on this. Okay, next one. the Maui
Botanical Gardens. Riki?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. This is one of those entities that I wish was paying attention to
Keiki Kokua, Chair. because I remember when they came in for their one and only request. And
they came in with a plan, a thick, very colorful plan on how to become sustainable and selfsufficient. And how they were gonna create a concession component to raise revenues and they
just needed some seed money and a lease or license of agreement to use County property. Well,
I can tell you that, I think I'm in almost my tenth year of being asked for more money. So my
point was to make them„.remind them that this was supposed to be a one-time only thing. If
they need time to further revise and develop their plan to create greater autonomy by generating
their own discretionary fund component. I'm happy to work out something. But I take a
organization's what they say and I expect this organization to eventually be off the County's
dollar. We already gave 'em the land to use. our land. We already provided two pots of County
money to support them and I just want to give notice that, you know, eventually there will be a
ti me where there'll be no more funding for this type of program.. this type of entities. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yes. Mr. Chair. The entity is actually going through a strategic planning process right now.
I, as well as I think many of you, got invitations, of course it was during budget session here, to
attend their strategic planning process because they do have that, that same goal in mind of, of
figuring out how they can generate their own revenues and, and eventually become self-
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sufficient. I know there are some things that the Water Department appreciates that they provide
to the Water Department, to the County as far as the native species and, and things like that. And
so, you know, there may be some services they provide either based on.. .to the County or on
behalf of the County. But as far as the overall subsidy that they receive, I know they're planning
on reducing that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Would you...do they provide plants to the County?
MR. BAZ: I'm not sure of that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Yeah, you know, Mr. Hokama brings out a good point. I was here
when that statement was made, one time only, and it became.. .J, I've been here.. .almost nine
years now and the request has been for nine years. You know, it went from 50 to 100 so it, it had
grown. And hopefully their strat plan is to do exactly what you say 'cause I like to see more like
Keiki Kokua. Women Helping Women in regards to trying to be.. .you know, self-sustainable in
regards to the programs .. .(inaudible)... I don't know if they do have a...I'm sure they do...a
fundraising program to support their cause. I don't know if you know of any.
MR. BAZ: I've seen that they do have small fundraising events and type things. They do give plants
away as well as part of Arbor Day and I think they also provide some support to the Parks
Department. But, you know, I'm not sure if the plan that they started off with ten.. .nine or ten
years ago is the same as what they're actually doing now as I wasn't around and don't know
what the plan was. But I can tell you that we, you know. Mayor and I met with the new director
and she has good ideas and we do wanna give her the opportunity to be successful and move
towards that self-sufficiency.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. And I, too, can concur that the young lady has
come in with a breath of fresh air and is really trying hard to, to change the mindset and get away
from dependency not only on us but all other aspects. And she wants to make it more selfsufficient so I would also like to support, you know. leaving that and giving them an opportunity,
you know. And if you want to, like we have in the past, we can put provisos saying that, if
you're not at a certain level at a certain point, then we can start cutting the funding and, or
eliminating it entirely. We do have that right, Chair. So. I mean there's always options out there
if we're really concerned on any particular program. Again, we can nickel our.. .nickel and dime
ourselves to death with some of these things and I. and I'll be the first to admit that I'm. I'm
looking to cut where...wherever we can. But many of these organizations do provide great
services that if the County had to pay for it, whew, we'd be paying a lot more. So, anyhow,
that's what my, my two cents is worth. Thank you. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. And, yeah, we just got through with the Management area.
You know, we gave Mr. Verkerke, you know, a lot a questions just to purchase one $24,000
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vehicle. . .(Laughter). . . No, it's.. .and, and when come to some of these grant requests, we
don't give them the scrutiny like we scrutinize our departments, and we should.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good point.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And we should because taxpayers' money, yeah?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yep.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, anyway, thought I'd point out that to you folks that sometimes we give our
department hard time in regards to their requests and, and we wanna be generous at the same
ti me, you know, to some of these organizations that request for funding. So just one of my
comments. So do I have consensus to Maui Nui Botanical Garden-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --in. in the consensus is in regards to what Mr. Hokama has said, this is giving
notice.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yes. Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. CTAHR. Mr. Hokama? The next one, University of Hawaii
College of Tropical Agriculture and Human Resources.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I'm. ..you know, as part of my proposal, you will notice that I've
been consistent. I, I did not give any non-County government agency County money 'cause I, I
felt that, you know, comes to a point where the State Legislature gets real smart and goes, it
doesn't matter if we don't give. Maui County always gives our departments. Why fund? The
County's gonna give. I, I don't like that expectation from that side of the ledger. Mr. Chairman.
I think we give when we have available resources and it makes good sense for us. But, you
know, right now it's, it's like a dependency. The Leg won't give and the County is gonna end up
always giving for all these State programs and State departments. I think that we should send a
message back to the State that if obviously your responsibility is not important enough for you to
fund, then how can you come to the County and ask us to fund if it's not that important. So I
was just trying to make my, my case about the attitude of State departments regarding County
General Fund. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, Members. do I have consensus on this one particular area?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. And, and, you know, what Mr. Hokama is, is saying is so
true, is that sometimes we get overburdened with State responsibility...with responsibilities and
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sometimes if we cannot pay, guess who's gonna pay? It's people through real property tax
increases. So...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, you know, real quickly. I agree with...yourself and
Mr. Hokama, no question. But I also have this, this philosophy that you gotta take care of your
home. You gotta make sure your home's safe, well and healthy. And some of these areas if we
don't do things, we will be adversely affected. And do you think the... State cared when they
had eliminate inspectors and all that? They did it with a snap and just left us hanging. So it's
really difficult and I agree. I'm tired of paying the bill for somebody else. But then again. I can
tell our taxpayers and our constituents that this is for your well-being here on Maui. I'm not
paying for the Big Island. I'm not paying for Kauai or Oahu, but I'm paying for you to make sure
your livelihoods, your families are protected from invasive species, whatever, whatever it may
be. yeah? So that's the only point I wanted to make. You are right but there is that other side of
the coin. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, next area, Grants and disbursements for business
development and technology. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. This one is, is where I think we needed to, to put
something that I wanted to add way down at the back of the list, Ka Ipu Kukui. I think it came
out of this fund two years ago, or last year? And it wasn't put in this year so I'm.. .1 guess we're
gonna have to revisit it. But I'd like to put 25K into that fund as well for Ka Ipu Kukui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Business Research Library, $80,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: It's from The Data Book, eh?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Huh? What was their funding I believe, three years ago?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Wasn't that for The Data Book, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And what they do for us?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The Data Book and all of that.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: They provide The Data Book information and... that type of
information services to the County.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Mr. Chair, thank you for the question. The Maui County Business Research Library
is a research library that is available to.. .for free, to people who are either in business or wanna
start businesses. They provide free research and data to. like.. .1 know they support the Maui
County Business Resource Center as well as MEO Business Development Corporation and their
clients with statistical research if they're doing marketing or those kind of things. What they do
specifically, directly for the County is to create The Data Book. When you look at the level of
funding for 2009. it was $143,000, 2010. 125.000, '11. 93.750 and then for Fiscal Year '12's
request is $80.000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, may I clarify?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I wasn't talking about Business Research Library, I was talking about
grants and disbursement for business development technology, making it ii under there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I understand but my-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --question to Mr. Baz was that $80,000 that is appropriated to Business
Research Library, you know, and what they do for the County. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Have we...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't know.. .(inaudible). . . for this.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter). . .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's a good, that's a good question, too, Chair. But my thing is if we,
we...are we basically the funder of The Data Book, Mr. Baz? Is the County of Maui basically
the funder?
MR. BAZ: From my understanding, yes. That's what one of the things that is funded through this
$80.000 appropriation.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I just wondering since, you know, we, we put a lot of money in different
pots. Chair. And one component it does, you know, we, we see the contracts, we see the
appropriations. Why wouldn't this be one MEDB thing?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good point.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Under the Economic Development, on Office of the Mayor. Has, has that
been at least discussed. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: I'm sorry, no. Not that I know of.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I mean are they the ones that „ .(inaudible). . some days. They go out,
they do their Focus Maui Nui's. They go out and engage community dialog for various subject
matters.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, from my understanding The Maui County Data Book is specifically that data,
while Focus Maui Nui does a great job with their, their walk stories and their. their ability to get
community input and ideas of, of how to do things. I've sat on many of their committees. It's a
little bit different than simply taking statistical information from the census from different
industries from DBEDT and compiling it into a data book. Whether we have the Business
Research Library compile that data or MEDB. I'm not sure that we would have any preference
but that it gets done is very important to the County and to the people that, you know, utilize that
data.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And again. Mr. Baz, I, I, I'm just asking a question.
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, and again, you know, you might say it's a horrible idea. You may say
that's the best idea I heard so far this evening. I don't know but I think it's something we should
at least have some... some discussion because of how things have progressed through the decades
with the different organizations and the roles we wanna see regarding certain sectors'
development regarding our economic engines for the County.
MR. BAZ: I, I think that's a good discussion and we can have that with Ms. Rasmussen and maybe the
Mayor and.. .but from my understanding, the, the library itself since they do their, their.. .data
research and they have access to, you know, a lot of information and they have been historically
doing it, we don't see a problem with them continuing to do it. I guess is the best answer I can
give you at this point.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Baz.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch? Okay. We can come back to... this is where you
wanna add?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes. I know we had consensus on this before but that was where I felt
it would be.. .where it was felt that that would be a good thing, place for it.

- 166 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
May 3,2011

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Let me ask you this. That, that particular program, how many
individuals take part in the particular program?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Was there...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That way. Look that way.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I, I can answer.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I seem to remember there are 20 something at the-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. As I can answer, this is the fourth class that's gone on and the
average class, of course. they'd like to have about 12. Some have had a few more and some have
had a few less.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And these are all working people?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Most of them are. These are young people. They have jobs or some of
them may be college students but it's an attempt to try to groom them to be future leaders. Some
of the employers will contribute, some of them don't. And that's why the scholarship money is
necessary. The, the idea was to level the playing field because if you're a child, that, you know,
young person and you don't have an employer who's, you know, able to pay for you and you
have to pay. it could be kinda pricey. And so this eliminates the opportunity for some people
who are bright to be able to go.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. we'll come back to.. .your request later on. In regards to-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: If I could just ask a follow up question to that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: For, for what particular program... these selected individuals, is there a
fee they have to pay to participate?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, if I could answer?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, there is a fee and we do have a resource here. Ms. Skog is very
involved with the committee that oversees Ka Ipu Kukui, probably has a lot of answers, more
than I do because. you know, I was a member of the committee because I'm off of it now. Just
kinda keep an eye on it because I think it's so important.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, so...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, we, we gonna come back to that one.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair, I'd. I'd like to know what the, what the actual costs of operating
the program are-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --what. so ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, yeah, if this-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: When she comes-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --kind information can be provided-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --the actual cost. Okay, but for the Business Library, anybody got any more
questions regarding that?
COLTNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, perhaps, or perhaps if...I, I don't have a problem with it,
but perhaps recommendation by Mr. Hokama and the consideration of placement through or
under MEDB could, could, could potentially be considered as a proviso for us to prepare for the
next fiscal year so that it is a program under MEDB since it's a resource that not only they
depend on but most of us in the County depend as well. So it might be a consideration.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We can add something to that effect so that next year when it does
come up again, you know, we, we have that information.
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MS. HEELY: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MS. HEELY: Just quickly, I researched Ka Ipu Kukui fellows program. It says each.. .tuition for each
participant is $1.300.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Wow.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: How much?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: $1,300. Okay. Let's see. Page...we gonna quit at 9:00, okay? I know we not
going get done.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter).
CHAIR PONTANILLA And we gotta give Staff some time to adjust. They're not gonna adjust
beyond Page 14 maybe. Okay, Lanai Economic Development and Cultural Program.
Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, no, I, I'll support you on. on this. We know, we just appreciate
whatever opportunities that the Council can provide Lanai. And more. if anything. it was my,
my disappointment in having this fund as I stated earlier, be utilized to charge off the Maalaea
pump out...expenses. Okay, so, you know, I hope Mr. Baz can have Finance reverse it and, and
charge to the appropriate account but that is not Lanai Economic Development at all. Thank
you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We're fine. Mr. Baz. I think you.. .get some work. Okay, do I
have consensus on this?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next one, Maui Community College for Nursing and Dental Assistant
Programs. provided that the grant shall be restricted to the nursing and dental assistant programs,
and that the grantee raises matching funds to specifically meet this condition from non-County
sources. We should put on every single one. Mr. White? Or Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I think Mr. Hokama's on a roll. . .(Laughter)... I, I certainly had
enough mic time today.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, Chairman. As I stated earlier-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, yeah.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay, Danny, thank you. And good luck.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(Laughter).
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, the next Department is Fire and Public Safety. We do have some
questions and the questions are basically Premium Pay as well as reduction of...for the deletion
of three expansion positions of, of the Fire Department. And. Members, let me clarify the
deletion. It's not the deletion of the position themselves. It's the deletion of utilizing General
Funds to fund a grant...a grant that we received from the Federal government to allow for the
hiring of six positions. So if we, if we look at the grant the grant says six positions for the Fire
Department. It didn't say six positions that we could utilize and upgrade some Fire Fighters to
Fire Fighters ITT. So I'm. I'm going along with the grant that we had agreed upon. the six
positions and the funding that came with that six positions. Questions? That's on Page 7.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I have a question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: So you are actually deleting the EP count as well as the salary?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We not...the, the, the...we have the grant that has six positions.
MR. BAZ: Correct. The EP count, excuse me, the EP count, let me clarify. In the-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, and then it becomes LTAs.
MR. BAZ: From my understanding. the conditions of the grant were that we.. .they would fund it for
two years and we had to fund it for an additional year. So, Mr. Chair, maybe if we could.. .1'!!
work with the Fire Department but if we could clarify that and may I suggest maybe that we
include those six positions in the EP count as LTA under the conditions of the grant?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Maybe you can have the Fire Department come over here to answer
some of the questions that we may have in regards to those six positions. And if it...if the grant
is only for two years, then that's fine. And if the grant specifies that the County need to carry on
that third year. then I'll like to know about it. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So actually what the... Federal government is doing is forcing us to expend
General Fund expenditure because the grant to promote six positions is now being asked to be
filled, the lower positions, where we asked to be filled by General Fund and in this proposal.
permanent. So by taking this Federal grant we are agreeing to grow the department, minimum
six, six additional positions that may not have been part of our expansion currently. I wasn't for
these Federal so-called dollars that making us grow our budget and grow our expenses.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, you know, I think it's all been said.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I mean I, I would like something.. .you know, again, you're
correct in what you're saying and at one time there was a critical shortage of nursing...nurses. I
should say. And now we've gotten, you know, a surplus and so until we, we get to that point. I
would like to slow the program down so we give 'em what we give 'em this year and maybe start
learning to cut them or wean them off of our dependency. But, again, as I stated earlier to be
consistent. Whatever we do here, it's for our people. Fm not worried.. .you know, the bad thing
about the State, I don't think the State...worries about us. No offense to them. So I no
longer...you know, but we gotta take care of our own. We gotta take care of home. Thank you
very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Okay. do I have consensus for now?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Let's see. Festivals of Aloha. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Believe it or not. Chairman, this is one that I would ask and I'm gonna find
you that extra money. I'm, I'm willing to boost this up to my request to 40.000 which I believe
was the old original amount, Chair. But I, I say this basically for...coming from the island of
Lanai, Chairman. It is one of the few events or weeks of activities that we as a County
participate in that is not only, you know, part of the visitor industry but I think it's something, on
our island, the community enjoys just as much and gets as much out of it as the community puts
into it. And I think for, you know, for a few more thousand dollars. I think each island or district
can have a great and successful events that also embrace what the community needs to be
reenergized because it's about our people, it's about our community. It's about celebrating our
week of who we are as a community, as an island and as a County. So I feel strongly that this is
something that is good for our community, our residents. It's not about the visitor industry per
se. And it is something that I feel that countywide for, for $40,000 we get a great return out of
the investment, Chairman. So that's my pitch. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I wholeheartedly agree with Mr. Hokama. I would fully support his
recommendation. I, I had the good fortune to attend sister island Molokai's event this, this last
year. It was a wonderful event. I fully intend on going again this year and to Lanai's as well.
I've been to theirs, too. It's, it's just a good thing for the people who live here to go out to our
sister islands too and enjoy the aloha. So...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you,
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman. I, too. will definitely be supporting Mr. Hokama's
recommendation in increasing the proposed fund to $40.000. And the good part for me is he will
recognize where the.. .where the additional funds come from. And so I will support his effort.
And for, for our island of Molokai, Mr. Chairman, this, this is definitely not tourist, I guess,
celebration. This is a celebration of community and this, for our community, is one that we, we
really treasure and take pride in. So this is a real solid investment for my community and
definitely a needed event for Molokai. Thank you. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And I've attended one on Molokai. Like you. on Lanai. But I
had an opportunity to dance. I don't know about you, . . .(Laughter). .. The hula.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr, White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh. thank you. I, I'm sorry missed your hula. But I, like the others.
support that increase and I'd even go so far as throwing in an extra $1.380. I can help fund it
with Mr. Hokama s s help.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We, we await your-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, when you. . .(inaudible). . . your $1.380. bring 'em
okay?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: But anyway, Members, you know, like the other two or three, we'll come back
to this one here in regards to...adding funding as so requested. So, Members, the, the Chair is
gonna stop here. And we'll continue from Page 14, And we not going to 44, by the way, okay.
Because the grant revenues, I. I don't think we need to take care of that. And also the CDBG
area. So, so it's that many more pages to go. Probably 16 at the most, okay? So-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, Ms, Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Open Space Fund is on Page 43. though.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: On what?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Open Space Fund is on Page 43,
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sorry, I, I just said we going stop at . . .(inaudible). .
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'd like to go kinda far in the pages here, please, when we get there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So really made sure, yeah. . .(chuckles ). . . Okay, tomorrow-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What about Aloha Festival?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, we're gonna come back to Aloha Festival. Like the other ones that
some of the Members are also requesting the additions. Okay, Members, I'm gonna give Staff
some time to catch up. And we'll continue you again, 9:00 tomorrow morning. Starting from
Page 14. And hopefully we can complete the 20 something pages that we need to go through by
tomorrow evening at the same time. And then on Thursday, you know, really get down as far as
looking at the Members' requests in regards to different areas of this budget. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I'd just like to share with the...my...you and the rest of the
Committee that, you know, we're all tired. I know we're all busy people but the, the Legislature
is set to adjourn sine die some time Thursday. So hopefully we'll have a good indication by
Thursday midnight on what is the actual disposition of TAT and some other legislation that is
currently under review by conference committees and be prepared for final vote in the House and
the Senate, Mr_ Chairman. So hopefully, you know, things will go well for this County and we
won't have to make those last minute adjustments on Friday because of what didn't happen on
Thursday on Oahu_ . .(Inaudible).

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Okay, Members, any more questions? So thank
you again for enduring this late meeting. The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
adjourned. Meeting adjourned . . . (gavel). . .

ADJOURN: 8:58 p.m.
APPROVED:

SEPRTONTANILLA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
Transcribed by: Reinette Kutz
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